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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
5 208

Hanison Construction Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 15 4C &
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
e

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am
presenting to our shareholders the results of Hanison
Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2012.

RESULTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2012

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the turnover of the Group
was HK$1,234.7 million, being 70.73% higher than the turnover
of HK$723.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2011.

Despite the increase in turnover, the Group recorded a
decrease in consolidated profit from HK$176.0 million
(restated) for the last financial year to HK$128.2 million for
this financial year. The drop was mainly attributable to the fact
that the gain on change in fair value of investment properties
has been less drastic in this financial year as compared with
that of the last financial year. Another reason for the decrease
is that Hanison has just launched the sale of Eight College (a
wholly-owned luxurious residential development of the Group in
Kowloon Tong) in early 2012, hence can only record the sale of
two units.

The basic earnings per share for the year was HK26.3 cents,
compared to HK36.1 cents (restated) last year.

As at 31 March 2012, the net asset value amounted to
HK$1,051.3 million (2011: HK$940.2 million (restated)),
representing an increase of 11.82% over last year. Net asset
value per share at 31 March 2012 was HK$2.16 (2011:
HK$1.93 (restated)).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT * E#EE

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK2.7 cents
per share for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: HK2.7
cents per share) to shareholders whose names appear on the
registers of members of the Company on 5 September 2012.
This together with the interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per
share (2011: HK1.5 cents per share) gives a total of HK4.2
cents per share for the year (2011: HK4.2 cents per share).
The proposed final dividend will be paid on 20 September 2012
following approval at the annual general meeting.

BUSINESS REVIEW

While the economic conditions abroad have been complicated
and dim during the year, Hong Kong's economic growth
continued with a 5% real GDP expansion in 2011. However,
during the first quarter of 2012, the Hong Kong economy
was dragged by the Iull in exports amid a difficult external
environment, with real GDP posting a slight year-on-year growth
of 0.4%.

Although the Hong Kong economy decelerated to a meager
growth in the first quarter of 2012, the sustained vibrancy on
inbound tourism and further growth of infrastructure spending
continue to support and help cushion the overall economic
performance of the local economy. Nevertheless, given the
downside risk in the external environment arising from the
Eurozone debt crisis, Hong Kong needs to stay alert for any
headwinds on the external front which will adversely affect the
European economies, with spillovers to the Asian economies
and other parts of the world.

The growth of infrastructure spending by the HKSAR
Government and increase in private building construction works
have posed opportunities as well as threats to the construction
industry in Hong Kong. There are more infrastructure and
building construction project works for construction companies.
However, at the same time, this has caused the construction
labour market conditions to become buoyant, resulting in
shortage of quality professionals and workers and increase in
labour wages.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT F F#EE

During the year, the Group managed to record an increase in
turnover for most of the business divisions. The Construction
Division secured several new building construction contracts
and was able to achieve a turnover of HK$833.8 million, an
increase of 88.3% over that of the last financial year. The
Construction Division should continue to be underpinned by
the intensive public sector infrastructure works and increasing
building construction works from the private sector. The
Building Materials Division also recorded an increase in
turnover in the year under review, after suffering from lagging
results for the previous years.

Market competition for various industries remains keen.
The growth prospects of Hong Kong economy is being
overshadowed by the fragile fundamentals of the economies
of certain European countries, such as Greece, Spain and
Portugal. We are mindful of the various challenges facing the
global and local economy over the medium term.

HIGHLIGHTS OF CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary under the
Construction Division has passed the assessment and was
admitted to the Premier League Scheme of the Hong Kong
Housing Authority (“HA”). The admission to the Premier
League allows the Group to tender for and undertake HA's
projects with a higher workload capping limit or with more
complicated nature.

We have also launched the sale of the Group's luxurious
residential development, Eight College, in early 2012 and
recorded encouraging response from buyers. While the sale of
the remaining units of Eight College will continue, we have also
commenced the redevelopment of the Group’s other properties,
The Bedford, a boutique industrial high rise at No. 93 Bedford
Road in Tai Kok Tsui, Kowloon and The Austine, a luxurious
residential development at No. 38 Kwun Chung Street in
Jordan, Kowloon.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT * E#EE

FUTURE DIRECTIONS AND PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, it will take years to heal the structural problems
rooted in the fiscal vulnerabilities of the economies of certain
European countries.

Given the highly external-oriented nature of Hong Kong
economy, its performance is closely tied to the conditions of its
major economic partners. How well Hong Kong can withstand
the external impact and seize the business opportunities driven
by the deepening integration with the Mainland will be crucial
to Hong Kong's medium-term economic outlook. It is therefore
important for the Group to move forward with prudence.

With various infrastructural works and the HKSAR
Government’s plan to introduce more public housing and
different forms of revised home ownership schemes, it will
mean a very busy construction sector, albeit tightening of the
labour market, rising labour and material costs. We will ride on
our well-established construction capabilities and experience
to strive for improvement of our performance in the still
challenging years ahead.

After undergoing some consolidation in the latter part of 2011,
the residential property market stabilised in the first quarter of
2012. The commercial and industrial property markets also
re-gathered strength. Further, the ongoing low interest rate
environment with abundant inflow of liquidity and increasing
local demands rendered support to the property development
market in Hong Kong. Going forward, the Group will continue
to identify opportunities to acquire land and properties at
affordable prices. In the coming year, the Group will aim at
selling the remaining units of Eight College and redeveloping
The Bedford and The Austine.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT F F#EE

Our goal is to build sustainable value for our Group in the ZAREEMBERNKLEKNZFIBET A
competitive environment in which we operate. To sustain ~ AEBAIENFEEE  AEFER AEE
growth, we will put continuous effort into cost control, quality — B IS O ERBHK A IBEAHERE
enhancement and efficiency improvement in our core  MIESHEME-

businesses.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to ~ RNAZERXREZS BRA#RELEP 2R NX
our shareholders and customers for their continuous support. ¥ KA RERB KN E TR AHE - &
| would also like to thank the management team and staff for ~ HEEH R PIEFHORNELEEN T B -
their contribution towards the success of our business.

Cha Mou Sing, Payson
Chairman

Ht o
3 ¥
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OPERATIONS REVIEW
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CONSTRUCTION DIVISION

i
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FEa

Construction of Lam Tin North Municipal Services Building with a joint venture partner
HEFh 2 R R B AL T IROKE
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OPERATIONS REVIEW % 7% [0 B8

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION

The turnover for the Construction Division was HK$833.8
million for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$442.7
million). During the year, the Construction Division secured
several new building construction contracts, increasing the
turnover by 88.3%.

The total amount of contract on hand as at 31 March 2012 was
HK$1,533.1 million, of which HK$117.1 million was derived
from projects under joint venture arrangements with joint
venture partners.

Following the inclusion in the List of Approved Contractors
for Public Works in Group C (Confirmed) under “Buildings”
Category in 2009, the Construction Division has made another
achievement to be admitted to the Premier League Scheme
of the Hong Kong Housing Authority (“HA”). Only contractors
whose performance are consistently outstanding and who are
capable of delivering quality products, possess a solid corporate
profile and have a strong commitment to partnership will be
included in the Premier League. The admission to the Premier
League allows the Group to tender for and undertake HA's
projects with a higher workload capping limit or with more
complicated nature.

Construction of public rental housing development at Tseung Kwan O Area 65B

2 8 WmebBR M HE A E & RIA R

2 AR
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OPERATIONS REVIEW #7450l B

Major Projects Completed EERMEETLR

(1) Construction of primary school at development near Choi (1) HERMPEELZEREZAK TN
Wan Road and Jordan Valley, Kwun Tong RIEE R/ NE

(2) Construction of second secondary school at development — (2) SEE{ BB E I8 M B A T a3
near Choi Wan Road and Jordan Valley, Kwun Tong RIEEME_FHE

(3) Construction of residential development at Area N1d, (3) HEEAUE LS EE+MEANIRE 2T
Phase 14, Discovery Bay, Lantau Island EERIAHE

Construction of Sports Centre and Community Hall in Area 101 at Tin Shui Wai with a joint venture partner

FEERKEIOIRMEER O REESE

Major Projects in Progress ETHHEEIRE

(1) Construction of Sports Centre and Community Hall in (1) EREEBRHEERKEIOIRMESH L
Area 101 at Tin Shui Wai with a joint venture partner kutegs

(2) Construction of Lam Tin North Municipal Services  (2) EAR&REEMEE BLHKARE
Building with a joint venture partner
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(3)

4)

(%)

(6)

(7)

(8)

Construction of proposed industrial redevelopment, The
Bedford, at No. 93 Bedford Road, Tai Kok Tsui, Kowloon

Construction of Student Hostel Phase 3 for The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University

Construction of shopping centre (Block 1 & 4) at
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

Construction of public rental housing development at
Tseung Kwan O Area 65B

Construction of proposed residential redevelopment at
No. 146 & 148 Argyle Street, Kowloon

Construction of proposed residential redevelopment, The
Austine, at No. 38 Kuwn Chung Street, Jordan, Kowloon

(3)

4)

%)

(6)

(7)

(8)

OPERATIONS REVIEW % 7% [0 B8

Bl N BE R AME NI EO3SR M EE T 2
#3218 H The Bedford

HEEBRTABE-_HNELES

MR ARE L RENEYES (F
— R PHEE)

S EReoBRE M LA AERRIAH

FEE A LB O B EAT146 1 14857 Fy

BEEERER

BN EERE BHISHNEREES
3218 H The Austine

Construction of proposed industrial redevelopment, The Bedford, at No. 93 Bedford Road, Tai Kok Tsui

B K A A 04 B FE 935 /Y i % L 2 E 218 B The Bedford
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OPERATIONS REVIEW #7450l B

Construction of Student Hostel Phase 3 for The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

HEEBBRTIABE=HELRS

Outlook

The gross value of construction works performed increased by
8.6% at private sector sites and 28.4% at public sector sites
in 2011. With various infrastructural works and the HKSAR
Government’s plan to introduce more public housing and
different forms of home ownership schemes, it is expected that
there will be more opportunities to secure building construction
project works. At the same time, we, as well as other construction
companies, are also facing the spectre of increasing construction
costs, which leaves us with very thin profit margins.

RZE

R-T——F EEEROEETIZEES

FLE M AR IR R8.6% M 1N ‘& AR 1R :R28.4% © BB
EZRARTRENEEFERATEHEES
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MHIREZEFELAR TR EAEE - [
By AR B N o Ath S 58N B 75 IE T Y S SR A R
T EF R - EMEHAE BRI ERIE
FiKe
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OPERATIONS REVIEW % 7% [0 B8

Under such circumstances, the Construction Division has been
implementing cost control initiatives through closely monitoring
operating and capital expenditures. In the challenging operating
environment, it is also essential for us to develop strategies
for improving business performance and elaborating other
strengths, such as the continuous pursuit of quality.

Last year, we mentioned that Sau Mou Ping South Estate, a
construction project of the Construction Division, received a
Grand Award of the Green Building Award 2010 under the New
Buildings Category. We are glad to announce that this project
had also been selected as a Winner (Residential Architecture
Multiple Houses) of the FuturArc Green Leadership Award
2011. Further, other construction projects, including the
construction of Lam Tin North Municipal Services Building with
a joint venture partner and the construction of public rental
housing development at Tseung Kwan O Area 65B had received
certain awards in respect of the protection of environment,
promotion of site safety and being considerate contractors
during the year. These awards serve to recognise the efforts of
the team to strive for excellence and safety. We will continue to
manage our projects with these criteria which we believe are
essential to the long-term success of the Construction Division.

Moving forward, the operating environment is expected to
remain highly competitive. Our continuous efforts will be put
in exercising tight controls over costs and promoting quality,
efficiency and safety in order to maintain our good reputation
and competitiveness in the industry.

EEBRT REB-EEBTNERLER
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INTERIOR AND
RENOVATION DIVISION

2 5 I A 12 HE

Residential development at Area N1d, Phase 14, Discovery Bay, Lantau Island
RN L= 25 T MHANIdE(EEIE B
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OPERATIONS REVIEW 7% [0 B8

INTERIOR AND RENOVATION DIVISION e B R 415 AR
For the year ended 31 March 2012, the Interior and Renovation (EZT—ZF-A=+—HLEFE - EHMR

Division recorded a turnover of HK$188.5 million, as compared HHSEPERIS & FE BB 188,500,0007T * &
with HK$114.3 million last year. Despite turnover increased, the FRIAEEE114,300,00070 c BELERE FFH
return dropped. The drop was partly attributable to the change Bl Tk o B3R TEA 5 RE YRR EE
of design requested by the developer during the running of a —RBEETERAREERYERERRFT A
major project, leading to postponement of the work schedule ~— Ti2EEIEE] W B E L FEIMKA

and additional costs incurred.

Conference and resort hotel at North Area N3, Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

AU L e =8I0 N3R & 3% R BB

Major Projects Undertaken AEMNFEIRE

(1) Interior fitting-out works for the residential development at (1) KU | =/EE+HENIdEEEEEB
Area N1d, Phase 14, Discovery Bay, Lantau Island WZEARETE

(2) Builder's works and fitting-out works for the conference  (2) Al |LGSEILNIEREZELERBEESN
and resort hotel at North Area N3, Discovery Bay, Lantau BETREREETR
Island

RSl ER AT | 2011/2012%F% 19



OPERATIONS REVIEW #7450l B

During the year under review, the Interior and Renovation
Division has completed the interior fitting-out works for the
residential development at Area N1d, Phase 14, Discovery Bay,
Lantau Island and the practical completion certificate has been
issued.

The contract on hand as at 31 March 2012 amounted to
HK$117.2 million.

Outlook

Both the turnover for the year and the amount of contract
on hand at 31 March 2012 are behind that of last year. Over
the past year, our tender successful rate has been dragged
down by keen competition over tender prices for interior and
renovation projects coupled with our prudent approach toward
assessing the tender requirements and calculating tender
prices.

The persistence pursuit of quality and the client-centered
approach has helped the Interior and Renovation Division to
gain wide recognition from its clients over the years. Despite
the Interior and Renovation Division is facing the challenging
operating environment, we are confident that we will be able to
sustain steady performance by maintaining the professionalism
in completing different types of renovation projects and
enhancing the quality of the works.

Residential development at Area N1d, Phase 14,
Discowv tau Island

PMEANIdE{EEIRE

REBEFE R - 28 KRGS I E FTAR AR L %
SEETNHENIIEFEEENERNEEL
BB EETTERSE-

R-E-——F=A=1+—HNFHANEE
B #5117,200,0007T ©

RZE

REFEEBERN_ZE——_F=A=+—H
Eﬁ?ﬂﬁéiﬁfﬁ{ﬁi’ﬂfiiﬁﬁﬁﬁd\°f5’\i@£—
¢ F 0 5 B [ A 8 T A2 WO SR BB AR 35 55 A0
AU EASREFEFEBRER MG ERR
B ERARBENBIRKD R B TF e

KRB ZFREEZFHFZ AERER
&E;T—I%JEJ:J:ZEEU ELERGEEFPHNE

2 R o e A S ED IEEER B s EREE R
%%%EEEWEK%ﬁ%/b'iﬁ?@%%—gm
EERBBTA TRBEENEETIRRIEAT
2EE AEEHEAERRERER -

Conference and resort hotel at North Area N3,
Discovery Bay,
AU L) 1 =

RE BB IE
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We have planned to extend the sources of revenues of the
Interior and Renovation Division to public sector by applying
for different licences / permits from the relevant governmental
departments that officially recognise the capabilities of the
team.

As mentioned last year, the Interior and Renovation Division
lodged an application for inclusion in the list of building
contractors, M2 (Probationary) of the Hong Kong Housing
Authority. The successful inclusion in the list will bring the
Interior and Renovation Division into the public sector arena.
We are undergoing the assessment stage.

We believe that with the expertise, experience and suitable
equipment for interior and renovation works, the Interior and
Renovation Division can achieve sustainable development in
future.

Residential development at Area N1d, Phase 14, Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

AU | e =2 5% M EAN1dE F 518 B

A7) 882 w8 A A BB &P FT & 75 AJ IE =\ AE
REBRE NI TRIIR,FFalaE - 5 R 5 &
HEEMOWATRRERZE QN E T -

AN EF R - K RSB R B ER
ABEEEZBEM2E (HA) AZREATT-
IO A% A il 5 AT R S A S S BRAEEE
BRANEE BERRELRENFAEMRE-

N

BAHEE BRERKHMREIRTEZE
R -&RIAERE K MAEEIRRERE
FERR-
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BUILDING MATERIALS DIVISION
2 28 7 R

Lam Tin North Municipal
Services Building — False
ceiling

Hoi Shing Road —
Aluminium window, window

EMILTERAR - BRI Prcidlfgts”distribgted by Tai Kee wall and aluminium cladding
e R0 HNES GRS - S8 - B R AR HIR
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BUILDING MATERIALS DIVISION

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the turnover for the
Building Materials Division was HK$232.9 million, compared
with HK$169.2 million last year.

Trigon Building Materials Limited (“Trigon HK”)
and Trigon Interior Fitting-Out Works (Macau)
Limited (“Trigon Macau”) (collectively, Trigon”)

Trigon HK and Trigon Macau are two of the subsidiaries of the
Group under the Building Materials Division, specialising in the
supply and installation of interior products such as different
types of suspended ceiling system, metal cladding system,
demountable partition system, fire rated protection system,
decorative moulding, raised flooring and wood flooring.

The implementation of various infrastructure projects has
created more business opportunities for Trigon HK. Trigon HK
has taken a number of works for the supply and installation of
false ceiling.

Major Projects Undertaken

(1) Lam Tin North Municipal Services Building — Supply and
installation of false ceiling

Building — False ceiling

R

2T —F A=+ —HILFE EEM
02 4 2 HE A3 232,900,0007T © A8
578 #169,200,0007T °

ESEEMARRR ([EFETE]) R
ESEENEE (RM)ARLE (T
BERM]) (fBIE8E])

ERERERERERMRRNEERZENF
HHMmEN B AR ERHERZEEAKE
Em MARBENBRRIERS 2 BHRE
g E Y BRIR AL ARE RS K
AR FIE DY  ZR 2208 By AR S AR AR o

ZRERTRZEBHMAERETETRRS
- ESEFTBLAEE TARMRERTE
BRIERGHTIE -

AREMNEEIR
(1) ERIETBERE-HERZERRER
425
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(3)

(%)

8)

(10)

Lam Tin North Municipal Services Building — False ceiling for swimming pool

Victoria Park Swimming Complex — Supply and installation
of false ceiling

Ma On Shan Line — Che Kung Temple Station — Supply
and installation of false ceiling

West Island Line — Sai Ying Pun Station and tunnels —
Supply and installation of false ceiling

Development at Tseung Kwan O Lot No. 70, Area 86,
Site AB, Package 2, Phase 3 — Supply and installation of
external aluminum false ceiling

TWIL36 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan — Supply and
installation of false ceiling

Conference and resort hotel at North Area N3, Discovery
Bay, Lantau Island — Supply and installation of pantry
cabinets

Tseung Kwan O Lot 72, Area 56, Hotel and Podium —
Supply and installation of false ceiling

TMTL447, Tuen Mun Station — Supply and installation of
false ceiling

Sheng Kung Hui St. James’ Primary School
installation of false ceiling

— Supply and

TPTL95, Po Wu Lane, Tai Po — Supply and installation of
false ceiling

B ML T BURE — Ot RRIER S

(2)

(3)

4)

%)

(6)

(7)

(8)

9)

(10)

(11)

wENDRBEKESE - HENRER
%?E/%/\L’

SRIUGRENBM FE—
ai/fli:/%n)b

HERZERRE

AESR-—TERIREE—
RBRRIERL

(A YSES

% B8R 7 055 1 ER 5586/ AB i 8% — {H FE K2
R EINABRIERR

TWIL36E & /g B B8 — (e M T H R KIE
%/\s)b

A*i

KU 1L ey = AENS[E
JE — e & R R ORI B R

R ERE

1 IR 7255 1 BR 56l B 5 K F & —fit
JE R ZRBRIERMR

TMTLA44775 P90 FE - HEMTEEB X
LR

BERgEREE/NE-HERLREBKRIE
TPTLOSRIFE M E —HE R L EKRKIE
%/u}b

TWIL36 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan — False ceiling

BR X TWIL365% — RATE R 4
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The total amount of contracts on hand of Trigon as at 31 March
2012 amounted to HK$87.0 million.

Tai Kee Pipes Limited (“Tai Kee”)

Another subsidiary under the Building Materials Division, Tai
Kee, focuses on the supply of pipes, fittings and other related
accessories through both retail and project sales.

Major Projects Undertaken

(1) Kai Tak Area 1 & 2 — Supply of copper pipes and related
accessories

(2) Student Hostel of the University of Hong Kong — Supply of
copper pipes and related accessories

(3) Student Hostel of the Chinese University of Hong Kong —
Supply of copper pipes and related accessories

(4) Block E-M, Phase 4, Ma On Shan Sunshine City, New
Territories — Supply of pipes for fire services

(5) Public Housing in Macau — Supply of copper pipes and
related accessories

(6) Composite Development at No. 49 King Yip Street, Kwun
Tong — Supply of pipes for fire services

The total amount of contracts on hand of Tai Kee as at 31
March 2012 amounted to HK$20.4 million.

Million Hope Industries Limited (“Million Hope
HK”) and S E B EEHM B (EM) BRAR (“
") (collectively “Million Hope”)

Million Hope HK and its factory, £ &, specialise in the design,
supply and installation of aluminium windows and curtain walls
in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Million Hope is one of the
authorised manufacturers of the renowned German brand
product “Schiico”.

OPERATIONS REVIEW % 7% [0 B8

RIZE-—"F=A=1+—H ESENTHEA
#){B (42 %8 /38 #587,000,0007T °

wRERAF (%L
BEMHEN S —HNBARRLEEHER
TR TIE A HEIRE B R
e

RENEEIR

() BUslRk2E—HERE MR+

(2) BFERBELFEE-HERE MABR
(53

(3) BAEATXABZEARBEE-HERE LA
B A 1

4) FABBWUFERFT OOREEME —H
FEHR MR E

(5) RPIRHEE—HEHRE MR

(6) BIEMEHAORNEASERER —HE
HIRE

RZE——F=ZA=+—H HXHNFHEEY
B {8 E 74 120,400,0007T °

EFERARRA(ZZFFEDRE
BEaBEEME (AN ARXF ([
®B]) (mB[==F])
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FRSAIEIER AR AR | 2011/20125F

25



OPERATIONS REVIEW #7450l B

Major Projects Undertaken

1

(2)

Proposed residential development at 13-27 Warren Street
— Design, supply and installation of aluminium window,
curtain wall, aluminium cladding, louvre, skylight, canopy,
balustrade and metal suspended ceiling

Proposed industrial development at TWTL No. 36 Hoi
Shing Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories — Design, supply
and installation of aluminium window, window wall,
canopy and aluminium cladding

Proposed residential development at 2A Seymour Road —
Design, supply and installation of “Schiico” sliding door,
aluminium window and glazed installation

Lam Tin North Municipal Services Building — Design,
supply and installation of aluminium curtain wall,
aluminium cladding, canopy, skylight and feature

Proposed residential development at 9A — 9H Seymour
Road — Design, supply and installation of aluminium
window, sliding door, glass balustrade, aluminium
cladding and feature

RIEZENEETRE
(1) FEHREIBE27/FMNEZEERREIER -

(2)

(3)

4)

%)

REt HERTHRIEE  E15 IR8R -
A -KXE £ZE B heBRBRAT

R
EIEE -5t e
7 R R H4R

iﬁ?ﬂﬂTWTL%%}EE’\JEE%I%%
LRIAE  BifE

TEBARNRHEEREED &
SRR (B BT R R

BRE

EmRIEMBARE - Rt HERTZEKREE
1 - SmeiR - EE  RE KK

PHEEEOA-OHSE MR ERRIAR — 3
A ERZERE  BPT R
8 5 R B B

Lam Tin North Municipal Services Building — Design, supply and installation of aluminium curtain wall, aluminium cladding, canopy,
skylight and feature

E ML BURE —

Rt HE RS

nf e SR AR - R R KA
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Major Projects Awarded

(1) Proposed residential development of “My Home Purchase
Plan” at Tsing Luk Street, Tsing Yi, TYTL 138 — Design,
supply and installation of aluminium window, louvres,
glass walls and sun shading

(2) Proposed residential development at No. 46 Belcher’s
Street, Hong Kong — Design, supply and installation of
aluminium window, curtain walls, claddings, louvres,
grilles and canopies

(3) Proposed residential development at FSSTL202, Fanling,
New Territories — Design, supply and installation of
aluminium window, curtain walls, claddings, louvres and
grilles

(4) Proposed industrial redevelopment, The Bedford, at No.
93 Bedford Road, Tai Kok Tsui, Kowloon — Design, supply
and installation of aluminium curtain wall, window wall,
window, louvres and aluminium cladding

The total amount of contracts on hand of Million Hope as at 31
March 2012 amounted to HK$180.5 million.

BRIOTEIRE

(1) FRBLETYTL 138 B0 BEE
FEEHREER R HERLTEIRE -
EERESE IS A E

(2 BEBRRFHMHENEZETERE
AR HERLZERE FiE 6
h-BE BEREE

(3) A EFSSTL202FEM B R T T HE
BHE R HERREKEE B &
wR-BELES

(4) NBEAAWENIEENRFRNEZILESE
15 B The Bedford—z% &t L fE ML & iR
BiE REERG & AERBEMHR

R-_E——F=ZA=+—H8 EXSFTHNFBELEY
B {E E 74 #180,500,0007T ©

Proposed residential development at 9A — 9H Seymour Road Proposed industrial development at TWTL No. 36 Hoi Shing Road,
— Design, supply and installation of aluminium window, sliding | Tsuen Wan, New Territories — Design, supply and installation of
door, glass balustrade, aluminium cladding and feature aluminium window, window wall, canopy and aluminium cladding

PHEEEOAOHSR M IE B E TR RIAR — KAt HE R & KA

LI TWTLI6H A T BRI E — Rt (HERRE

B P IR - Ea iR S 2
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Outlook

The worsening in debt crisis in Europe and slackening of the
North America economy represent the major risk factor for
the global economy in 2012. This has caused uncertainty to
business environment and materially impacted the operating
performance of most companies in the world.

Hong Kong's economic growth has been constrained to 0.4%
on year-to-year basis for the first quarter of 2012. However,
with the increase in capital expenditures committed by the
HKSAR Government and the investment by private investors,
local public building and construction works are still in great
demand.

The building materials market has been strengthened by
the increase in construction works, boosting the demand for
building materials. However, buoyant construction outlook has
also brought about escalating costs, including the increase in
labour costs and fluctuation in metal prices.

Against this challenging environment, our Building Materials
Division has to be very careful in selecting suitable project
works and calculating the tender prices with full allowance for
the escalating costs and appropriate pledging for the fluctuation
in metal prices.

Backed by the previous experience in the building materials
industry, Trigon, Tai Kee and Million Hope will continue to
strengthen its marketing team to acquire market share and
source new products with good quality to expand product
selection for their clients.

Going forward, the Building Materials Division will focus on the
quality of its products to maintain its competitiveness, develop
its sale force to consolidate its position in the industry and
implement cost control strategies to sustain its business.

RZE

BMEBEEB LRI REERER T ——
FEREBEEENRBRAE  HH AN
RAMERRBHR AR HEERRE
RERZE -

RIE-——FEFFE FELENRFER
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RETIREINBCREM BTG fREREN
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION
UEXIIEE

Eight College in Kowloon Tong
L EEYEEight College

BRI AR AR | 2011/20126 % 29



OPERATIONS REVIEW #7450l B

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

The Property Development Division has launched the sale of
the Group’s wholly-owned luxurious residential development,
Eight College, in early 2012 and has sold two units during the
year under review.

Subsequent to the year end, one more unit was sold. The
Property Development Division will continue to sell the
remaining units. The sale results were encouraging and it is
expected that Eight College will bring promising returns to the
Group.

During the year, the construction work of The Bedford, a
boutique industrial high rise at No. 93 Bedford Road, Tai Kok
Tsui continued.

The demolition work of The Austine at No. 38 Kwun Chung
Street, Jordan had been completed and foundation work has
commenced. A boutique residential building with retail podium
will be erected thereon, providing luxury residences at a prime
location of Kowloon at a nexus of transportation.

Another residential development of the Group at D.D. 129, Lau
Fau Shan in Yuen Long is undergoing gazettal stage.

For the residential development project with Sun Hung Kai
Properties Limited at So Kwun Wat, Tuen Mun, we are in the
course of obtaining planning approval from the Town Planning
Board.

For the Group’s 49% interests of the parcel of land situate
at PRI A BETEXAEAR - -ZE=EmEA (West
of Wenyuan Road and South of Houfutinggang, Haining,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC) (the “Land”) for the development
and construction of office, retail, carparking spaces and
other development pertaining to the Land, the construction
of basement of the first phase is expected to commence in
late-June 2012, pre-sale of the office is permissible upon the
construction reaches the ground level.

M= RAD

MEBRRBON B —FUHERERDN
S X578 B Eight College” REIEFE &
o W B B8 7

REERE XEHS —EEL - WEERE
RHEELERTEM -HENES ARTE &
HiEight Collegei A AN B SRS E D5

TN R K AR NEEBEISR B LEEF
The Bedford®)iZE TR EEHTT -

EHE B H38% The Austine®I #Hr 1 T2 2 5
BRCMETRERELHAR - HEE-EWRTE
HHETaNEREEET RAENZBIER
BEoMBRERETIE

REBARTTRART UL E DD F 12957 4 B
MEEHRAR LRNTIBREER-

EREMBEMEZRARARELFIRFE
ZafrERzZETHRER  RAREMRT
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Outlook

For the past years, the HKSAR Government has imposed
a series of measures, e.g. the implementation of special
stamp duty and the higher down-payment ratio to suppress
speculative investments and cool down the residential property
market. These measures have had combined impact on both
potential and speculative buyers.

After undergoing some consolidation in the latter part of 2011,
the residential property market stabilised in the first quarter of
2012 and the commercial and industrial property markets also
re-gathered strength.

However, given the uncertain global outlook triggered by
the European debt crisis, Hong Kong economic growth is
anticipated to be slower in 2012. The buyers generally remain
cautious on the outlook for the property market, especially
the residential property market. Further, after property prices
soared since the beginning of 2009 to record levels, it is
generally expected that the prices may experience a slow
and steady decline for an interim market adjustment. Luxury
residential property prices are expected to be more resilient as
the supply of this type of property is still limited.

Lobby of Eight College in Kowloon Tong

TLEEYEEight College XN &

RE

RBERF BERRBTER—RIEE
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Look ahead, the following fundamentals still exist to sustain the
property market. Demand for housing in Hong Kong continues to
increase due to the growing population, citizens’ desire to improve
their living condition, and the strong interest from both Hong Kong
citizens and Chinese nationals in buying residential properties
for investment purposes to fight against inflation. Low levels of
mortgage interest rates have kept the affordability for the owners
and buyers of residential properties. In many cases, the monthly
installment repayments are even cheaper than the rental charges.
HKSAR Government’s plan to introduce more public housing
and different forms of home ownership schemes are positive for
developing a more balanced policy to meet the different needs
of the society. These will provide a more stable and sustainable
environment for the property market in the long run.

With due regard to our financial resources and the property
market situation, our Group will continue to identify land and
properties at appropriate locations with affordable prices to
sustain future development of the Property Development
Division and the Group as a whole.

RERK THERNRREBEFHEAERYE
MIGFHEER - HRNADEM TRSENRE
FEGHERBEETRETEERBEEEMSE
RERE MG AR BRNEBRE  FBE
[£ 75 SRAE AR IR 1D - 128 B BN 2 2 pME K -
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N-HEZHBERT BARBEREEENE
& BEFBBAEISEIAEZAREERT
R AR EER 8 - 5 E A FE R BERIA
mERETRBRELBBRER -ZFERAES
RYETSRMERREHERE MIFENR
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Interior of Eight College in Kowloon Tong

FLBEYEEight College A 2B3R 15
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Shatin Industrial Centre
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PROPERTY INVESTMENT DIVISION

Both the return and turnover of the Property Investment
Division have dropped during the year under review as
compared with those of last year.

The drop in return was attributable to the fact that the gain
on change in fair value of investment properties has been less
drastic in this financial year as compared with that of the last
financial year. On the turnover side, there is a reduction in
rental income from the Group’s investment properties as The
Austine was vacated for redevelopment in November 2010.

During the year, the Group has disposed of a unit at Shatin
Industrial Centre as the market presented a good opportunity
for the Group to realise the investment to provide funds for
other suitable acquisitions.

The Group'’s remaining investment properties maintained stable
leasing performance. Our investment properties at Shatin
Industrial Centre attained an occupancy rate of around 97% as
at 31 March 2012.

Other investment properties of the Group include 31 Wing
Wo Street in Sheung Wan, some units at Kin Wing Industrial
Building in Tuen Mun, various land lots in D.D. 76 Ping Che in
Fanling, various land lots in D.D. 128 Deep Bay Road in Yuen
Long and Hoi Bun Godown in Tuen Mun in which the Group
has 50% interest, all contributed to satisfactory income of the
Group during the year. The investment property at 23-25 Mei
Wan Street in Tsuen Wan was vacant for the moment.
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REBFER  YERE RO E RN EERY
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Outlook

The leasing market in Hong Kong appears to be diverged
in different property sectors. With property prices and rents
soaring for almost two years, some suggest that there are
weakening signs for the rents in Grade-A office in 2012.
However, the increase in rents for ground-floor retail properties
in core areas is expected to continue albeit at a slower pace.

The HKSAR Government forecast that Hong Kong economic
growth is likely to be slower in 2012. Despite a slower growth
is expected, investor sentiment and demand for properties for
investment are still on a forward surge. Focus has also been
placed on industrial properties in the vicinity since market
growth and potential will likely increase from the stimulation
efforts made by the HKSAR Government’s re-vitalisation
scheme. As re-vitalisation continues, supply of industrial
properties will drop and rent will be driven up.

Throughout the years, the Property Investment Division has
been developing its property portfolio with an emphasis on
industrial properties. This positions the Group to be on track
with market movement.

Bearing the market circumstances in mind, the Property
Investment Division will continue to assess and build up its
portfolio of rental properties to provide steady income streams
to the Group.

RE

BEMEMSETRYEDRE LR IIBENR -
BEEMEERLESOIMFRE LK BD
ME—EBERBRIR T —_FRRAETE
HEAEFIR - AT AR ZO R
WTIEERUYELRSSHE LT W ETHR
EE W&

EEFRBNREN — - FHEELBER
AREE MR - BEFRMERAIE RERAK
REMEFTKINER LTHBE - AEBEONEE
NREEEMOTRNTEN R AT
B BT & T &t &) 7] 2R T 35 0 1
REE - B LSS M TEMEHRES
B MES SRR -

SEUR MEREF —BERZETRVE
MYEMLS RS AEEENSEFHF L H
i o

REBMSER  WEREMFERETH L2
VEBEEMEMAS  SAKERRIZERAK
IR o

EEsAlR B ER AT | 2011/2012% % 35



PROPERTY AGENCY AND
MANAGEMENT DIVISION

7 5 (3R N 3 HD

Rental collection and leasing agency services for The Cameron

& The Cameronhe f We 8 K 38 751X 12 AR 7%
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PROPERTY AGENCY AND MANAGEMENT
DIVISION

The turnover of the Property Agency and Management Division
for the year was HK$9.0 million, compared to the turnover of
HK$9.1 million last year.

The Property Agency and Management Division is providing
property management services to Golf Parkview in Sheung Shui
and One LaSalle and Eight College in Kowloon Tong.

It is also providing rental collection and leasing agency services
to 8 Hart Avenue and The Cameron in Tsim Sha Tsui.

During the year, the Property Agency and Management
Division continued the provision of project management service
to the large-scale integrated development project in Haining
City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC. Effective from 1 April 2012,
the Group has also entered into a new set of agreements for
the provision of site supervision services in addition to project
management services; details of the transactions were made in
the Company’s announcement published on 2 April 2012.

In Hong Kong, the Property Agency
and Management Division acted
as the project manager for two of
the Group’s redevelopments, The
Bedford at No. 93 Bedford Road,
Tai Kok Tsui and The Austine
at No. 38 Kwun Chung Street,
Jordan as well as for a client in the
redevelopment project at 11-13
Grampian Road.

Outlook

Looking forward, we will focus
on our clients’ requirements to
seek further improvement in
our service. We will ride on the
expertise and experience of the
service team to provide high
quality, efficient and cost-effective
services.

Kowloon Tong
A N EEYEOne LaSallefR 4 ¥ % & 12 IR 7

Property management services for One LaSalle in
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HealthPlus Shop at Tai Po Mega Mall
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HEALTH PRODUCTS DIVISION

There are three subsidiaries of Health Products Division
under the Group, Care & Health Limited (“Care & Health”),
Healthcorp Trading Limited (“Healthcorp”) and Retailcorp
Limited (“Retailcorp”). They are engaged in wholesale in
Chinese and Western supplements and retail chain store
businesses respectively.

This year, the Health Products Division recorded a turnover of
HK$52.6 million as compared to HK$49.7 million last year.

Retailcorp operates the chain store retail business under the
trade name of HealthPlus. As at 31 March 2012, there were
13 retail outlets (including a HealthPlus shop at St. Teresa’s
Hospital in Kowloon) and 1 service centre in operation.

During the year under review, the Health Products Division
closed down one of its HealthPlus shops at Wanchai C C Wu
Building due to substantial increase in rental by the landlord.
However, we opened other three new retail shops at Wanchai
Road, Sincere Department Store (Sheung Wan) and Tai
Po Mega Mall; and relocated one retail shop in Shun Tak
Centre in the second half of 2011 to cope with our business
development and tailor to the needs of our customers from
different districts.

Retailcorp carries a comprehensive range
of different health product lines including
“Lingzhi Master”, “Metro Chinese Medicine
Series”, “Natural Extracts”, “Healthway”,
“HealthMate” and “28 Chinese Herbal
Soup for Postnatal women”. It also sells
a large variety of vendor goods, including
imported goods and health devices. Two
new products: “Goodbye Gout” for the
balance of uric acid level, “Tian Ma” for
alleviation of headache symptoms were
launched in 2011. To reach a wider range
of customers, Retailcorp will join the 20th
International Baby/Children Products Expo
in August 2012.
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Healthcorp is engaged in the wholesale and retail of western
health supplements and “28 Chinese Herbal Soup for Postnatal
women”. To promote their products, Care & Health and
Healthcorp will jointly participate in the Food Expo 2012 &
Hong Kong Brands and Products Expo 2012.

After the implementation of “Registration of Proprietary Chinese
Medicine” by the Department of Health on 3 December 2010,
and the publication of the “Guidelines on labels of proprietary
Chinese medicines” and “Guidelines on package inserts of
proprietary Chinese medicines” (regulation No. 143 and 144)
on December 1, 2011, a new regulation “Undesirable Medical
Advertisements (Amendment) Ordinance 2005" has been
enforced on 1 June 2012. As a responsible health products
provider, we are committed to complying with the requirements
from the Department of Health.

Retailcorp and Care & Health were awarded the “Caring
Company” honour from the HK council of Social Service for the
7th and 8th consecutive years respectively. HealthPlus was also
awarded the “Quality Tourism Services Scheme” and the “No
Fakes Pledge” Scheme.

Outlook

Going forward, we will develop various e-Marketing channels, such
as fan page on Facebook and e-shop in order to attract and expand
local and overseas markets. We will also continue our focus on
distributing the Chinese and western supplements into different
retail chains, in order to enlarge our market share. It is always our
mission to fulfill our members and customers’ expectations by
providing professional services and healthy products.

We believe the long-term healthcare market is growing, driven
by the macro forces of a growing and ageing population,
together with an increasing health consciousness of the
people. However, given the high rental charges, escalating
operation costs, and severe competition, the future of the
healthcare business will be as challenging. The success of our
business lies in a combination of fundamentals: the quality and
comprehensive range of our products, the professionalism and
good service of our staff, the careful selection of shops with
good location and easy accessibility to our target customers.
Our aim is to achieve a significant market share in this
competitive industry.
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SUMMARY OF RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the turnover of Hanison
Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) was HK$1,234.7 million,
being 70.73% higher than the turnover of HK$723.2 million for
the year ended 31 March 2011.

Despite the increase in turnover, the Group recorded a
decrease in consolidated profit from HK$176.0 million
(restated) for the last financial year to HK$128.2 million for
this financial year. The drop was mainly attributable to the fact
that the gain on change in fair value of investment properties
has been less drastic in this financial year as compared with
that of the last financial year. Another reason for the decrease
is that Hanison has just launched the sale of Eight College (a
wholly-owned luxurious residential development of the Group in
Kowloon Tong) in early 2012, hence can only record the sale of
two units.

The basic earnings per share for the year was HK26.3 cents,
compared to HK36.1 cents (restated) last year.

As at 31 March 2012, the net asset value amounted to
HK$1,051.3 million (2011: HK$940.2 million (restated)),
representing an increase of 11.82% over last year. Net asset
value per share at 31 March 2012 was HK$2.16 (2011:
HK$1.93 (restated)).
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GROUP LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are regularly
reviewed.

For day-to-day liquidity management and to maintain flexibility
in funding, the Group has access to banking facilities with an
aggregate amount of HK$1,286.8 million (HK$831.8 million
was secured by first charges over certain land and buildings,
investment properties, properties under development and
properties held for sale of the Group), of which HK$734.3
million loans have been drawn down and approximately
HK$119.9 million has been utilised mainly for the issuance of
letters of credit and performance bonds as at 31 March 2012.
The bank loans under these banking facilities bear interests at
prevailing market interest rates.

The Group follows a prudent policy in managing its cash
balance, and endeavours to maintain its sound cash-flow
generating capability, its ability to take on investments and
acquisition projects, in order to enhance shareholder wealth.
The total cash and bank balances of the Group amounted
to HK$184.9 million as at 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$215.9
million), and accounted for 11.4% of the current assets (2011:
15.7%).
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During the year, the Group has a net cash outflow of HK$116.9
million in its operating activities (mainly due to the increase in
debtors, deposits and prepayments and progress payments
receivables and the decrease in amounts payable on contract
work, netting off the increase in trade and other payables), a
net cash outflow of HK$16.8 million in its investing activities
(mainly due to acquisition cost paid for a jointly controlled
entity, netting off dividend received from jointly controlled
entities and proceeds received from disposal of investment
properties), and a net cash inflow of HK$103.2 million in its
financing activities (mainly due to new bank loans raised,
netting off dividends paid to shareholders and repayment
of bank loans). As a result, the cash and bank balances
decreased, while the bank borrowings increased. Net bank
borrowings (total bank borrowings less total cash and bank
balances) amounted to HK$549.4 million at 31 March 2012
(2011: net bank borrowings of HK$394.7 million). Accordingly,
the gearing ratio of the Group, calculated on the basis of the
Group's net bank borrowings to shareholders’ funds, was
52.3% (2011: 42.0% (restated)). The net current assets have
decreased by HK$36.4 million to HK$407.3 million as at the
year-end date and the current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was 1.34 times (2011: 1.47 times).

With its cash holdings and available banking facilities, the
Group’s liquidity position will remain healthy in the coming
year, with sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations,
operation and future development requirements.
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TREASURY POLICY

The aim of the Group’s treasury policy is to minimise its
exposure to fluctuations in the exchange rate and not to engage
in any highly leveraged or speculative derivative products.
Treasury transactions unrelated to underlying financial exposure
are not undertaken. Foreign currency exposures of the Group
arise mainly from the purchase of goods. The Group will
determine if any hedging is required, on an individual basis,
depending upon the size and nature of the exposure, and the
prevailing market circumstances.

In order to enhance the deployment of internal funds with
maximum benefit, to achieve better risk control, and to
minimise cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities are
centralised and scrutinised by the top management.

The surplus cash which is generally placed with reputable
financial institutions is mostly denominated in Hong Kong
dollar. Most of the income, expenses, assets and liabilities of
the Group are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group
therefore does not have any significant exposure to gains or
losses arising from the movement of foreign currency exchange
rate against the Hong Kong dollar.

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

At the year-end date, shareholders’ funds of the Group were
HK$1,051.3 million including reserves of HK$1,002.6 million,
an increase of HK$111.2 million from HK$891.4 million
(restated) at 31 March 2011. On that basis, the consolidated
net asset value of the Group as at 31 March 2012 was
HK$2.16 per share, compared to the consolidated net asset
value of HK$1.93 per share (restated) at 31 March 2011.
Increase in shareholders’ funds was mainly attributable to
profits retained after the payments of dividends during the year.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group intends to keep an appropriate mix of equity and
debt to ensure an efficient capital structure over time. During
the year under review, the Group has borrowed Hong Kong
dollar loans amounting to HK$734.3 million from the banks (at
31 March 2011: HK$610.6 million). The borrowings have been
used as general working capital for financing the properties
for development and investment purposes over the years. The
maturity profile of the loans spread over a period of seven
years with HK$496.5 million repayable within the first year,
HK$1.0 million repayable within the second year, HK$211.8
million repayable within third to fifth years and HK$25.0 million
repayable more than five years. Bank loans that are repayable
more than one year after the end of the reporting period but
contain a repayment on demand clause with carrying amount
of HK$237.8 million have been classified as current liabilities.
Interest is based on HIBOR plus a competitive margin.

MAJOR ACQUISITIONS

On 15 April 2011, the Group entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement to acquired 100% of
the issued share capital of Wisdom Mount Investment
Limited (“Wisdom Mount”) for a cash consideration of
RMB79,872,000 (approximately HK$95,976,000) and a
contingent consideration of RMB11,962,000 (approximately
HK$14,253,000).

Wisdom Mount, incorporated in British Virgin Islands, is an
investment holding company which owns 49% equity interest
in BERLZEMEABPR AR Haining Jiafeng Real Estate
Development Limited (“Haining Jiafeng”). The Group and the
other joint venturer have the right to appoint the same number of
directors of Haining Jiafeng and all of the strategic financial and
operating decisions require unanimous consent of the Group and
the other joint venturer. Accordingly, the Group exercises joint
control over Haining Jiafeng with the other joint venturer. Haining
Jiafeng is engaged in property development, which owns the
land use right and has the right to develop and construct office
premises on the land located in Haining, the PRC. The vendor,
Clear Shine is an indirect 65% owned subsidiary of Mingly
Corporation, an indirect subsidiary of a substantial shareholder
of, and has significant influence over, the Company. The
acquisition has been completed on 30 June 2011.
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COLLATERAL

As at 31 March 2012, certain leasehold land and buildings,
investment properties, properties under development for sale
and properties held for sale of the Group, at the carrying
value of approximately HK$898.5 million (at 31 March 2011:
HK$816.5 million), were pledged to the banks to secure the
Hong Kong dollar loans of HK$464.3 million (at 31 March
2011: HK$365.3 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2004, legal actions in respect
of allegations of copyright infringement and defamation have
been taken against certain subsidiaries of the Company
carrying on its health products business. No further steps
have been taken against the Group in respect of such actions
after the court hearing for directions to appoint experts and
exchange witness statements since 2004. At 31 March 2012,
the directors are of the opinion that in view of the uncertainty, it
is not practicable to assess the financial effect.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following
commitments:
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Authorised but not contracted for

At the balance sheet date, the Group had an obligation to fund
HK$231,500,000 (2011: HK$231,500,000), representing
23.63% (2011: 23.63%) of the anticipated project costs for the
joint development of a site in So Kwun Wat, Hong Kong.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 6 February 2012, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to acquire from an independent third
party a piece of land at Tong Yan San Tsuen, Yuen Long for a
cash consideration of HK$69,000,000. The land was acquired
for development purpose. A deposit of HK$10,350,000 was
paid during the reporting period. The remaining purchase price
balance of HK$58,650,000 was paid and the acquisition has
been completed on 7 May 2012.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group is implementing a manpower policy that aims to
maximise the output of existing staff resources in order to
achieve productivity gains. We believe that through improving
our staff's job-related competencies, our overall operational
efficiency can be improved without the need for substantial
increase in headcount.

The number of full time monthly employees of the Group,
excluding its jointly controlled entities, was around 736 (of
which 166 employees were in Mainland China) as at 31 March
2012. In addition to salary payments, other benefits include
provident fund schemes, discretionary bonuses, on-the-job
training, education sponsorship subsidies, a medical insurance
scheme, a group life and personal accident insurance scheme.

Employees and directors are remunerated according to
individual and the Group's performance, industry trends,
prevailing market conditions, the nature of the job and value
creation. The Group recruits and promotes individuals based
on their development potential, merits and competencies, and
ensures that their remuneration packages are at a reasonable
market level. All directors, full time employees and consultants
of the Group are entitled to participate in the share option
scheme of the Company. The principal terms of the share
option scheme are summarised in the Report of the Directors.
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COEEQRATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERKREE

Good corporate governance practices are crucial to enhancing
shareholder value. With this in mind, the Directors of the
Company are keen on maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. This is reflected in terms of a quality Board of
Directors (“Board”) and the emphasis on transparency and
accountability. Throughout the year ended 31 March 2012,
the Company has complied with all the Code Provisions of the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as
set out in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(“Listing Rules”) which was in effect before 1 April 2012,
except for the deviations set out below in respect of which
remedial steps for compliance have been taken or considered
reasons are given below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
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The Company acknowledges the important role of its Board
in providing effective leadership and direction to the Group’s
businesses, and ensuring transparency and accountability of
business operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:—

1. THE BOARD
1.1 The Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group's
businesses, and assumes responsibility for strategy
formulation, corporate governance and performance
monitoring. It develops and reviews the Group’s
strategies and policies, formulates business plans
and evaluates performance of the operating
divisions against agreed budgets and targets
through regular discussion on key and appropriate
issues in a timely manner. It also exercises a
number of reserved powers, including: approval of
annual and interim results and significant changes
in accounting policy or capital structure, internal
control system, material transactions (in particular
those which may involve conflict of interests),
major capital projects, setting Group remuneration
policy, dividend policy, appointment of Directors,
supervision of management and other significant
financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are delegated to the
Managing Director and the senior management,
who fulfill their duties within their scope of
authority and responsibility. Divisional heads are
responsible for different aspects of the businesses.
Major functions delegated to management include
preparation of annual and interim results, execution
of business strategies and initiatives adopted by
the Board, implementation of an adequate internal
control system and compliance with the relevant
statutory requirements.
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1.2

All Directors are kept informed of major changes
that may affect the Group’s businesses on a timely
basis, and can avail themselves of the advice and
services of the Company Secretary so that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed. Each Director can have recourse to
independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company’s expense, upon making
request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities.

Board Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance of skills and experience desirable
for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making. The biographies
of the Directors (and their relationships, if any)
are set out on pages 72 to 79 of this annual
report, which demonstrates a diversity of skills,
expertise, experience and qualifications. There
is no relationship between the Chairman and the
Managing Director. During the year ended 31 March
2012, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors.
One of the independent non-executive directors,
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting or related
financial management expertise.
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The Board of Directors of the Company comprises
the following Directors:—

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Managing Director)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)
Dr. Lam Chat Yu
Mr. Shen Tai Hing (retired with effect from
1 April 2012)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman)
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson

Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Pak Joe

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter

Dr. Sun Tai Lun

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed
in all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to
time.

Coming from diverse business and professional
backgrounds, the Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wealth
of expertise and experiences to the Board, which
contributes to the success of the Group. Through
active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict
of interests and serving on Board committees, all
of them make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

All Independent Non-executive Directors are free
from any business or other relationships with the
Company. The Company has received written
annual confirmation of independence from each
Independent Non-executive Director in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has assessed their independent and concluded
that all Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent within the meaning of the Listing Rules.
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1.3 Appointment and Re-election of

Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. The Non-executive Directors
and the Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company are not appointed for a specific
term. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company amended on 2 August 2005, at each
annual general meeting of the Company, one-third
of the Directors, including Executive, Non-executive
and Independent Non-executive Directors shall
retire from office by rotation, and every Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the corporate governance practices of the Company
are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

The Company established a Nomination Committee
on 20 March 2012 to deal with matters in relation to
the appointment and re-election of Directors.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination
Committee will identify suitable individuals by
making reference to criteria including the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal
integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other
relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
New Directors are sought mainly through referrals or
internal promotion.

The Company’s circular sent together with this
annual report contains detailed information of the
Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

52 HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2011/2012

1.3 EEZEEREE

TFRIEAL VR EIENTERTNE
EEBEEMEH WEAESER-
KRB ZIERITRBILIERITES
WEmIETER - BERBEAQTRN
“EERFNAZ—BEBIEN A
BERM@L REERREFAE

FEREEZ=0—FF B8EH
TEE ERITES RBILIENTT
EEARRESR &%%%iﬁf—
DEZFRE-R-ARARARE
EERHEREARR Tm%am
BRI CEEGTRTAMNEE
Efko

ARFR-E——F=A=FAK
UREZEERURRAS(IRER
ERERZE

EEFEATR REEREEHKS
REBNE REERRKREANT
BE - R FEXRAE - EAMIE B
BENHNER ARrNFEERA
BOERMBOUERE -MEETR
BN RAFRATASTE

ARRRERAFR—HFL A
A - B R A FED 5 4T A AR
REFASPETEREEOHM
B o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 13 &6 R

1.4 Board Proceedings 1.4 EEEWNEE
The Board held five meetings during the year BHE-_E2——F=-A=+—HIF
ended 31 March 2012 and the principal businesses B EFeHBETRANGHE TERE
transacted include:— BEFEIN | : —
e Assessing business performance and planning o  MEFEBRI G WEBIRKE
future business directions; FEEER M
e Approving interim and final results and o  REPHIRFREEMBE:
reports;
e Approving business acquisition and property o WEXEBWERMERS:
transactions;
e Determining payment of dividend; and e AEREBZIKE: K
e Approving the continuing connected e HEREHERS-
transactions.
The individual attendance record of each Director UTREE-_T——F=/=+—
at Board meetings during the year ended 31 March BEFE EANEELRESSH
2012 is set out below:— HER s —
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HERE, Percentage
Name of Directors EEng =1 G Batk
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson EMBEIE (TFE)* 5/5 100%
(Chairman)*
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart THBELE (EFHLIE) 5/5 100%
(Managing Director)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager) &t %ot (4845 1E ) 5/5 100%
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson* BB E 5/5 100%
Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin* & /@54 * 3/5 60%
Mr. Chan Pak Joe* BRAATE LA 5/5 100%
Dr. Lam Chat Yu WEFIEL 4/5 80%
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter* 2 RiE L 5/5 100%
Mr. Shen Tai Hing (retired with L RZBHRAE (R =ZF——4F 4/5 80%
effect from 1 April 2012) P94 —HRE)
Dr. Sun Tai Lun® FRmiEL? 5/5 100%
* Non-executive Director N 3'5%’_”?%%
# Independent Non-executive Director ! BYIFRTES

FRSAIEIE AR AR | 2011/20125F
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Annual meeting schedules are normally made
available to the Directors in advance. Notices of
regular Board meetings are given to all the Directors
at least 14 days before the meetings. For other
Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information are sent to all
the Directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors
apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access
to the senior management whenever necessary. The
Directors receive a regular supply of information
about the business activities, financial highlights
and operations review so that they are well informed
prior to participation in Board meetings.

The Financial Controller attended all regular
Board meetings and when necessary, other Board
and committee meetings to advise on business
developments, financial and accounting matters,
statutory compliance, corporate governance and
other major aspects of the Company.

According to current Board practice, any transaction
with a material amount will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also
contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving transactions in which such
Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) have a material interest.
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1.5 Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as the guideline for securities
transactions by Directors and employees who
are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 March 2012. No incident
of non-compliance of the Model Code by the
employees was noted by the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING
DIRECTOR

The positions of the Chairman and Managing Director
are held by Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Wong
Sue Toa, Stewart respectively. Code Provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code stipulates that the division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Managing Director should
be set out in writing. Power and authority are not
concentrated in one individual and all major decisions
are made in consultation with members of the Board
and appropriate Board committees, as well as senior
management. On 20 March 2012, the Board has adopted
a set of written terms setting out the roles and duties of
the Chairman and the Managing Director.

The Chairman provides leadership for the effective
functioning of the Board in the overall strategic planning
and development of the Group. With the support of the
Managing Director and senior management, the Chairman
is also responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at
Board meetings.
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The Managing Director focuses on implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved by the Board.
He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management
and operations. The Managing Director is also responsible
for formulating the organisational structure, control

ERRREEEYTKESSMENR
B BRMEE - AEARFRENE
B 2E RN INA B RE QR AEBE
B EERGRABNERFMZE AR
EEFEEHE-

systems and internal procedures and processes for the
Board's approval.

3. REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 3. FIMZEEE

The Company set up the Remuneration Committee in KRBIRNZZEZMF+ = A FH MR

December 2004 which replaced the Bonus Committee Be DRRRZZEZE—F+ZAKIA

established in December 2001. Membership of the TCAEEG - HFWE ClAE’JﬁJZE&/H\HjFﬁf

Remuneration Committee and the individual attendance FMEZEgeRMNLEENT:

record at Remuneration Committee Meetings are as

follows:—

Attendance/
Number of
Meetings

Name of FMEES HERE Percentage

Remuneration Committee Members ~ K E#H & SRYE Bat

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson EMELE 0/3 0%
(ceased to be a member with (B =—ZF——F=H_-+HF
effect from 20 March 2012) THEFHKE)

Mr. Chan Pak Joe BRA|E S £ 3/3 100%

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 2T RiE L 3/3 100%

Dr. Sun Tai Lun FEARfmigL 3/3 100%
(appointed as Remuneration Commitiee (8 —ZF——F=H -+ H#

Chairman with effect from 20 March BZEAIRHFNESSF/E)
2012)

Mr. Tai Sai Ho itz EE N/A N/A
(appointed as a member with (RZF—=—F=H=+H ~iE A TERA
effect from 20 March 2012) EEZERKE)

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart FiExLAE 3/3 100%
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The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include formulating remuneration policy
and practices and determining the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors and the senior
management and performance-based remuneration.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
ensuring that no Director or any of his associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) will participate in deciding
his own remuneration. The committee shall consult the
Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company
about its recommendations on remuneration policy and
remuneration packages.

In determining the remuneration, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed background information such as key
economic indicators, market/sector trend, headcount and
staff costs.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during
the year ended 31 March 2012 and performed the
following works:—

o Reviewing and determining the change of
remuneration package for the Executive Directors
and senior management and the change of
remuneration package for other employees of the
Group for the year commencing 1 April 2012; and

° Approving the maximum bonus pool and the actual
bonus amount to be distributed to the Executive
Directors, senior management and other employees
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011.
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4. AUDIT COMMITTEE 4.

The Audit Committee of the Company has been
established since December 2001. Membership of the
Audit Committee and the individual attendance record at
Audit Committee meetings are as follows:—

E%ZRE
ARANBRERGN -TT—F1=
AR BREEGKEREHFERKE
BEEERNTHMET: —

Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HERE, Percentage
Name of Audit Committee Members BHXZESHXEHSR SR8 E Bat
Mr. Chan Pak Joe BRA[E S £ 2/2 100%
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 2T RiE L 2/2 100%
(appointed as Audit Committee (B=ZF—=—F=H=+H
Chairman with effect from BZFRERLZESL/E)
20 March 2012)
Dr. Sun Tai Lun FEARfmigL 2/2 100%

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a partner
or former partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the
Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:—

° Reviewing the financial statements and reports and
considering any significant or unusual items raised
by the qualified accountant or external auditors
before submission to the Board;

o Making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors, approving their remuneration and
terms of engagement and reviewing and monitoring
the external auditors’ independence and objectivity;

° Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group's financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system and
associated procedures; and

o Reviewing the Group’s operating, financial and
accounting policies and practices.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
and the major works performed are as follows:—

o Reviewing and recommending for the Board’s
approval the financial results and reports for the
year ended 31 March 2011 and for the six months
ended 30 September 2011;

o Reviewing the continuing connected transactions of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2011;

o Recommending to the Board of the re-appointment
of external auditors for the year ended 31 March
2012; and

o Reviewing certain aspects of the internal control
system of the Group.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31
March 2012 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE 5.

The Nomination Committee of the Company was
established on 20 March 2012. Membership of the
Nomination Committee is as follows:-

Name of
Nomination Committee Members

RAFE BERZEGHETMREH
TERESHEMT: —

« BREREBEFSREBE-T
——#=A=t-ALFERBE
—E——FAAS+AIAEAN
SRS
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M o
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FEZFERGECEECZEEEMN-

REZEEHENSR

Mr. Chan Pak Joe (appointed as Nomination Committee Chairman
with effect from 20 March 2012)

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter

Dr. Sun Tai Lun

Mr. Tai Sai Ho

Mr. Wong Sue Toa Stewart
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:—

° Reviewing structure, size and composition
(including skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

° |dentifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship;

o Assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors of the Company; and

o Making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors of the
Company and succession planning for directors of
the Company in particular the Chairman and the
Managing Director.

OTHER BOARD COMMITTEES

In addition to delegating specific responsibilities to the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee, the Board also established
two board committees in April 2002 to handle the
Company’s general business and acquisition/disposal
of property within a designated threshold respectively,
namely the General Business Committee and the Property
Acquisition/Disposal Committee. Currently, the two
committees comprise all the Executive Directors of the
Company. During the year ended 31 March 2012, the
General Business Committee approved the transfer of
shares by way of written resolutions.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements. In preparing the financial
statements, Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
have been adopted, appropriate accounting policies have
been applied, and reasonable and prudent judgments
and estimates have been made.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditors on
the financial statements of the Company are set out in the
“Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 94 to 96 of this
annual report.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2012 are set out
below:—

7.
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HK$
ok
Audit services EZ RS 1,800,000
Non-audit services I EZIRTE
Reviewing the financial results and EWEHZEZ_ZT——FNLA=TH
report for the six months ended IERNBE R EE RS
30 September 2011 320,000
Others Htb 31,700
Total @ 2,151,700

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate
internal control system to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to safeguard assets, to prevent and detect
fraud and error, and to ensure the quality and timely
preparation of internal and external reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
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The Company has maintained a tailored governance
structure with clear lines of responsibility and appropriate
delegation of responsibility and authority to the senior
management, who are accountable for the conduct and
performance of the respective business divisions under
their supervision.

The Chairman, Managing Director and General Manager
review monthly management reports on the financial
results, statistics and project progress of each business.
Monthly management meetings are held to review
business performance against budgets, forecasts and
risk management strategies. Any major variances are
highlighted for investigation and control purposes.

A centralized cash management system is maintained to
oversee the Group’s investment and borrowing activities.
There are established guidelines and procedures for
the approval and control of expenditures. The aim is
to keep the expenditure level in line with the annual
budget and within the cost budget of an approved
project. Expenditures are subject to overall budget control
with approval levels set by reference to the level of
responsibility of each manager and officer. Depending on
the nature and value, procurement of certain goods and
services are required to go through the tendering process.
No individual in the Group, irrespective of their rank and
position, are allowed to dominate the entire expenditure
process from commitment to payment.

During the year under review, the Board confirmed
that there were no significant weaknesses and areas
for improvement have been identified and appropriate
measures taken.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum
for exchange of views between the shareholders and the
Board. The Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen
of the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee, or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, and where
applicable, the independent Board committee, are
available to answer questions at the shareholders’
meetings.

Code Provision E.1.2 provides that the Chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. The
Chairman of the Board, Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson,
was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 19 September 2011 as he had other
important business engagement. However, the Managing
Director, present at the annual general meeting, took the
chair of that meeting in accordance with Article 78 of the
Articles of Association of the Company.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election
of individual Directors.

To ensure compliance with the CG Code, the notice of the
meeting, the annual report and the circular containing
information on the proposed resolutions will be sent to
shareholders at least twenty clear business days before
the meeting. Voting at the 2012 AGM will be by way of a
poll. The results of the poll will be published on the day
of shareholders’ meeting by posting on both the Stock
Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.
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The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Enquiries from investors
are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at www.hanison.com, where extensive
information and updates on the Company’'s business
developments and operations, financial information and
other information are posted.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries, associate and jointly
controlled entities are set out in notes 46, 19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 97.

An interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per share amounting to
HK$7,314,000 were paid to the shareholders during the year.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK2.7 cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2012
amounting to HK$13,164,000 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the registers of members on 5 September
2012. The proposed dividend will be paid on 20 September
2012 following approval at the annual general meeting.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements during the year in the investment
properties of the Group are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2012 comprised the aggregate
of share premium, dividend reserve and retained profits of
HK$330,355,000 (2011: HK$330,920,000).

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, dividends
may be declared and paid out of the profits of the Company,
realised or unrealised, or from any reserves set aside from
profits which the Directors of the Company determine is no
longer needed. With the sanction of an ordinary resolution,
dividends may also be declared and paid out of share premium
account subject to a solvency test as set out in section 34 of the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s former share option scheme was adopted on
3 January 2002 and was terminated on 21 September 2011.
Pursuant to the Company’'s new share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) which was adopted and became effective on 21
September 2011, all directors (including independent non-
executive directors), full-time employees and consultants of the
Company, its subsidiaries and/or its associates are eligible to
participate in the Scheme.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the participants who
have been granted options under the Scheme to subscribe for
ordinary shares in the Company with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interest in the Company and to encourage them
to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

(@) Maximum number of shares available for
issuance

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of approval of the Scheme. A total of 48,755,967
shares of the Company is available for issue under the
Scheme which represents 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of approval of the Scheme
and the date of this report.

The overall limit on the number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from
time to time.
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(b) Maximum entitlement of each participant

(1)

(2)

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant (including both exercised and
unexercised options) under the Scheme or any
other share option schemes adopted by the
Company in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the shares in issue unless otherwise approved
by shareholders of the Company.

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in rule 1.01 of the Listing
Rules), would result in the shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted to such person in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of the grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
shares in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares on date of grant in
excess of HK$5.0 million,

such grant of option shall be subject to prior
approval of the shareholders of the Company who
are not connected persons of the Company as
defined in the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

(b)
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

Within ten years from the date on which an option is
granted or such shorter period as the Board of Directors
or the relevant committee thereof may specify.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised

At the time of granting an option, the Board of Directors or
the relevant committee thereof must specify the minimum
period(s) and/or achievement of performance targets, if
any, for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

Options may be exercised at any time after the minimum
periods of time held and/or achievement of performance
targets, if any, specified in the terms of grant at the time of
grant.

Amount payable upon acceptance of the
Option

A consideration of HK$1 shall be paid upon the
acceptance of the option.

No option has been granted under the former share
option scheme and the Scheme since its adoption.
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() Basis of determining exercise price of the
Option

The exercise price of the option shall be no less than the
higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a business day;

(i) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five Stock
Exchange business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and

(iii)  the nominal value of the shares of the Company on
the date of grant.

(g9) Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on
20 September 2021 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no outstanding
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at
31 March 2012 and there has been no issue or exercise of any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during
the year.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:—

Chairman and Non-executive Director:
Cha Mou Sing, Payson

Executive Directors:

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Managing Director)

Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)

Lam Chat Yu

Shan Tai Hing (retired with effect from 1 April 2012)

Non-executive Directors:
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Chan Pak Joe

Lau Tze Yiu, Peter

Sun Tai Lun

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Cha. Mou Sing, Payson, Mr. Cha Mou Daid,
Johnson and Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin shall retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. All
remaining directors continue in office.

The term of office of each Independent Non-executive Director
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, aged 69, is the chairman and non-
executive director of the Company. He joined the Group in 1989
and has over 40 years of experience in property development.
He is the chairman and executive director of HKR International
Limited (“HKRI”) (a controlling shareholder of the Company).
Mr. Cha is also a director of Asia Television Limited, an
independent non-executive director of New World Development
Company Limited (“NWDCL"), Eagle Asset Management (CP)
Limited (manager of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust
(“CREIT")) and Hongkong International Theme Parks Limited
(owner and operator of Hong Kong Disneyland Resort), and a
director of a number of public and private companies in Hong
Kong and overseas. HKRI, NWDCL and CREIT are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Cha holds an honorary doctorate degree
of Social Science from City University of Hong Kong. He is a
member of the Eleventh National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and a Justice of the Peace. He
is a brother of Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and an uncle of
Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, both of whom are the non-
executive directors and the deemed substantial shareholders
of the Company under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”). Mr. Cha is also a director of CCM Trust
(Cayman) Limited (“CCM Trust”), a substantial shareholder
of the Company under Part XV of the SFO and the executive
chairman and CEO of Mingly Corporation (“Mingly”), a
company under the control of members of the Cha Family.
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Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart, aged 66, is the managing director
of the Company and joined the Group in 1989. Before he joined
the Group, he was a director for several listed companies and a
director of HKRI (a company listed on the Stock Exchange and
a controlling shareholder of the Company) until his resignation
in December 2001. Mr. Wong is also a director of all the
subsidiaries of the Group. He has extensive experience in the
construction and real estate fields. Mr. Wong holds a bachelor
degree in science from San Diego State University and a master
degree of science in civil engineering from Carnegie-Mellon
University in the United States of America. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM).

Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, aged 60, was appointed as
a non-executive director in November 2001. He is a non-
executive director of HKRI (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange and a controlling shareholder of the Company)
and a director of Mingly (a company under the control of
members of the Cha Family). Mr. Cha is also an independent
non-executive director of Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited
and a non-executive director of China International Capital
Corporation Limited. Mr. Cha is active in many non-profit
making organizations including serving on the Counsel and
Finance Committee of the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He is a brother of Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and an uncle
of Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, both of whom are the non-
executive directors and the deemed substantial shareholders of
the Company under Part XV of the SFO.
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Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, aged 38, is a non-executive
director and joined the Group in November 2001. He is an
executive director of HKRI (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange and a controlling shareholder of the Company).
He gained his experience in hotel and commercial real
estate development as a business development executive
with Mandarin Oriental Hotel Group from 1995 to 1999 and
has been an executive in various capacities with HKRI since
2002. Mr. Cha is a non-official member of the Harbourfront
Commission of the HKSAR Government and had served as
a non-official member of the Business Facilitation Advisory
Committee of the HKSAR Government between 2009 and
2011. He holds a bachelors degree in international politics and
economics from Middlebury College and a master degree in
business administration from the Stanford Graduate School of
Business in the United States of America. Mr. Cha is a nephew
of Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson,
both of whom are the non-executive directors and the deemed
substantial shareholders of the Company under Part XV of the
SFO.

Mr. Chan Pak Joe, aged 59, was appointed an independent
non-executive director of the Company in November 2001. He
has been an executive director of The Luk Hoi Tong Company
Limited for over 28 years. Mr. Chan is the founder of the “Li
Zhi Bursary” of Tsinghua University in the PRC. He is also the
Vice-Chairman of “Love Relay Grant-in-Aid” of Fudan University
in the PRC since September 2005. His community services
include having served as a director of YMCA and as a member
of the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee of the
Hong Kong Housing Society.
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Dr. Lam Chat Yu, aged 60, is an executive director of the
Company. He joined the Group in November 2001 and has
more than 20 years of investment experience in the technology
sector, including 15 years in Silicon Valley, California, the
United States of America and over 15 years in Asia. Dr. Lam is
also a non-executive director of Mingly Corporation (a company
under the control of members of Cha Family) and an alternate
director of Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited for Mr. Cha Mou
Daid, Johnson. Dr. Lam earned his doctorate in management
from The Sloan School, Massachusetts Institute of Technology.
Prior to joining the Group, Dr. Lam was a Vice President at
C.M. Capital Corporation in the United States of America,
where he specialised in software venture companies and listed
technology companies in the United States of America.

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter, aged 53, was appointed an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2004. Dr. Lau is an Associate Professor of the
Department of Accountancy and Law of the Hong Kong
Baptist University and an Associate Dean and BBA Program
Director of the School of Business of the Hong Kong Baptist
University. He holds a bachelor degree in commerce from
Saint Mary's University in Canada, a master degree in business
administration from Dalhousie University in Canada and a
doctorate degree of philosophy in accounting from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Ontario in Canada (CA), a member
of The Certified Management Accountants Society of British
Columbia and Yukon in Canada (CMA), a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (FCPA),
and an associate member of The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong (ATIHK). He was also a president (1992-1993) of the City
Lions Club of Hong Kong.
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Dr. Sun Tai Lun, aged 61, was appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company in November 2001. He is
the chairman of China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings
Limited and an independent non-executive director of Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Dr. Sun has over 36 years of experience
in the photographic products industry. He holds a bachelor
degree in pharmacy from the University of Oklahoma, the
United States of America, and a doctorate degree of philosophy
in business administration from Southern California University
for Professional Studies, the United States of America. He is
the Vice Patron of the Community Chest of Hong Kong since
1999, the Court member of the City University of Hong Kong,
the Honorary Fellow of the City University of Hong Kong and
Chapter Honoree of the City University of Hong Kong Chapter of
Beta Gamma Sigma. Dr. Sun also serves as the chairman of the
Advisory Committee on Travel Agents. Dr. Sun was awarded the
Bronze Bauhinia Star in 1999 and appointed as The Justice of
the Peace in 2002.

Mr. Tai Sai Ho, aged 60, is an executive director and the
general manager of the Group. Mr. Tai joined the Group in
1989 and has over 37 years of experience in public and private
sectors of the building and civil engineering industries in Hong
Kong. He is also a director of all the subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Tai holds a master degree in business administration from
Asia International Open University in Macau, a master degree in
construction management from University of New South Wales
in Australia and a bachelor degree in civil engineering from
National Cheng Kung University in Taiwan. Mr. Tai is a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors (FHKIoD) and the Hong
Kong Institute of Construction Managers (FHKICM).
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Senior Management SREEE

Mr. Cheung Hok Chuen, aged 42, joined the Group in 1999. EE224%&4 M+ _5H R—ANAAFEMAK
He is a director of the building materials division of the Group EE-BARNEBEZEMBIEZES EED
and has over 17 years of experience in the building industry in ~ BER 2B+ F&B - HIEEEFBSAZ]
Hong Kong. He holds a BSc in Surveying from the University of ~ S E3I8E 4 Ef7 o

Hong Kong.

Mr. Chow Ka Fung, Matthew, aged 43, joined the Group  BAREL4E W+=mp R—ANLNAFEMAL
in 1998. He is a director of certain divisions of the Group (@ - HAKRKEBETHMEE SEME
and oversees the property development division, property — ZEE[ - WERE LMY ERIBREIEL - &
investment division as well as property agency and ERNEBERTRZMERR KE HEHE B
management division. Mr. Chow specialises in property IEREREEE WEEH - TELH -KFH
development, investment, marketing, management and project EAEBETRELI MEHELTEM - FRERTE
management in Hong Kong and the PRC for more than 20  BEIEMAME RN TMBESEH (B
years. He holds a bachelor degree in land management HIE) - KINAREEREFIEMESSS .
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Chow is a  HEEMHZEeeENESIEMEESEE8 -
Registered Professional Surveyor (General Practice) under the

Surveyor Registration Board (RPS). He is also a member of the

Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS), a member of

the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (MCIArb) and a member of

Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (MHKIS).

Mr. Chuk Kin Lun, aged 61, joined the Group in 1989. Heisa  WE@Bi%E4E ~+—5 R— AL/ \NEMAK
director of the construction division, building materials division B -HANEEELEL FEMIRELM
and interior and renovation division of the Group. He has over ~ RMEISZEEZ - HEFB AL NILLEEFTN
32 years of experience in planning, estimating, tendering and ~ T ARTREZHE HE - KERTEAER
quantity surveying in the public and private sectors of the TEZEEBM=1+ _F&B -NALEHFE LRI
building and civil engineering industries in Hong Kong. Mr. BLEa - WABELEEMET s g8
Chuk holds a bachelor degree in civil engineering and is a

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers

(MHKICM).

Ms. Chung Lai Ling, MaryAnne, aged 50, joined the Group SEEBXR LT A t+5m R_TENFMALE
in 2006. She is a director of the health products division of  [E- - AKREBREERICES NEST
the Group and has over 25 years of experience in various B EETRBMA 2EE -+ RAFL&RH K
capacities in Hong Kong. She holds a BA in Mathematics for  #F7 York University 5 2 8122 X B2 L 2(7 -
Commerce from York University.
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Mr. Ho Chi Tong, aged 47, joined the Group in 1998. He is a
director of the construction division, building materials division
and interior and renovation division of the Group. He has 25
years of experience in quantity surveying consultancy and
construction contracting. He holds a professional diploma in
quantity surveying from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a Registered Professional Surveyor (QS) under Surveyor
Registration Board (RPS) and a member of The Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS) and Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors (MHKIS).

Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung, aged 46, joined the Group in 2007. He
is a director and the General Manager of the building materials
division of the Group and has over 26 years of experience in the
building industry in Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Lee held the position of the Director of Million Hope Industries
Limited. Mr. Lee holds a Higher Diploma in Mechanical
Engineering.

Mr. Lo Kai Cheong, Casey, aged 61, joined the Group in 1996
and is the Company Secretary and the Financial Controller
of the Group. He is also a director of the building materials
division, interior and renovation division and property agency
and management division of the Group. He has over 28 years
of finance and accounting experience in various industries.
He holds a bachelor of business degree in accounting and a
master degree in business administration from Edith Cowan
University in Australia. Mr. Lo is a member of CPA Australia
(CPA (Aust.)) and a fellowship member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (FCPA) and Association of
International Accountants (FAIA).
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Mr. Lun Tim Ho, aged 53, joined the Group in 1990 and is a
director of the construction division and interior and renovation
division of the Group. Mr. Lun has 29 years of experience
in the construction field. He holds an associateship and a
higher diploma in the building technology and management
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member
of The Chartered Institute of Building (MCIOB), Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM), Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS), The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors (MHKIS), and The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers — Building (MHKIE).

Mr. Yuen Cheuk Kong, aged 52, joined the Group in 1989.
He is a director of the construction division, building materials
division and interior and renovation division of the Group. He
has 30 years of experience in the public and private sectors
of the building and civil engineering industries in Hong
Kong. He holds a diploma in management studies, a post-
experience certificate in building studies and a higher certificate
in structural engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and a bachelor degree in Construction Management
and Economics. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

EEZRM tHERO RESER
/\I*ﬁ

As at 31 March 2012, the interests of the directors and chief HRZZE——F=A=+—H EFNESTH
executive in the shares of the Company as recorded in the ~ ABHEARG ZERMDERMIBEEFRRE
register required to be kept by the Company under Section GBI ZEEXVER 35215 B TR A A T%aﬂﬂﬁlﬁ
352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the HRE EM AR ESHEITHE %X%ZTT
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code Bl ([1Z#<F8I| | ) BHE A RQ ?&FEZEE
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the =T —
“Model Code”) were as follows:—
Long position in shares of the Company RAEAQXRBRBZHFR
Number of ordinary shares Total % of
ZERKRAEE number of issued
ordinary share
Name Capacity Personal Corporate Other shares capital
interests interests interests LRk HB#T
®E % AR NEER HitER BH#EE ROEIHL
Cha Mou Sing, Payson (1) Beneficial owner, 668,830 563,877 107,836,435 109,069,142 22.37%
EHE EREAA note (a) note (b)
(2) interest of controlled corporation and Bi7E(a) Bt zE(b)
REHAR R R
(3) beneficiary of discretionary trusts
BEETzZEA
Cha Mou Daid, Beneficiary of discretionary trusts - - 107,150,200 107,150,200 21.98%
Johnson note (b)
&tz BEEEZERA Btz (b)
Cha Yiu Chung, Beneficiary of discretionary trusts - - 105,150,973 105,150,973 21.57%
Benjamin note (b)
oy BEGETEZERA Bt (b)
Wong Sue Toa, (1) Beneficial owner and 4,090,260 3,106,164 - 7,196,424 1.48%
Stewart ERBEBAR note (c)
TiE (2) interest of controlled corporation fi3E(c)
SEHAR R
Tai Sai Ho Beneficial owner 414,562 - - 414,562 0.09%
it x EnEBEA
Shen Tai Hing (retired with ~ Beneficial owner 9,022 - - 9,022 0.0019%
effect from 1 April 2012)
MAE EREEA
(RZF——#F
HA—HREF)
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Notes: BT 5T

(@)  The shares are held by Accomplished Investments Ltd., in which (@) RIBEESHRAEEOIEXVEL  ZEFRHE—H
the relevant director is deemed to be interested by virtue of Part BEESWR AEA R 2 A F)Accomplished
XV of the SFO. Investments Ltd.35 75 °

(b) These shares are held under certain but not identical (b) ZERMBETTRARNBEELAES  &HE

discretionary trusts, of which Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, Mr. S EMELEERERPEENAETTE
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin are BIEEE BB RmAMBRERZKE -

among the members of the class of discretionary beneficiaries.

(c)  Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart's corporate interests in the Company (c) FHBEBLAEAQNARZARIEZLEBME

arise from the fact that he owns 50% of the share capital of BEAZETRENTSRERRAREE
Executive Plaza Limited, which holds 3,106,164 shares of the A REAE3,106, 1640 8% 17 -
Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, none of the B FXFEEN R—E——F=f=+—
directors and chief executive of the Company or their associates B HEANTEENESTHRABSERSH
held any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying THEEE A+ AR S L HEE &I XVED
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated ok ST BB A S AN T LB RS P ok iR 1 5B
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which £ R B E IE B EEXVER 352K B30 AR D AR
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock BaZEAmEE 2B MAZ AR F Sk EF
Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the AR EE (T3 B EE R EIEMEXVER)
Model Code, or which were recorded in the register required to BIAS 1D ~ MRS R EEAE ST A R o

be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the

SFO.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the directors, or their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the
year.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2012, in addition to those interests as disclosed
above in respect of the directors, the interests of the substantial
shareholders in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO were as
follows:—

BERODBRABESFZRLH

B EXFAIEE RAFREMAER AR
Bl S B AR AT I B 2 B 3 AR R EA e HE 2 AT
K77 NS ARRREFFBARRASAMEAM
AR (BRARES)BSH G MM EEFX
HEBIERM T N\R2FREBAREAR
NAES M F R BITREZIAERN -

TERRZER

W_B——F=A=1—8 BREXHREHN
REFZ M E BRERAR ARG R4
BRAR (A o0 4 18 U2 5 T B 2 e ) SEXVED B
SBHARAAR AVRBHEOITFE 2 B3
MevismT : —

Long position in shares of the Company RAQNBRBRNZIFAE
Number of % of issued
Name Capacity ordinary shares  share capital
BRITRAE
= g4 EERBRH Bak
Great Wisdom Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 238,904,243 49.0%
(“Great Wisdom”) (note 1) E=EAA
(I Great Wisdom |) (Bff&F1)
HKRI (note 1) (1) Beneficial owner and 238,904,552 49.0%
P BB (P REL) ExnAEAR
(2) interest of controlled corporation
REH A E 2 s
CCM Trust (note 2) (1) Trustee and 332,979,637 68.30%

CCM Trust (Ff3E2) ZFEA R

(2) Interest of controlled corporation
RIEFI AT 2w
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Notes:

(D

(2)

Great Wisdom is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HKRI and
therefore HKRI is deemed to be interested in the 238,904,243
shares held by Great Wisdom in accordance with the SFO. Mr.
Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and Mr.
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, all being directors of the Company,
are also directors of HKRI.

These share interests comprise 94,075,085 shares directly held
by CCM Trust, 238,904,552 shares indirectly held through HKRI.
As CCM Trust controls more than one-third of the share capital
of HKRI (held as to approximately 41.48% by CCM Trust), it
is deemed to be interested in the respective share interests
of HKRI. CCM Trust is holding these shares as the trustee of
certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which members
of the Cha Family (comprising, inter alia, Mr. Cha Mou Sing,
Payson, Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and Mr. Cha Yiu Chung,
Benjamin, all being the directors of the Company) are among
the discretionary objects. Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson is also a
director of CCM Trust.

REPORT

GEE

(1

2)

HEE

OF THE DIRECTORS % &

Great WisdomJy EI 2 B[R 2 2 BB A F] -
It - IRIEFH M EEED) - FEBBRHEE AR
Great WisdomF#5 5 2 238,904,243 % i 15

HEER ANRESEWE LA EEE

HERMDEZBEHCCM TrustBEFA Z
94,075,085/% % 17 + 238,904,552/ [ # i i@
PR 2 B - IRCCM Trustiz i &
FRE 2 RAm =22 — (CCM TrustiF B )
41.48% &%) - BMBR AN EEBRFERK
MR EEE R - CCM TrustbAEFEAH H BE
THRRABBERFALERD  ZFETZH
BXEAETEERREXE (EFEEER
BAL BREAERBRBEL BRAR
RIESR) BB ELTECCM Trustz EF -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

During the year, the interests of the directors of the Company
in businesses which compete or were likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the principal businesses of the
Group (the “Competing Business”) as required to be disclosed

pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:—

EERHF

EBHHER

RAFER RAREFNEAREAREETER
BEESEEARFERAARSMN ([5
FUER ) MRE ETRANETRE Z M
EBHHEA RN —

Name of

Name of director = company Nature of interest Competing business

Exns AE BB Mg HmEMER

(Note 1) (Note 2)

(FM$5EL) (B¥zE2)

Cha Mou Sing, HKRI Director of HKRI and a member of the (a) Property development and

Payson class of discretionary beneficiaries of investment

certain but not identical discretionary (b)  Property management,
trusts of which the trustees are deemed leasing and marketing
substantial shareholders of HKRI under services
Part XV of the SFO

BB B 2 B R BEFRES: RETTANGEERZ (@ DEZEEREKRE
MEXRABRZKE MBREZSFR (b)) DEER HER
HEROIEXVE  ZEEFEFEZETA T 3% 1 E R 15

NWDCL

FiE SR

CREIT

BEEXRER

AR R LR BN = 2R

Independent Non-executive Director of
NWDCL

MR 2B IEMITES

Independent Non-executive Director of
Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited,
the manager of CREIT

BEEEERE (BB)ERAR (BEE
REFRIER) 2BIUFNTES
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(a)
(b)

Property development and
investment

Property management,
leasing and marketing
services

MEZERLRE

MEER HERTHHE
& AR %5

Property investment

Property management,
leasing and marketing
services

MERE

MEEER HER
T 3% B R 15
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Name of

Name of director = company Nature of interest Competing business

Espns ACIEE ERME R

(Note 1) (Note 2)

(M3ED) (Ky7E2)

Cha Mou Daid, HKRI Director of HKRI and a member of the (a) Property development and

Johnson class of discretionary beneficiaries of investment

certain but not identical discretionary (b)  Property management,
trusts of which the trustees are deemed leasing and marketing
substantial shareholders of HKRI under services
Part XV of the SFO

EE BB 3 B R BEFEREE: RETTARNGBERZ (@ DEEEREIKRE
E’JI%EE/\ZE%IJZEJZE miRER SR (b)) WEER HER
HERGIEXVED  ZFEFEFEZETA T35 HE B AR 75
WRBHERREFERR

Cha Yiu Chung, HKRI Director of HKRI and a member of the (a) Property development and

Benjamin class of discretionary beneficiaries of investment

certain but not identical discretionary (b)  Property management,
trusts of which the trustees are deemed leasing and marketing
substantial shareholders of HKRI under services
Part XV of the SFO

BiEH B 5 B R %l[@é%%'& ST ARBEREREZ () MEERIKRE
MEXRABRNZKE MBREZISFR (b)) VEER HER
HERAIEXVE  ZEFEFEZETA T 3% 1 JE R 15
WRAHEERREERE

Notes: B 5T

(1) Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and (1) BEREGLE BUEEERBRYILETIAR

Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin are non-executive directors of ET;E%H?:I%%'?ﬁ%iﬁﬂé}ﬁ$ﬁlﬂﬁ%’ﬁ
the Company, who are not involved in the daily management of TE- At - AR A C & HE BB IR
the Group. Accordingly, the Company is capable of carrying its Lt B3R %Iﬁ%fxiﬂ?’&$}?ﬁ”l Qo

business independently of, and at arms length from the above
mentioned competing business.

(2)  Such businesses may be made through subsidiaries, affiliated (2) ZEEBNEBMBARNKBBEARLE
companies or by way of other forms of investments. SFEBEAMIRE A ED -

Saved as disclosed above, none of the directors is interested Br EXFIEEIN BEEENMEMEAEE
in any business apart from the Group's businesses, which ~ ¥ EEBEAEFFENXAEARTIME Y
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, — T %% (BRAEBEEBEIN) PR ER -
with businesses of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group entered
into the following transactions which constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:—

(1) Construction and Renovation Services
Framework Agreement

As HKRI is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and therefore a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules, the various construction transactions
(“Construction Transactions”) and renovation transactions
(“Renovation Transactions”) entered into or to be entered
into between HKRI and its subsidiaries on the one
hand and the members of the Group on the other hand
constitute continuing connected transactions (“Continuing
Connected Transactions with HKRI") for the purposes of
the Listing Rules.

On 20 January 2010, HKRI and the Company entered
into the Construction and Renovation Services Framework
Agreement (“Agreement”) to govern the outline terms
upon which HKRI and its subsidiaries and members of
the Group propose to engage in the various Construction
Transactions and Renovation Transactions during the
three years ending 31 March 2013. An announcement
was published on 20 January 2010 regarding the
Continuing Connected Transactions with HKRI in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

EENSHARBERERGPZE

m
RE T-_F-A=1T—HLEHFE XK

SEETT TIRS  MRE EHRAFELLA
B RERGBERFHEWRERS: —

(1) BERRERBIERGH

HREEFRRARNAT Z TR WH
HREBEEHRAUNSARB ZBEEAL

Bt EMARRIM S - BB R E 8
RAER—TEAREREERS T
EETHHESETZTIREERS ([
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The Agreement, its terms, the transactions contemplated
thereunder and the annual caps (“Cap”) on the total value
of the Continuing Connected Transactions with HKRI
were approved by an ordinary resolution passed at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 22
March 2010.

The Cap and the total income recognised by the Group
in respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions

thag  BARR HIETRETZR S R
T BRBEXSEBFELR (TER])
ER-FT— Tﬁzﬂ_—f—_ﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂ

REEUERRZRABB-

S&

RNBE_T—_F=A=+—HILtFE
A R NANEE B R 2 SRR E

with HKRI for the year ended 31 March 2012 are stated RPN - —
below:—

Income
Recognised by
the Group for
the Year Ended
31 March 2012
BE-ZE——-F
=A=+—H
Type of Transaction Cap LEFER
R5HEH R FAEERIAZWEZ
HK$ HK$
Construction Transactions BERIH 400,000,000 242,000,000
Renovation Transactions RIERS 50,000,000 3,000
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(2) Project Management Service Agreements

On 1 April 2009, a Cross-border Project Management
Service Agreement and a Non-PRC Project Management
Service Agreement (the “Agreements”) were entered
into between Hanison Project Management Limited
(“HPML"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
and the Haining Project Companies (note A) pursuant to
which HPML will provide project management services
in both Hong Kong and the PRC to the Haining Project
Companies (“Project Management Services”).

The Haining Project Companies are indirect subsidiaries
of CCM Trust and on 30 June 2011, the Company has
completed the acquisition to acquire 49% interest in
Haining Jiafeng Real Estate Development Limited through
acquiring the entire share capital of Wisdom Mount
Investments Limited (note B). CCM Trust (as the trustee
of certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which
members of the Cha Family, comprising, inter alia, Mr.
Cha Mou Sing, Payson, Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and
Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, all being the directors of
the Company, are among the discretionary objects) is a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, the
Haining Project Companies are connected persons of
the Company and the provision of Project Management
Services constitutes continuing connected transactions for
the purpose of the Listing Rules.

The transactions for the provision of Project Management
Services are only subject to announcement and reporting
requirements and no independent shareholders’
approval of the Company is required under the Listing
Rules. The Agreements, its terms, the transactions
contemplated thereunder and the annual cap (“Cap”) on
the total value of the continuing connected transactions
(“Continuing Connected Transactions with Haining Project
Companies”) were approved by the board of directors and
an announcement in relation thereto was made on 1 April
2009.

)
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The Cap and the total income recognised by the Group REE-_Z——F=ZA=+—HILFE
in respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions with W EREAEEEGEIEE QAR ZFE
Haining Project Companies for the year ended 31 March BEXSHBNENAT: —

2012 are stated below:—

Income
Recognised

by the Group for
the Year Ended
31 March 2012

BE-ZE—=-F
=A=+-—H
Type of Transaction Cap LEELEEH
X5 %5 LBR Rzl
HK$ HK$
ok ok
Project management services HEEBEERBRS
transactions
®  Project management services e RNARABZEZEZTNGF 5,146,000 4,125,000
income on project management MA—HBHEREME
services transactions with BHBEIRE QA
Haining Project Companies MIEE BEERERS
as defined in the Company’s Sz IB B BB R
announcement dated 1 April g
2009
Effective from 1 April 2012, the Group has entered into a BT —FWA—HE RIEHIEBEEE
new set of agreements for the provision of site supervision BRI ANEE B AR B ARG E] S —
services in addition to Project Management Services. Efhas XHFBHREARFRE
Details of the transaction were made in the Company’s ——HFMA-BHENRER-

announcement published on 2 April 2012.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the
directors engaged the auditor of the Company to perform
certain work on continuing connected transactions of
the Group in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has provided a letter to the directors of the Company and
confirmed that, for the year ended 31 March 2012, the
above continuing connected transactions:—

(a) had received the approval of the directors of the
Company;

(b) had been, in all material aspects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group for
transactions involving the provision of services by
the Group;

(c) had been entered into in accordance with the
terms of the relevant agreements governing such
transactions;

(d) had not exceeded the relevant cap amounts for the
financial year ended 31 March 2012.
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The independent non-executive directors reviewed the
continuing connected transactions described in (1)
and (2) above (collectively the “Continuing Connected
Transactions”) and confirmed that the transactions had
been entered into:—

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to (or
from) independent third parties; and

(i)

(iii) in accordance with the agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the

Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Note:
A.  Haining Project Companies are BZ B XEMERE A
a] (Translation: Haining Fusheng Real Estate Development
Limited); /8E =2 EhEHFR A7 (Translation: Haining
Jiafeng Real Estate Development Limited); /&2 g%~
b 72 A BR A 8] (Translation: Haining Haicheng Real Estate
Development Limited); and /& % /& B # [E A [R A 7
(Translation: Haining Haixing Hotel Development Limited).

BEEREWEARAR  SEIIEEMEERAARL
Y825 | [ AR A Alare indirect subsidiaries of CCM
Trust. HEZLEHZEABR QA is indirect subsidiary of
CCM Trust and a jointly controlled entity of the Company.

B FMTESCEH LMD RQZE
BRER SN (58 [FERERS )%
BERES Y EHRZERS: —

-

(i) RAKEBREXREEENET:

WEBNF =FHZ —REREK
FAEEFENBERNR (Sh) B

BT REZARFET R

(i)

RIBARBHHEAZGEFET HA
NEBRERRMEBEATFASE-

(iii)

B EXPIEEE SN - AR AR E AT B
NREETUARREENEFERL
BEREEENEaMNAFEZEZR
S AR AR JE AL AR B P T 8 AR 30 2 AR AAT 15

-
B & :
A BEREQRESEEREFHEARA

gt

A BERCEHERRAR BEL
BEREMEARARREESHEAEGR

NG
B. HBEERFMEERAR BEIEE

WEERARMEESEBEBRAR
ABCCM Trustl M B A F - B EEE
I E B R A FACCM Trusti# i B A
RIRARAR]Z EREHEEE -
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for about 64% of the turnover of the Group and
the largest customer is an independent third party, accounted
for about 21% of the turnover of the Group. Save as disclosed
above, none of the directors, their respective associates, or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has any
interest in any of the five largest customers of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 March 2012.

The five largest suppliers of the Group in aggregate accounted
for about 17% of the total purchases of the Group for the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in making
mandatory contributions for its staff. Details of charges relating
to the retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

TERERRMER

RAFEE AEBZAAEFPEREEERE
#e4% MEAREPR—BIUE=F HALE
BlEXER21% - fr EXPIREEIN REE
T CF=A=T-HUMBEE HEES
EZ HEBZBMEAL IBEEMAHEALR
RAIRAE% A EZ ERARRRAKEZ AKX
BEP A T -

AEELAHERGAFEASERERR
REILT% °

RIATEFI =&
AEE BB TRER G AEEEFLR

B - B BRKE A AT B IR R 4R
B RR M 42 -

NRFIRE

REBAIRHEARFZ AHEHERLARFE
FARELEHRAURE 2RALIRHED
DR25% 2 AN BIE BT

Bz 118 LR R
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AUDITOR ¥% B B

A resolution will be proposed at the annual general meeting of ARG EHRKRRBAFEAS HEESEZERE
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu £ « BI&E R T S 5HEI1T AR R B ERD 2R3

as auditor of the Company. o

On behalf of the Board REEG WD

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart FE

Managing Director EErcbisd

19 June 2012 —E-_FRXAT+NAB
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
T 37 1% SR

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF
HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 97 to 222, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2012, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

F Hanison Construction Holdings Limited
(ABRIRERERAR)ZEBRR
(RESEEFMK L BERAE])

% HAD B 58 A 2 % Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited ( #f5 gl 21ZE R AR 2 )
(IERRD RENBRAR (HBE5£E])#H
MRETE222A R E W BHRE  BRERE
——F=ZA=t+—HZHREMBEHRRE HE
ZALEFEZRARER HEEZERER:
MARDEHRRGABESRDER UREE
FEBORBIZ R EMHRAER -

EENGRAMBRRAREZER

BERAIZESRAAEREBTBEMAER
2 BB MRS R RIRRE S R BRD
ZHRBERERBRAMBERE FEEHEE
ROFZRBR AR EEEER/RBEGEH
RPN R 2 HRRE M EDIR ] - AEAR & B 7%
BRI FHEBANRFERERMER 2 ERHE
ARERAL ©
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Group'’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

BEEZ BT

AZBM 2 EERREBEEST 2ERHZFLER
EUBBRRELER  LEMZBBRRELR
& M AR AR E At P i o AN BUER B A 51 AR
BEZARHEMEBALTRESIRERE
AZBECRBEE LM A RMZE LR
AHERETER - R E AR EA LA E T
BIERE URBINATER EMAEETE
RAMBHRRES MR EMEAERRAL -

BERSRATIEFARRERREMBHRR
B EBEBRBEERN CERRE -TEE 2R
FFBUR R A2 BN 2 HI - BT A B REE
HRMEBBARAMBHRERTFAERHERRAL
ZRAR - EHEZFRRE  ZHEE E R
EREREGAMBBRERAELEERAF
Z RERAERE 2 MBPIE S - AERGHEE 2 BIXAR
FFrBXdEmE BEREARRES 2 MEE
RER BRIBRENIBESEMRABZEHHK
Rz ABENAER Z @FHEFT 2 A B - A
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

19 June 2012
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
iR e W

For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE_Z——_F=A=1+—HILFE

2012 2011
—EB-=F —F—F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T ok i
(Restated)
(f&E%)
Turnover -] 7 1,234,656 723,242
Cost of sales 8HE A (1,070,562) (643,899)
Gross profit EH 164,094 79,343
Other income H AU A 9 4,721 4,408
Marketing and distribution costs MESHEERDHEER (24,695) (7,965)
Administrative expenses THAX (99,302) (99,148)
Gain on change in fair value of REWMEZ AT EETZ
investment properties Wz 72,195 120,954
Loss on change in fair value of BIEEE 2 REZANTE
investments held for trading )2 EE (51) (4)
Loss on change in fair value of MEMBIAEZ AFE
derivative financial instruments ooy %= (2,100) (662)
Share of profit of an associate DG E N B 1,467 2,894
Share of profit of ok R 6 885
jointly controlled entities 25,130 85,467
Finance costs 75 & A 10 (5,382) (5,129)
Profit before taxation Fx 35 B i A 11 136,077 180,158
Taxation charge B H 13 (7,910) (4,159)
Profit for the year ARE [ A 128,167 175,999
(Restated)
(FeE5)
Earnings per share-basic (HK cents) &R & F|—EH A (FE1l) 15 26.3 36.1
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Ar 2 2 H W R

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE—T-——_F=A=+—HIFE

2012 2011

—EB--F —F——%

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T ok

(Restated)

(FeE7)

Profit for the year NEE A 128,167 175,999

Other comprehensive income HEf2mElA

Exchange differences arising on translation & /BINEREE Z[E X =58

of foreign operations 3,461 1,868

Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ZANEE 2 E UL A 4258 131,628 177,867
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

%A R

I\" =) /\j
At 31 March 2012
RZZE——F=RA=+—H

31.3.2012 31.3.2011 1.4.2010
—E-Cf —E——F —ZT-TF
=B=+-HB =ZA=t+—H MA—H
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5x BET T BETIT BETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(LE5) (&E5)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties BREME 16 415,910 358,310 577,080
Property, plant and equipment SER Jﬁ%’ﬁ}% &Eﬁﬁ 17 82,036 95,028 98,264
Prepaid lease payments BNEER 18 6,740 6,711 6,620
Interest in an associate 6%%@ TZ*@E 19 20,399 18,932 16,038
Interests in jointly controlled HEREGIERE 2 Ean
entities 20 138,680 65,132 70,165
Deferred tax assets EREFIEEE 33 784 = =
664,549 544,113 768,167
Current assets MENEE
Properties under development BRAPZEEWME
for sale 21 626,500 775,503 404,519
Properties held for sale RIEREME 167,306 - -
Inventories & 22 31,514 33,530 38,293
Amounts receivable on A HITERIEA
contract work 23 169,092 171,631 157,353
Progress payments receivable W3 S R IR 24 108,540 17,692 32,149
Retention money receivable FEURE & 25 119,506 105,174 107,036
Debtors, deposits and WA e &k
prepayments J"EHW\I,E 26 206,327 57,248 51,127
Prepaid lease payments BARER 18 215 205 201
Amount due from a jointly JE Y R %'J‘Elﬁf,*ﬁ
controlled entity 27 246 839 58,415
Amount due from an associate A NEIE O] 27 2,300 = =
Investments held for trading FIEEEZRE 28 283 334 338
Taxation recoverable AR B8 382 307 1,494
Derivative financial instruments TEMBIA 29 213 = 1,291
Bank balances and cash RITEBRES 30 184,924 215913 186,944
1,617,348 1,378,376 1,039,160
Current liabilities mEEE
Amounts payable on contract work ~ JEff A 4 LI FIAE 23 77,576 127,051 129,400
Trade and other payables BNFEREMENKIE 31 388,138 235,728 257,434
Taxation payable e TR IE 7,395 2,326 2,323
Derivative financial instruments TERETE 29 2,619 = =
Bank loans — amounts due RITER——FARES
within one year IR 32 734,300 569,589 585,300
1,210,028 934,694 974,457
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 474 Bf #& ik 5 2%
At 31 March 2012
R-ZE——F=A=+—8H

31.3.2012 3132011 1.4.2010

—%2--F ZT—F CZT-TF
=A=t-A =ZA=t-H mA—H

NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

B & BT T BT BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&=&5) (Z&E5)

Net current assets MENVEEFE 407,320 443 682 64,703
Total assets less current liabilites ~ #2ZERTE A& 1,071,869 987,795 832,870
Non-current liabilities 3'57)\’{@)%%
Bank loans — amounts due RITER——FREN
after one year K I,E 32 - 41,000 45,000
Other long-term payable H REEA IR 36 14,253 = =
Deferred tax liabilities EXERERE 33 6,286 6,615 7,162
20,539 47,615 52,162
1,051,330 940,180 780,708
Capital and reserves B
Share capital &7 34 48,756 48,756 44,324
Reserves @5 1,002,574 891,424 736,384
1,051,330 940,180 780,708

The consolidated financial statements on pages 97 to 222 were ~ SR97BH EF222B Ay 2 i & ISR K - (K&

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on EERN_E——_FANATNLBAZERIRER
19 June 2012 and are signed on its behalf by: - WAHTINEERERES
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart Tai Sai Ho
FithE Hitt=
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF 2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN /EZQ%T%
iR e

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE—T-——F=A=+—HIFE

Property
Share  Contributed Special  revaluation  Translation Goodwill  Accumulated
capital surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

BA  BABR  BHRE WEEGRE RERE  BERE  RHER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT A%Tr  A%Tr A%Tr  A%Tr AT B%Tn B%Tx
(note 35) (note 35)
(F13£35) (F#335)

At 1 April 2010 (as previously stated) ~ B= ::,HM,E (Fi51) 44324 18077 21941 982 (448) (78)  6653% 750,192
Effect of change in accounting policy = #B{%xiﬂ i0)-2

(see note 2) (FEME2) - - - - - - 30516 30,516
At 1 April 2010 (as restated) WZE-ZF@A—H (L55]) 44,324 18077 21,941 9% (448) (78) 695,910 780,708
Profit for the year (restated) REERF (LE5) - - - - - - 175,999 175,999
Exchange differences arising on translation & EHEL EHEH

of foreign operations - - - - 1,868 - - 1,868

Total comprehensive income for the year ~ A% [E 2EMAKE (K E75)
(restated) - - - - 1,868 - 175,999 177,867

Bonus shares issued BE#{T ZI% 4432 (4432) - - - - - -

Final dividend paid in respect of

BE-Z-ZF=A=1-H

the year ended 31 March 2010 EEJ‘ B ZRHRE - - - - - - (11,081) (11,081)
Interim dividend paid in respect of BE-_T——f=A=1-H

the year ended 31 March 2011 IEREMZPHRE - - - - - - (7314) (7,314)
At 31 March 2011 R=F——%=A=1+-H 48756 13,645 21,941 932 1,420 (78) 853,514 940,180
Profit for the year KEERF - - - = - = 128,167 128,167
Exchange differences arising on translation A E BN EREL 2 ERZE

of foreign operations - - - - 3461 - - 3461
Total comprehensive income for the year A% 2 ER A4 - - - - 3461 - 128,167 131,628

Final dividend paid in respect of

the year ended 31 March 2011 FEEERZRERE - - - - - - (13,164) (13,164)
Interim dividend paid in respect of HE-Z-—F=fA=t-H

the year ended 31 March 2012 EFEEMzHEBRE - - - - - = (7,314) (7314)
At 31 March 2012 R-E-——f#=A=t-H 48,756 13,645 21,941 982 4881 (78) 961,203 1,061,330
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
nm iﬁimﬂ%%

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_Z——_F=A=+—HIFE

2012 2011
—g-=F —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T P IT
Cash flows from operating activities KREEBEEB2HEM
Profit before taxation B B A1 g 136,077 180,158
Adjustments for: Eﬂ%
Share of profit of an associate DG E R B A (1,467) (2,894)
Share of profit of jointly controlled S FL R E 5 B 8% T
entities (25,130) (85,467)
Dividend income g B A 9) 3)
Interest income B WA (45) (18)
Interest expense F B 5,382 5,129
Depreciation of property, M- BERRE2ITE
plant and equipment 5,492 4,300
Release of prepaid lease payments FENEERIA 2D 215 205
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEME BEEREZ
plant and equipment BB () 218 (446)
Gain on change in fair value of KEMEZ RNFE
investment properties gz Was (72,195) (120,954)
Loss on change in fair value of MEVBIAEZAFE
derivative financial instruments BE) v EiE 2,100 662
Loss on change in fair value of BEEEZREZATE
investments held for trading )2 EE 51 4
Impairment loss recognised U FRIE 2 REEE
on trade debtors - 649
Operating cash flows before movements  &EE & F a2 LEIR SR
in working capital 50,689 (18,675)
Decrease in inventories FERL 2,016 4,763
Increase in properties under BRP2FEMEZEM
development for sale (18,303) (30,984)
Decrease (increase) in amounts JEM & XA TERIER A (350)
receivable on contract work 13,649 (1,205)
(Increase) decrease in progress FEWGE E FIR (3E00) 5
payments receivable (90,848) 14,457
(Increase) decrease in retention FEYURE & (35 0) Rk 2
money receivable (14,332) 1,862
Increase in debtors, deposits and FEURGRIE - 12 & K Ta~ ZR I8 38 1N
prepayments (149,079) (6,770)
Decrease in amounts payable FERt& A TERIER D
on contract work (49,475) (2,349)
Increase (decrease) in trade and J& A1 R38R B A FE A5 3R IE
other payables #n CR ) 147,874 (21,706)
Increase in derivative financial instruments ~ $7 4= 84 7 T B 2~ # i 306 629
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #& IR & RE*x
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHIFE

2012 2011
—E-—F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cash used in operating activities AREEXK 2 HE (107,503) (59,978)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BNHBFEH (4,029) (3,516)
Interest paid BFE (5,382) (5,129)
Net cash used in operating activities AREEX & F5E (116,914) (68,623)
Cash flows from investing activities REREEB2BHER
Interest received B UH B 45 18
Dividend received B AR B 9 3
Dividend received from jointly B HRZES E AR E
controlled entities 70,000 90,500
Purchase of investment properties NBEIREYE (205) (276)
Purchase of property, plant and NEWME  WE K EE
equipment (2,706) (12,229)
Advance to an associate B THE QT (2,300) -
Acquisition of a jointly controlled entity L7 B A (5] 470 ) A2 (97,188) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME HE R
plant and equipment RIBFTS IR 109 489
Proceeds from disposal of investment ﬁ’iTxé“%%Fﬁ S KIE
properties 14,800 -
Repayment from a jointly controlled entity LRI FE H| B 42 2 & 3 593 57,576
Net cash (used in) from investing activites (FR) R EREEBK 2R 4 F5E (16,843) 136,081
Cash flows from financing activities REMEXEBZEHEEM
Dividends paid TR B (20,478) (18,395)
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (110,289) (25,000)
New bank loans raised MERITER 234,000 5,289
Net cash from (used in) financing activities &8 (FAR) @B XK R4 H5E 103,233 (38,106)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and RekREEFE (ORD)IEGINFE
cash equivalents (30,524) 29,352
Cash and cash equivalents at FYReRREEE
the beginning of the year 215,913 186,944
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes MEREE) 2 % (465) (383)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRBERREEE
the end of the year, representing RERTEBRERS
bank balances and cash 184,924 215,913
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr 2 B 75 R M

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE_Z——_F=A=+—HIFE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the
Companies Law (2001 Second Revision), Chapter 22
of the Laws of Cayman lIslands. Its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company and
the principal activities of its subsidiaries are building
construction, interior and renovation works, supply
and installation of building materials, trading of health
products, property investment, property agency and
management and property development.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised standards and interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B 4 3R K MfaT
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2010

HKAS 24 (Revised
in 2009)

Related party disclosures

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Deferred tax — Recovery of
underlying assets

Amendments to
HK(IFRIC)
—INT 14

Prepayments of a minimum
funding requirement

HK(IFRIC) — INT 19  Extinguishing financial liabilities
with equity instruments

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and
revised standards and interpretations in the current year
has had no material effect on the amounts reported in
these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has applied in the current year amendments
to HKAS 12 titled “Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying
assets” in advance of their effective date (annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012). Under the
amendments, investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40
“Investment property” are presumed to be recovered
through sale for the purposes of measuring deferred
taxes, unless the presumption is rebutted in certain
circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B 3R R Bf it

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

As a result, the carrying amount of the Group’s investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model
have been presumed to be recovered through sale for
the purpose of measuring deferred taxes in respect of
such properties. The application of the amendments
has resulted in the Group's deferred tax liabilities being
decreased by HK$30,516,000 and HK$50,473,000
as at 1 April 2010 and 31 March 2011 respectively,
with the corresponding adjustment being recognised
in accumulated profits. In addition, the application has
resulted in the Group’s income tax expense for the year
ended 31 March 2011 being reduced by HK$19,957,000
and profit for the year ended 31 March 2011 being
increased by HK$19,957,000.

In the current year, no deferred tax has been provided
for in respect of changes in fair value of such investment
properties, whereas previously deferred tax liabilities
were provided for in relation to the changes in fair
value of such investment properties. The application of
the amendments has resulted in the Group's income
tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2012 being
reduced by HK$11,912,000 and profit for the year ended
31 March 2012 being increased by HK$11,912,000.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B 4 3R K MfaT
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. HRHET RBEFTIZEBMBHR

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEA ([FEMBHREERN])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continuea) (4&)

The effect of change in accounting policy described e BREHEHAFERBEFE
above on the results for the current and prior years by ZEBRELYYIER 2N EEEE
line items presented in the consolidated statement of WeamRIAT

comprehensive income is as follows:

For the year ended

31.3.2012 31.3.2011
S S
—EB——F —E——F
=A=+-A =A=t+-H
IEFE EFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T

Decrease in taxation charge FIE S R > 11,912 19,957
Increase in profit and total AEERMEEEHRA
comprehensive income for the year AREEIE AN 11,912 19,957
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 Bt 3R R Bf it
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. RWHET RRBIEFTIZEBMBHR

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEA ([FEMBHREED])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continuead) (%)

The effect of change in accounting policy described above L EHBREHHAEER T ——
on the financial position of the Group as at 31 March FZRA=T—HZUBRAZEHT:

2011 is as follows:

As at As at
31.3.2011 Adjustment 31.3.2011
i i
— —E-—-F
=B=+-H #AE =B=t+—-H
(Originally (Restated)
stated)
(REZ251) (L=3)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT AT
Deferred tax liabilities EEHBAG 57,088 (50,473) 6,615
Total effects on net assets HEERELVE 889,707 50,473 940,180
Accumulated profits, Bitaf HEn T e
total effects on equity 803,041 50,473 853,514
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %434 Bt #3R R Mf 3T
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. RHET RBRIEFTIZEBMBHR

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEA ([FEMBHREERN])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continuea) (%)
The effect of change in accounting policy described above FREHBREHHAEER_Z—F
on the financial position of the Group as at 1 April 2010 is FHA—HZHBRRAFZENT
as follows:
As at As at
1.4.2010 Adjustment 1.4.2010
i i
—E2-2F —EB-%F
MA—H ik HA—H
(Originally (Restated)
stated)
(REZ5) (g &E5)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T BETT

Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 37,678 (30,516) 7,162
Total effects on net assets HEEFEZRE 750,192 30,516 780,708
Accumulated profits, BEitaf DT E

total effects on equity 665,394 30,516 695,910
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2012
E-F-—F-A=tALFE

3

£ —=

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The effect of change in accounting policy described above
on basic earnings per share is as follows:

N e et

RN ET RBIERT < F BT
HEAN([FEMBREER])
(%)

FREHBEEDHTRERRT Y E
mF -

For the year ended

31.3.2012 31.3.2011
»® IS
—E——fF —FE——F
=ZA=t—HB =A=+—H
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
Basic earnings per share before RS RERZF

adjustment 23.9 32.0

Application of amendments to EHRAES g ER
HKAS 12 it vl - 3] PN 24 4.1
Reported basic earnings per share ERNZFHREREF 26.3 36.1

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards and interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 1

Amendments to
HKFRS 1
Amendments to
HKFRS 7
Amendments to
HKFRS 7
HKFRS 9

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009 to 2011 cycle!

Severe hyperinflation and removal
of fixed dates for first-time
adopters!

Government loans?

Disclosures — Transfers of financial
assets!

Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities?

Financial instruments®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B 4 3R K MfaT

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Amendments to
HKAS 1

HKAS 19 (Revised
2011)

HKAS 27 (Revised
2011)

HKAS 28 (Revised
2011)

Amendments to
HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC) — INT 20

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9
and transition disclosures?

Consolidated financial statements?

Joint arrangements?

Disclosure of interests in other
entiites?

Fair value measurement?

Presentation of items of other

comprehensive income*
Employee benefits®

Separate financial statements?

Investments in associates and joint

ventures?

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities®

Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2015.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2014.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHIFE

RN ET RBIERT < F BT
HEEA([FEMBREER])
(%)

BRAPBHREERN BEMBREESENNR
FNRLER RN ER AR
BB mEER BERE
FLRZEFTA

BREMBHRERED HEMBHRE
F15

BRMBREER HRAZH
FT—%

BRAMBREER REMERER I EE
FTI5

BREMBHRERED QFEIFE
FT=5

ERSHEAE—F Eth2ERAEEH2H
ZIEFTR

BB gL EEREAP
E+N5
(20115 41&3T)

BB gL
F+E5%
(20115 41&3T)

BB gL HRENRIRAERAIL
S AN " &
(20115 &1&3T)

BB gL
F=t_%7
BEIAR

5 (BBEREHRE BRABESEERE Y
REZES) HIBR R A2
-RBE-%

B M B HREK

BB EERMBAR

: R-B——F A B ZERFBZF
E A AR

2 RIE=F A HZEMRRZF
E A AR

P RIE-AF A HRZERRZF
E A AR

b RCE—FA AR ZF
E A AR

S RITEMFE-A - H &R ZF
E A AR

FBsAIEER AR AR | 2011/2012F% 111



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %34 Bt #53& Mf 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (as issued in November
2009) introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial
instruments” (as revised in November 2010) adds
requirements for financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement” are
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change
relates to financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS
9, for financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in
other comprehensive income, unless the presentation
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as at fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %434 Bt 4 3R R MfaT

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the financial year ending 31 March 2016. Based
on the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
as at 31 March 2012, the directors anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 9 is not likely to have significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated
and separate financial statements” that deal with
consolidated financial statements. HK (SIC) — INT 12
“Consolidation — Special purpose entities” has been
withdrawn upon the issuance of HKFRS 10. HKFRS 10
includes a new definition of control that contains three
elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal
with complex scenarios. Overall, the application of HKFRS
10 requires a lot of judgement. However, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.

2.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& 81 % < fii 5

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in joint ventures”
and HK (SIC) — INT 13 “Jointly controlled entities — Non-
monetary contributions by venturers”. HKFRS 11 deals
with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control should be classified. Under HKFRS 11,
joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or
joint ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of
the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS
31, there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly
controlled operations.

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are
required to be accounted for using the equity method
of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities under
HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity method
of accounting or proportionate accounting. The Group’s
jointly controlled entities are currently accounted for using
the equity method of accounting. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 11
will have no impact to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated
structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those
in the current standards.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4:& Bt 75 # 3& M 5%

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements. The Standard defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and
requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair
value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are
more extensive than those in the current standards. For
example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based
on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently required
for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 “Financial
instruments: Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS 13
to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the annual period beginning 1 April 2013 and that the
application of the new Standard may affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements and
result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

Except as described above the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and
revised Standards and Interpretations will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B 73 R B 7%
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
investment properties and certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up
to 31 March each year. Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B 4 3R K MfaT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” are measured in accordance with that
Standard.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B 73 R B 7%
For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEFBR#)
(Continued)
Business combinations (Continued) (XBEeH &)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
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as measurement period adjustments depends on how WA El D - El D miEm 2 HARBILER
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent BER R A EAE AT E - MR ER
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured WA BN BBEEFIBEZIARER

at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets”, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B 4 3R K MfaT

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-_ZT——_F=A=+—HILtEFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.
Revenue from construction contracts, interior and
renovation contracts and building materials installation
contracts is recognised using the percentage of
completion method by reference to the value of work
carried out during the year as determined by quantitative
surveyors’ reports.

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised when the
respective properties have been completed and delivered
to the buyers.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B 73 R B 7%
For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEFHERX &)
(Continued)
Investment properties BEME

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.

REMEDEARRDES KA R,
BEARTHEZYE:

RUNXHEREE I EMEIZRA (BIEE
MEEERNER)T=Z - RYIXERE

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties KEMEZ A THERABATFEEAGE -
are measured at their fair values using the fair value IT&%%%Z“WE@@JWEEZ%&W

model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or loss
for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for own use are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B 4 3R K MfaT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %34 Bt #5$R3& Mf 5%
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHE (&)

(Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a
finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent the up-front payments
to lease medium-term leasehold land interests in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B #3R X BfaE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost as
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's
share of the net assets of the associate, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided
for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after assessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& 81 % < fii 5

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

3.
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Joint ventures BELE
Jointly controlled entities HEEZEFER

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as
jointly controlled entities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B #3R X BfaE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Joint ventures (Continued)

Jointly controlled entities (Continuead)

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in jointly controlled
entities are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that
jointly controlled entity (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of a jointly controlled
entity recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount
of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B 7 3 &R B %
For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Joint ventures (Continueq)

Jointly controlled entities (Continuead)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment

loss with respect to the Group’s investment in a jointly
controlled entity. When necessary, the entire carrying

3.

FEEFHER (&)
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amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested REBSGHENE =T REER
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of assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
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investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is TRBER BT ENE =T/ T AW

recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled EEEEREARZEHEBETRIR
entity, profits and losses resulting from the transactions Eﬁiﬁﬂ?ﬁ—f%l%‘“}% IRGEEZHNR
with the jointly controlled entity are recognised in the BERAEE 2R B HREER - HE

Group’ consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are
not related to the Group.

Inventories

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes
land cost, development costs and directly attributable
costs including, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories (Continued)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and are
classified under current assets. They are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Others

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Construction, interior and renovation and
installation of building materials contracts

Where the outcome of a construction, interior and
renovation or installation of building materials contract
can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract activity at the end of the reporting period,
as measured by surveys of work performed. Variations
in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included to the extent that the amount can be measured
reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction, interior and
renovation or installation of building materials contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that
it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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HE-T——F=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEFHXR &)

(Continued)

Construction, interior and renovation and S HGEBEREEM P RE
installation of building materials contracts = ,.’] (#&)

(Continued)

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is shown as amounts receivable on contract
work. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as amounts
payable on contract work. Amounts received before the
related work is performed are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position, as a liability, as advances
received. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet
paid by the customer are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under progress payments
receivable or debtors.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B #3R X BfaE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuea)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
the two categories, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& 81 % 7= fii 5

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_Z——F=A=1+—HLLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuea)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are financial assets
held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, and
changes in fair values arising from remeasurement are
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuea)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including progress payments
receivable, retention money receivable, debtors, deposits,
amount due from a jointly controlled entity, amount due
from an associate, bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses.

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Loans and
receivables are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the loans and
receivables, the estimated future cash flows of the loans
and receivables have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

o it becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuea)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade debtors, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade debtor
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to the profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

132 HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2011/2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B 73 R B 7%
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_Z——F=A=1+—HLLFE

FESFHBR (£)

MBIR (&)
MEERE (&)
/Tyiﬁﬁglﬂ?iyilﬁ(g)

ERRBEBRNEECHE UEE
EREERZFRERNRTRFERLMG
AAARRBREEREREBE RN ERTE
WRBzm P RERRERRE -

HENBEERBNREBREER
BT E B BREE T 7 3R HE B UL
ﬁﬁZ%EE@ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%#ﬁmﬁ
BRERREEZEHNBEER - ERK
SRR DRI UL B R - G5 A AR
B o B O MEH M BRI E R UL B - A AT
AR A

R R EREEERS R ME-H
A ERE FEERRERELENEMF
BE - RIERERRNREBBRREEE
@ TARE - EZEEERLRES M
FREE NS BB EERRERN S
X7 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B #3R X BfaE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuea)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fee paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities excluding derivative financial
instruments

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
bank loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuea)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligation are discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_Z——#=A=+—RHItEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment loss on assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indicator exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment losses are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment loss on assets other than
goodwill Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but to the extent
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %34 Bt 75 #3& Mi 5%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in jointly
controlled entities, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-_ZT——_F=A=1+—HIEFEE

FESFHBR (£)

BIR (42)

BERIBIERGEMBEREANEERE
& AR T B B 51 & B SR B0 A1 B R 2 AR 8
MEEEZZREAETUBRZMRIE
BEFIBEE R — VI ERVRREE
Bl FLARER  MEERHIEEERIZ K
SEAIB A 2 AT HUR B R 2 2 KRR ERR
Fwm AT T ARER - WA R ZRELEZHE
BV EREMEERBEMELZ
TERER (EBEORIN BT ERE
AR R BEAT  IREEE
REBRATE TAER-

PRIEASE AT EGHIE R ZHEEE ME K
ERAR/NAREN A RAS KB - AR E
SINHIE AR R E R R NRE MR
BECENERMELNERHERE
BERSELERARE -KEEZFRE
&%ﬁﬁ%%TWﬁ FF 2 BR AR TR
BEE  RENAEEHR R HERT S A
ﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬁmﬂ £ VEFR L TR B A)
5 R RS AR o

BREFIREE Z REERSRE R
T LARRES - TR Z RSN Al RE
B 7T R B SR A ] & T UK Bl A A Bl ER
NEBEENTHE-

BaIZIERAR AR | 2011/20128®% 137



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B 7 3 &R B %
For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEGFBX &)
(Continued)
Taxation (Continued) BIE(#Z)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in

EERAEEERABNRBHNEER
EREREEMEORE  RIFNEREH

which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based REBEMEBEDBEMAOT R (MFE)
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or st

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting periods.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities

EEFRELEERAENTERMERR
WEHR BHBEEZKREREEREER
BEMNEAENHEER-

A EREVMENELCHIAEERRT

and deferred tax assets for investment properties that MIEBEMS  ERESLFTLEEM+
are measured using the fair value model in accordance WINEYMEFALAFEREFGEZRE

with HKAS 40 “Investment property”, such properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale. Such a
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model of
the Group whose business objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the current and deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deductible from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits cost

Payments to the Group’s defined contribution retirement
benefits schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are charged as an expense when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B 7 3 &R B %
For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FTEEFBR#®)
(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued) ShE (&)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the year, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the
translation reserve).

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make the following estimates
that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The key
assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 March 2012 at their
fair value of HK$415,910,000 (2011: HK$358,310,000)
(Note 16). The fair value was based on valuation of
these properties conducted by independent firms of
professional valuers using property valuation techniques
which involve certain assumptions of market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties and corresponding adjustments to
the amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
income statement.

Construction contracts

Revenue from construction contract is recognised under
the percentage of completion method which requires
estimation made by the management. Anticipated losses
are fully provided on contracts when identified. The
management estimates the contract costs and foreseeable
losses of construction based on the budgets prepared
for the contracts. Because of the nature of the activities
undertaken in construction businesses, the management
reviews and revises the estimates of contract costs in
the budget prepared for each contract as the contract
progresses. Where the contract revenue is less than
expected or actual contract costs are more than expected,
additional losses may need to be recognised. As at 31
March 2012, the carrying amounts of amounts receivable
on contract work and amounts payable on contract
work are HK$169,092,000 and HK$77,576,000 (2011:
HK$171,631,000 and HK$127,051,000) respectively.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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When there is objective evidence of impairment loss
for trade debtors, the Group takes into consideration
its estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss for trade debtors is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31 March 2012, the carrying amount of trade debtors
is HK$159,844,000 (2011: HK$38,253,000), net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$2,649,000 (2011:
HK$2,649,000) disclosed in note 26.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank loans disclosed in note 32, net of
cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and accumulated profit.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends and new
share issues, as well as the issue of new debt and the
redemption of existing debt.
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BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

for acquisition of a jointly controlled entity. Details of the
acquisition are set out in note 36.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include progress
payments receivable, retention money receivable, debtors,
refundable deposits, amount due from a jointly controlled
entity, amount due from an associate, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables and bank loans.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. WHIH
Categories of financial instruments M TRER
31.3.2012 31.3.2011
—E—-—F —E——4F
=ZA=+—HB =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T TR IT
Financial assets WBEE
Investments held for trading BEEEZKRE 283 334
Loans and receivables (including B SRR
cash and cash equivalents) (BERERASEEY) 595,975 381,891
Derivative financial instruments PTHEMET A 213 =
Financial liabilities MBAaR
At amortised cost BIHRCAR 948,057 735,699
Other long-term payable (Note) E b REARE RO (F5E) 14,253 -
Derivative financial instruments PTG T A 2,619 =
Note: The amount represents contingent consideration payable izt SBAKRBEXREGIERZENK

ARE - Wi 2 FHIFTIEIRH 5E36 ©

A %5 B B B3R B AR R BUR

REE T EZMG T ABERKER IR

EURE € - FEIKIE AR @RS - B
Wo Sk ) 42 ) BB BB SRR - FE WRESE 2 X B AR
T RITA ﬁ%&iﬁi &~ SR I8 Ko HAth &
NRERRITER

ERZEME TR ZF BN TR
B o FMBIEY R Bk KR KR
Bz RN T - BIREEE MER
ZER X - AR KA BUh R EE
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cContinued) 6. A% IR #)

MHERAREEBRRBR (4)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Currency risk B R

AEBEEEBNEEBIERER
RED R B ABEEFTE

The functional currency of the group entities is mainly
HK$, the currency in which most of the transactions are
denominated.

The carrying amounts of the foreign currency denominated AEEZSEBRBREHARUINESEZ

monetary assets and monetary liabilities, included BEREEREYEERERIRES

retention money receivable, debtors, bank balances and FEUWHIE « IRITHEMR RS RITEM T
cash and derivative financial instruments, of the group BERREERERZENT

entities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

BE =1 BE &

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BT

Macau Pataca (“MOP”") B TT 1,354 - 2636 =
Australian Dollars (“AUD") BT 2,041 - 28 =
Renminbi (“‘RMB”) AR 12,146 - 10,112 -
United States Dollars (“USD”) ETT 1,547 2,619 672 =

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency 7R 6 (B 3R A W0 S AN SRR o AT 0 B
hedging policy. However, the management monitors 1B E ) SR IMNE RS - WA 5 Ehs
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging ZEAERIMER BEITE D RER LA

significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise. The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts
to manage the Group’s foreign currency exposure in
relation to foreign currency forecast sales and foreign
currency denominated monetary items. The Group does
not currently designate hedging relationship on the foreign
exchange forward contracts for the purpose of hedge
accounting.

144 HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2011/2012

SNEMESHNERKEBRHINEHE &
SNEFHER IR R 2 IMNERR < R AE
By ESERE S MESINERE SR
AR EFRRR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Company is mainly exposed to fluctuation in
exchange rate of MOP, AUD, RMB and USD against
HK$. However, the financial impact on the exchange
differences among the foreign currencies and HK$ is
expected to be immaterial to the Group, therefore, no
sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

Interest rate risk

The cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to the
Group's variable-rate bank loans which are linked to
the Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate (“HIBOR”) and
bank balances at the prevailing market deposit rate. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_Z——F=A=1+—HLLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cContinued) 6. A% IR #)
Financial risk management objectives and MBERAKREEBERER (&)

policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued) FMZEE e (2)

The directors of the Company consider the Group’s ARATEEZEIANEEEITEAE
exposure of bank balances to interest rate risk is not SRR R R f I NBEFE - (R AR B RITA
significant as interest bearing bank balances are within #%H 2R HITE R $$@Hﬂ?ﬂ e 2 &
short maturity period. The Group's sensitivity to interest RETREBRREHAREERTER
rate risk has been determined based on the exposure to AT 7 ANRERMEBT c 9T JIEBRERN IR
interest rates for variable-rate bank loans at the end of the EHRORSESENBEFEN AR
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the EENNEV A EA B34 2 &g
amounts outstanding at the end of the reporting period REBEAFERBEEMER - REMEHE
was outstanding for the whole year. The Group’s sensitivity B EREFET  NEERS RSB RE
to interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period while FZ R 2 GUREW T

all other variables were held constant is as follows:

2012 2011

—E—_F —E——1%F

Reasonably possible change FEAIGE S BB A E L 50 basis 50 basis
in interest rate points points
50% ¥ 508

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Decrease in profit for the year asa ~ ANEEFE D — AR TR

result of an increase in the interest 750251

rate by 50 basis points (3,066) (2,549)
Increase in profit for the year as a REERAIEM — ARF=E

result of a decrease in the interest N F£50%85F

rate by 50 basis points 3,066 2,549
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continuead)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 March 2012 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
majority of counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 81% (2011:
85%) of the total progress payment receivable was due
from the Group’s three (2011: two) largest customers,
engaged in property construction business in Hong Kong,
within the construction segment. In addition, the Group
has concentration of credit risk as 78% (2011: nil) of the
total trade receivable was due from two independent third
party customers for property sales within the property
development segment.

6.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cContinued) 6. A% IR #)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Equity price risk

The Group’s held for trading investments include
listed equity securities in Hong Kong. These listed
equity securities are subject to market price risk. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk profiles. Details
of the investments held for trading are set out in note 28.
The management considers that the market price risks of
these investments are not significant to the Group.

Commodity price risk

The Group was exposed to commodity price risk from
the outstanding commodity forward contracts at 31
March 2011 and 2012. The management considers that
the price risks of these derivative instruments are not
significant to the Group.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank loans and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continuead)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group relies on bank loans as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 March 2012, the Group has
available unutilised borrowing facilities of approximately
HK$432,598,000 (2011: HK$439,209,000). Details of
bank loans are set out in note 32.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.

For derivative instruments that settle on a net basis,
undiscounted net cash outflows are presented, based
on the contractual maturities as the management
considers that the contractual maturities are essential
for any understanding of the timing of the cash flows of
derivatives.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

6. MBIR %)

MHERAREEBRRBR (4)

Liquidity tables mEEE XK
As at 31 March 2012 R=B-=%
=A=t-H
Weighted
average On demand Total Carrying
effective  or less than 1-2 2-5  More than undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 1 year years years 5 years cash flow  31.3.2012
®
—E--f%
MR RERS AERBES =ZA=+-A
ERR= TR-F 125 2-5% 5L REAH REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B BETT AWTr BT B¥TR  B¥Tr  E%Tx
Non-derivative financial FITEMKERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables ERRER
H e A - 178,191 35,566 - - 213,757 213,757
Bank loans - variable rate *  RITER—ZS* 2.11 749,794 - - - 749,794 734,300
Other long-term payable Hith RE IR - - - 14,253 - 14,253 14,253
927,985 35,566 14,253 - 977,804 962,310
Derivatives - net settlement T T E-FHE
Commodity forward contract ~ EmEAIEA L - 2,619 - - - 2,619 2,619
930,604 35,566 14,253 - 980,423 964,929
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

As at 31 March 2011 RZE——F
EH=E—E
Weighted
average On demand
effective or less than
interest rate 1 year

S BERH
BERAME TR—%

% HK$'000
Bift BETT

6. MBIR %)

MERAREEBRRBR (4)

REBEER(£)
Total Carrying
1-2 2-5 More than  undiscounted amount at
years years 5 years cash flow  31.3.2011
—Z——F

AEBEHEE ZA=1+—H

1-26 2-54F SELAE MERE RHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  AETr  A%Tr  AETT  BETx

Non-derivative financial FiTERKERE

liabilities
Trade and other payables ERRER
H AT 500E - 110,814 14,296 - - 125,110 125,110
Bank loans - variable rate *  SRITER—FE* 1.49 574,860 42231 - - 617,091 610,589
685,674 56,527 - - 742,201 735,699
& The interest rates applied to projected undiscounted cash * FRRITERZ BT RER S RER

flows of variable rate bank loans are the interest rates at
the end of the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

The amounts above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if
changes in variable interest rate differ to those estimates
of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting
period.

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 year” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March
2012, the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of
these bank loans amounted to HK$237,800,000 (2011:
HK$204,800,000). Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors do not believe that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such bank loans as at 31 March 2012 will be
repaid within seven (2011: eight) years after the reporting
date in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows will amount to
HK$258,883,000 (2011: HK$219,049,000).

6.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask
prices respectively;

o the fair value of derivative financial instruments are
measured at fair value by reference to the forward
price of related metals quoted from London Metal
Exchange; and

o the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

6.

¥ ITHE %)
NEE

MBEBERMBEBEZAFEIIR TS
ARERE:

o  AREGRRRGHREIBIERD
BREENMBEERMBABZA
FE2EMSARENEABRE
HEEE:

s WUBITAETAZAFEZREHR
BHER SR BRRNE
REE

s HpWMBEERYHKAG(TET
BRI 2 AFEREBRERKABRER
MZRFH ZEBEAHE -

RAEFRA RERE M5 RR IR HK
RINRZHBEERIBRBEZREE
HEHENFERE-

MRl AR AR | 2011/20125® 153



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B 7 3 &R B %
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_Z——F=A=1+—HLLFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. MBIE#)
Fair value (Continued) NIE (&)
Fair value measurements recognised in the REFEMBERRERERZ A FEFE

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial Ti‘%h{ $1ﬁﬁﬁum§u+52/f|zﬂil
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial DT Bz—fzﬁﬂm ANERESAE—E=
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based ,?& @

on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived e ZF—RATVEFEDNREDHEINE
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for EXBERERME PR MmER
identical assets or liabilities. (REFHE)E

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived e FANFEFAEINRE—AETA
from inputs other than quoted prices included ZHREIN BBEEEXBBEINEE
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or (BME#) sk EE (BEBEITA)S
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly R ABURSE -

(i.e. derived from prices).

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived e F=AFAABEFEREHRES
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the EEMSENNEESBE (T
asset or liability that are not based on observable AERH AZE) NEERNED
market data (unobservable inputs). HAREBERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. HHIH @
Fair value (Continued) NIE (&)
Fair value measurements recognised in the RFEMBERRERER 2 AT ETE
consolidated statement of financial position (&
(Continueq)

At 31 March 2012
R-E-—-5=H=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& E-H FE=ZH wEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT

Financial assets at FVTPL BRBREATE
HEHMBEE
Listed equity securities HIEEBREZ
held for trading ETRAES 283 - - 283
Foreign exchange forward INEFEE L
contracts - 213 - 213
283 213 - 496
Financial liabilities at FVTPL FREREATE
HEHBAE
Commodity forward contracts AmHBAEEL 2,619 - - 2,619
Other long-term payable H R R R - - 14,253 14,253
2,619 - 14,253 16,872
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ir e B SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value (Continuea)

6.

¥ ITE %)

YNSSINE P

Fair value measurements recognised in the REFEMBERRERAER Z AT ETE
consolidated statement of financial position (&
(Continued)
At 31 March 2011
RZZE——F=A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
& FE-M B=R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T AT BT AT
Financial assets at FVTPL BRBHEATE
AECHBEE
Listed equity securities BEIEESKEE Y
held for trading R N 334 _ - 334

There was no transfer among Level 1, 2 and 3 during the
years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements of financial liabilities

The other long-term payable represents contingent
consideration payable for acquisition of a jointly controlled
entity in the current year. There is no movement in the
fair value of the contingent consideration from the date of
acquisition to the end of the reporting period because the
management considers that it is highly likely payable by
the Group. Details of the acquisition transaction were set
out in note 36.

BE-ZT-—#=A=+—-AR-%
—F=A=t1t—"HE—H F_HFNE
=R VBT E 7B B EE-

BEZRRAFEAET 2V BEBEYHR

Hitp REIBRNRBARSAFRERE AKX
R B BNIARE B REBRE
AREEEE R AKEGE A e
ZERARRE - WER S 2 FBERM T
36 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the aggregate of the revenue earned
from construction contract work, interior and renovation
contracts, supply and installation of building materials,
sales of goods, provision of property agency and
management services, gross rental income from property
investment and sale of properties during the year, and is
analysed as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RIFE

EXRBHEREABESNTRE KR EE
BHC REMZREEZEMH HEEM:
ROt 3R A8 &% B B ARG R ER 2 Wi -
MERBEZBEBSWARYEHE 28
BemHranh:

2012 2011
—E-—F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Revenue from construction BESHIEZBA
contract work 804,536 431,724
Revenue from interior and R R AEIE RS 2 A
renovation contracts 10,133 72,647
Sale of building materials BEMEHEESR 27,600 24,159
Revenue from contracts for TRRBEMBE D2 BA
installation of building materials 177,622 117,593
Sale of health products EREMZEER 52,639 49,646
Rental income from property MEREZHE W=
investment 16,957 22,197
Property agency and management #1218 & B 1R RS 2 W
service income 7,169 5,276
Sale of properties YEHE 138,000 =
1,234,656 723,242

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is organised into seven operating divisions:
construction, interior and renovation works, trading and
installation of building materials, sales of health products,
property investment, provision of property agency and
management services and property development. These
divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its
financial information internally and are regularly reviewed
by the executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision makers, for the purpose of allocating
resources to segments and assessing their performance.

SEER

SETBEEBREY RTE  EE KM
REETE ZEMBEERRE 2K
EmHE MERE MERERER
RBZRERDEZR - AEEAYF
gaR e SN = R R NNSTE R
E= (RITERERRE)EEHEHA
DEED BB ZBEREF G ER 2K
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHItFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. NEEN &)

(a) Segment revenues and results (@ FTBEWNERELE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue TERHPBTAEESLEDE 2K
and results by operating segment: ARFEBEH DT

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE-—E——-fF=A=t+—H1
FE

Property
Interior and Building Health Property  agency and Property ~ Segment
Construction ~ renovation ~ materials ~ products investment management development total  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
% NERE
[+ REE  BEMN  RBEER  WERE REE YEXBR DEEH W &A
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BMTR  BMTR  EMTR  EMTR  ENTn  EBTn  A¥Tr BTz BETR
TURNOVER L
External sales HIMAE 804,536 10,133 205,222 52,639 16,957 7,169 138,000 1,234,656 - 1,234,656
Inter-segment sales PEEBRCHEE 29,259 178,351 27,630 8 1,548 1,873 - 238,669  (238,669) -
Total @i 833,795 188484 232,852 52,647 18,505 9,042 138,000 1473325 (238,669) 1,234,656
Intersegment salesare ~ DEEBHZHE
charged by reference  BREMBEEo
to market prices.
RESULTS 25
Segment result PEEE 13,834 3,670 1,219 1,206 75,563 693 43123 139,308 (400) 138,908
Unallocated expenses FPERL (2,831)
Profit before taxation BBiRTRF 136,077
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment results represent the

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. TEER #)
(a) Segment revenues and results (Continued) (@) PEBMNREHE (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 BE-Z——F=HA=+t—H8L
FE
Property
Interior and Building Health Property  agency and Property Segment
Construction  renovation materials products investment management  development total  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
£ MERE
je223 k& EEMH  BRER NFERE REE WEEE  SR&: g )
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKP000  HKP000  HKE000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
AYTT A%Tn AWTR BETR BRTr BETR  BETR  BETR  B%TR  B%TR
TURNOVER BEE
External sales HINHE 431,724 72647 141752 49646 2,197 5276 - 723242 - 73242
Inter-segment sales PEEBH HEE 10962 41,693 27,466 12 1,548 3848 = 85,529 (85,529) -
Total a3 442,686 114,340 169,218 49,658 23,745 9,124 - 808771 (85,529) 723242
Intersegment salesare ~ DEEBHZHE
charged by reference T2ZmEHE -
to market prices.
RESULTS $5&
Segment result LEL 7962 4123 (14,387) 1,573 122,882 525 63,543 186,221 (3725) 182496
Unallocated expenses AR EER (2,338)
Profit before taxation BBiATRF 180,158

BEREDERZEABREREZ
S BER (HRME3) —H -2
FERKBEAIBELZRE X
ADORBBZITHAA  ERRE

results from each segment without allocation of
administration costs incurred by head office and the
inactive subsidiaries. This is the measure reported to
the chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.

TERBZMBARRMEER Ut
TR SR B £ B EERKE 2|
EERDERKRBEF A 2B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B 7 3 &R B %
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHItFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. SEER (&)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities b) "EEEHERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets TERHAPREBELENDHCEE
and liabilities by operating segment: LBEDH:
As at 31 March 2012 R-ZE-——-F=A=+—H
Property
Interior and Building Health Property  agency and Property  Segment
Construction ~ renovation ~ materials products  investment management development total  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
B3 NERE

j£ 1 k& BENH REER NERE REE NEERR R4 e &8
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BETR  E%Tn  ERTR BRI BMTR  EMTn  EETR  BETx  BETn

ASSETS EE

Segment assets PEEE 457,197 28,630 186,615 35671 456418 42,785 1,073,620 2,280,936 - 2,280,936
Unallocated assets RAREE 961
Consolidated assets RAEE 2,281,897
LIABILITIES 8%

Segment liabilities ARAE 270,282 32311 43,982 5,607 7,530 642 65173 425527 - 425527
Unallocated liabilities KAREE 805,040
Consolidated liabilities A E(E 1,230,567
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continuea)

As at 31 March 2011

Interior and Building

Construction  renovation materials
E3

jee R&E  BEMH

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000

EETr AT BT

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RIFE

8. NEEN &)
b) "EEEHGRE &)

R=B-—F=ZA=+-8

Property

Health Property  agency and Property Segment

products  investment management  development total ~ Eliminations ~ Consolidated
WERE

BRER NFERE REE NEER  2RER i A
HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKFOO0  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
BT BT A%Tr BRI BT ARTn  BETro

ASSETS i
Segment assets PREE 425986 41013 166432
Unallocated assets RAEEE

Consolidated assets GAEE

LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities PEAE 245,916 28281 26,443
Unallocated liabilities KAREE

Consolidated liabiliies ~ &GAR(E

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than central bank balances and cash of
head office and other inactive subsidiaries and
taxation recoverable; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than other payables of head
office and the inactive subsidiaries, bank loans
and current and deferred taxation.

675 396032 3B BI7%0 1921685 - 1921685
804
192,489
405 7687 M 443 31759 VL
664,770
982309
REERDBRREDBEENER
D

G SRR =PNCIE L
REFZRITEH LIRS KA
REFIEIN FIEEEHLDR
AERIM K

o KRR TERMEBARNE
i A R38R 3R TT B SR BN
FARFEFRIBSN FRE B EDRD

RREXNH-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B 7 3 &R B %
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_Z——F=A=1+—HLLFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. NEEN &)
(c) Other information (c) HEth&ER
Year ended 31 March 2012 BE-EZ——-—f=A=+—H1L
FE

Property
Interior and Building Health Property  agency and Property
Construction  renovation ~ materials products investment management development Consolidated
B3 NERE
Bg k&€ BEME REER WERE REE WXBE &8
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT ERTR  E%Tn  E%TR  BETR  R¥Tn  ERTn  E%TR

Amounts included in the BREESEEEN
measure of segment results D IEAEZ S E:

or segment assets:
Depreciation i 1,331 38 380 1,166 425 2,148 4 5,492
Gain on change in fair value of X Z#E 2

investment properties AFERE 2 HE - - - - (72,195 - - (72,195)
Loss on change i fair value of  H{EBE 2 1R& 2

investments held for trading ~ ATFELH 2 EE 51 - - - - - - 51
Loss on change in fair value ~ fT4HBIEZ

of derivative financial AFEREER

instruments - - 2,100 - - - - 2,100
Release of prepaid lease ERRERERE

payments - - 215 - - - - 215
Loss (gain) on disposal of HEME BREREHEL

property, plant and equipment 518 (MzS) (109) - - - - 327 - 218
Interest income MEMA (1) - 9 ) - (28) - (45)
Share of profit of an associate 21y Wﬁ’& Al Al - - - - (1,467) - - (1,467)
Share of profit of jointly PMEEREDEBER

controlled entities (10,954) - - - - - (14,176)  (25,130)
Finance costs BsER - - 1,581 4 1,59 - 2,203 5,382
Additions to non-current REERBDEE

assets (note) (Fit3E) 1,321 - 237 966 205 182 - 2,911
Interest in an associate 5%%’/3 GiP&; 33 - - - - 20,399 - - 20,399
Interests in jointly controlled ~ EE#H|EE 2 #x

entities 14,568 - - - - - 124,112 138,680

Amounts regularly provided to T‘F]TEE" BEEETHER
the chief operating decision AT ERERKEZLH:
maker but not included in the
measure of segment results:

Income tax expenses HEZ 120 513 119 232 1,333 556 5,037 7,910

Note: Non-current assets exclude financial instruments, M ERDEETBREVKEIA E
deferred tax assets, the interest in an associate and EFAIEEE Bt & QAR m Mt
interests in jointly controlled entities. [E45 5B B A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. NEEN &)

(c) Other information (Continued) (c) E&ER (&)

Year ended 31 March 2011 BE-Z——H=-HA=+—HL

FE
Property
Interior and Building Health Property  agency and Property
Construction ~ renovation materials products  investment management  development  Consolidated
B3] MERE
BE REE  BEME RBRER  WERE REE DEEE )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT  A%Tn  #¥Tr  A%Tn BT A%Tn %t B%Tn
Amounts included in the BREESEEES
measure of segment results ~ HEEEZEE:
or segment assets:
Depreciation il 887 - 546 1,031 1,06 810 = 4,300
Impairment loss recognised  FEWGFRIE 2 R EE B
on trade debtors - - 649 - - - - 649
Gain on change in fair value of ZEM%E 2 AFE
investment properties 2857 Wz = = = - (120954) - - (120954)
Loss on change in fair value of #H{EBE 2 A2 AT A
investments held for trading 282 E518 4 - - - - - - 4
Loss on change in fair value  fTAHBIEZ
of derivative financial AP ERE 2 HR
instruments - - 662 - - - - 662
Release of prepaid lease BREEZTERE
payments - - 205 - - - - 205
(Gain) loss on disposal of HENE BER
property, plant and equipment & &2 () EHE (419) - (28) 1 - - - (446)
Interest income FIBKA - - (14) (1) - @) = (18)
Share of profit of an associate  7-f % 2 &) 7l - - - - (2,894) - - (2,894)
Share of profit of jointly HEEREHEEEF
controlled entities (13,257) - - - - - (72,210) (85,467)
Finance costs BB - - 2,612 1 2,516 = = 5,129
Additions to non-current REFTEEE (M)
assets (note) 1,140 - 3,225 1,288 b87 6,265 - 12,505
Interest in an associate BENRZER = - = - 18,932 - = 18,932
Interests in jointly controlled 2[R 5| BB 2 25
entities 23,614 - - - - - 41518 65,132
Amounts regularly provided to - FEFEAESBEER
the chief operating decision ~ EHEZL T ELE
maker but notincluded inthe REEZ£8:
measure of segment results:
Income tax expenses BEZW (98) 845 897 58 1,689 768 - 4,159

Note: Non-current assets exclude financial instruments,
deferred tax assets, the interest in an associate and

interests in jointly controlled entities.

Wit ERBEETEEMBIA R
EMIAEE BE N m R R
42 il B R ot
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4545 B

7% R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_Z——F=A=1+—HLLFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuead) 8.
(c) Other information (Continuea)
Geographical information

The Group's turnover which is generated from
customers located in Hong Kong, the Company’s
place of domicile, amounted to HK$1,229,232,000
(2011: HK$705,266,000). Accordingly, no further
analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical
market based on geographical location of customers
has been prepared.

The analysis of the Group’s non-current assets
by geographical location of assets is presented as
follows (Note):

HEER (#)

(c)

Hith&ER (&)
i & & #

AARENEEEATEREES
(FEHE)NE R W RBEE
FZHBEMNERENMETS D
- REABRPMEEEAB
1,229,232,0007t (=T — —F : /&
#705,266,0007T ) °

FIRDEERBEECMNENNTZ
Han T (BFE) -

2012 2011

—E-—F —F——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Hong Kong (place of domicile) & (FTEH[E) 505,804 502,809
The PRC A 157,961 41,304
663,765 544,113

Note: Interest in an associate and interests in jointly
controlled entities are analysed by geographical
location of their respective operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(c) Other information (Continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding
years individually contributing over 10% of the total

8. NEEN &)

(c)

Hit &R ()
EREBEFZEH

REEFERN KB ERTF 2K
ABR BBAAEEEXFEANZ

turnover of the Group is as follows: T BRINAT
2012 2011
—E-=F —F——%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ST IT
Customer A (note) BEEH (k) 258,687 =
Customer B (note) X (KIE) 241,968 192,312
Customer C (note) BEEA (M) 173,635 123,025
674,290 315,337

Note: Revenue from construction contracts income within
the construction segment.

MieE: REBESBZEREANHZK

= o

MRl AR AR | 2011/201256® 165



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 Bt 3R R Bf st
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Httdgx A
2012 2011
—EB--F —F——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T P IT
Other income includes: Hag A B :
Dividend income % B WA 9 3
Interest income B WA 45 18
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  WER&E2 W
plant and equipment - 446
Storage income FRBA 861 859
Sales of scrap material EERLHE 416 735
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B EH
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Interest on: RTZHE
Bank loans wholly repayable within ARRAFRNBHEE L
five years (including bank loan with RITEZX (BEREX
repayment on demand clause) EBEHRZIBITER) 14,121 9,228
Less: Amount capitalised in properties J8ER : B ED 2 &
under development for sale BEERNMEz &5 (8,739) (4,099)
5,382 5,129
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B 4 3R K MfaT

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHIFE

11. BB A& F

2012 2011
—E—-—F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT IT
Profit before taxation has been arrived BRFE AT A2 0B (5T A) ¢
at after charging and (crediting):
Directors’ emoluments (note 12(i))  ZE8& (FIEE123))
Fees - 664 650
Other emoluments —Hii e 10,994 10,058
11,658 10,708
Other staff costs H 8 TKA
Salaries and other benefits e kAR 162,872 149,343
Retirement benefits scheme RRAEFIFH B B3R
contributions 7,567 6,960
Total staff costs A8 TR 182,097 167,011
Depreciation of property, Y BEREETTE
plant and equipment 5,492 4,300
Release of prepaid lease payments  F& 1<+ #H &k 1&E # [a] 215 205
Auditor's remuneration (3 Gl 1,800 1,653
Impairment loss recognised FEW IR 2 R E B 1B
on trade debtors - 649
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEW - HEKKREZ
plant and equipment E1E (Uas) 218 (446)
Net exchange (gain) loss FEN (W) BB (131) 308
Contract costs recognised as TRERAFT AEERK AR
expense in cost of sales 928,713 594,282
Costs of inventories recognised as ~ TFER AT A E KA
an expense in cost of sales 141,849 49,617
Gross rental income under KEHEHSWABRE
operating leases (16,957) (22,197)
Less: Direct operating expenses B R AEEREEHES KA
that generated rental income MmalBNEELE S H
during the year 3,302 4,988
(13,655) (17,209)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B 3R R Bf it
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 1. BRBEER (2)
2012 2011
—E—-CfF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Sub-leasing income A HEKA (861) (859)
Less: Direct operating expenses that & : IR NG JZ A B A 5 FHUR A
generated sub-leasing income el M EELET
during the year 40 37
(821) (822)
Expenses capitalised in cost of BARERENIEKAZHAX
contract work:
Depreciation e 11,110 13,073
Rentals under operating leases in KEHE s HE :
respect of:
— plant and machinery — BB K23 3,237 1,806
— others —HAth 351 204

Note: The Company’s profit for the year amounted to
approximately HK$19,913,000 (2011: HK$50,011,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B 4 3R K MfaT
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EEREEME
EMOLUMENTS
(i) Details of directors’ remuneration are ) UTREEMEZHE:

as follows:

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten ENHENTRZ(ZE——F:+
(2011: ten) directors were as follows: B)ESZEARMEST
For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-Z—_—_F=A=+—HL
£
Other emoluments
Hitt &
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and other incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments

HER IHERR BHREF
ae HA3E R Ed0kA SR L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETT BETL

(Note)

(&)
Cha Mou Sing, Payson EHE - - - - -
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart Fits - 2,668 4,000 400 7,068
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson & /fE - - - - -
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin & & - - - - -
Chan Pak Joe Bt 188 - - - 188
Lam Chat Yu WEF 100 - - - 100
Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 2|7 188 - - - 188
Shen Tai Hing MAE - - - - -
Sun Tai Lun YN 188 - - - 188
Tai Sai Ho e - 1,675 2,000 251 3,926
664 4,343 6,000 651 11,658
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BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHItFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EEREEMNE (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

() Details of directors’ remuneration are ) UTREEMEZHE: (&)
as follows: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 BE-Z——F=A=+—HL
o3
Other emoluments
Hit e
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and other incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments  contributions emoluments
Hek THERR RIRER
itk Hib &R TZEe SRR Zile
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT AT BT BETT
(Note)

(&)

Cha Mou Sing, Payson e - - -
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart Tits - 2,564 3,500 385 6,449
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson ~ &7#4E - - - - =
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin ~ & & - - - - -

Chan Pak Joe Btk 150 = = = 150
Lam Chat Yu WEF 100 7 - - 107
Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 2|72 150 = = = 150
Shen Tai Hing VN 100 - - - 100
Sun Tai Lun YN 150 = = = 150
Tai Sai Ho Bt R - 1,611 1,750 241 3,602
650 4,182 5,250 626 10,708
Note: The performance related incentive payment is g TERABHESRREBEZTEN
determined based on the performance of the A2 EKR R AT 2FREREF
individual and the Group’s performance and MmEEs]

profitability for the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, one director RBE-ZZ——F=A=+—H%

waived emolument of HK$100,000. No director B —(LE FWEB100,000

waived any emolument in the year ended 31 March THMEe REBEE_T——F=A4

2011. =+ —BEE WEEEHEEM
B o
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BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EEREEME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(i) Employees’ emoluments (i) EEME
During the year, the five highest paid individuals REE AZRSHATBIEME
included two directors (2011: two directors), details EE(CE——F MB/EE) 2
of whose emoluments are set out above. The MEZES NS EEH N EX-H
emoluments of the remaining three (2011: three) H=F(ZEBE——F =R )Ra 5
highest paid individuals were as follows: ATZME0T:
2012 2011
= —F——F
HK$'000 HK$000
BET T BT T
Salaries and other benefits e kEMER 2,471 2,370
Performance related incentive ~ L{EXRIREFS
payments 2,000 1,750
Retirement benefits scheme  RIREF 5T 3t 3
contributions 371 336
4,842 4,456
The emoluments of the aforesaid employees were g8 2 e BN T5I4E7

within the following bands:

2012 2011

—2—-F —F——F

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 7 #1,000,001 —#&#1,500,0007T 1 1

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 7 #1,500,001 — & #2,000,0007T 2 2

During the year, no emolument was paid by the Group to ANEE AEBVEANESNES T EES

the directors or highest paid employees as an inducement S fEASENINA R E R SN A K
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for EE 7 EE)  sKBEREE-

loss of office.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHItFE

13. TAXATION CHARGE 13. HIEZH
2012 2011
—EB-=F —F— %
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T ok i
(Restated)
(geE7)
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNEH
Current year KEE 8,960 3,752
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR 63 450
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R ERTER
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR - 504
9,023 4,706
Deferred taxation (note 33) EFERLIE (F7E33) (1,113) (547)
7,910 4,159
Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at 16.5% on the B 4F [ & S TS 5 DA S 51 2R 54 0 A
estimated assessable profits for both years. B16.5%5T & °
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the EHM R EEETEEMNTIE 2% A5 #
rate prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. Profits tax AIEEZERMEFEN -MEFER
arising in the PRC is calculated at 25% on the assessable AR 2 AR 2 FI S A DA R SR B 4 F B925%
profits for both years. &
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13. TAXATION CHARGE (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHIFE

13. HEZH 2

Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the FEBIBAZ DHEEE REmR BRI S
profit before taxation per the consolidated income MR T -
statement as follows:
2012 2011
—E-=-F —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$ 000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(ReE3)

Profit before taxation B 7% A A 136,077 180,158
Tax at the domestic income BRI S E16.5% 2 Fi18

tax rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) (ZE——%:165%) 22,453 29,726
Tax effect of share of profit of B E A af s Hisw 2

an associate (242) (477)
Tax effect of share of profit of &AL R 6B B s F 2

jointly controlled entities MG e (4,147) (14,102)
Tax effect of expenses that are B FT FE AR B )8 1) f

not deductible in determining TNAHR s A 2 B2

taxable profit 1,860 4,469
Tax effect of income that is REEET B AR A B

not taxable in determining BEZRHZWAZHIEZE

taxable profit (11,999) (20,140)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax EEBACAIKRERZ

losses previously not recognised MBEBE s METE (570) (353)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR Z TIFE B 2 T i5 s £ 776 4,360
Tax effect of different tax rates of Bt A R H Ath BE#E R

subsidiaries operating in other BEENTRBE 2 MG E

jurisdictions (284) (278)
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETT 63 954
Taxation charge for the year FEHBEZH 7,910 4,159
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BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

14. DIVIDENDS 14. B 2
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: FRNEERABEDIKEZREWNAT
2012 2011
—E-—C—F —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Ordinary shares: Rl
Interim dividend for 2012 ENZZE—_FHhHRE
— HK1.5 cents per share —FRBEEL5L
(2011: HK1.5 cents per share (Z2—F: 2 ——%F
for 2011) FHEARR B AE R 1.510) 7,314 7,314
Final dividend for 2011 ENZE——FREARES
— HK2.7 cents per share —FRR B2 70
(2011: HK2.5 cents per share —E——F:ZT—FF
for 2010) REIRS BB RE 2 510) 13,164 11,081
20,478 18,395
A final dividend of HK2.7 cents per share totalling EEEERBEHE_ZE—_F=H
HK$13,164,000 in respect of the year ended 31 March =+— Btz KRR EFIRBEE2 71 -
2012 (2011: final dividend of HK2.7 cents per share A HB#13,164,0000T (ZE——F: &
totalling HK$13,164,000 in respect of the year ended E2_E——F=A=+—HILZFKEK
31 March 2011) has been proposed by the directors BEHRRBE2 7L - & £ %13,164,000
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in general IL) B2 BREBSERENREREAS
meeting. HEHE ©
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BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. Bl &7
The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the REEBRERBHIIBEBERFEERF
year is based on the profit for the year of HK$128,167,000 B #128,167,000c (= E ——F : A F|
(profit for the year of 2011: HK$175,999,000 (restated)) 75 #175,999,0007T (& &FF) ) REEZ
and on the 487,559,674 shares in issue for the two years E——F=ZA=+—BHUIMEFESF
ended 31 March 2012 after adjusting for the effect of 2487559674 EEITRMH (ER =
bonus issue of shares during the year ended 31 March ——F=A=+—HILEFERNBETARK
2011. R BELAR)FE-
There were no potential ordinary share in existence for the BEZ——F=A=+—HIEmEF
two years ended 31 March 2012. Accordingly, no diluted EWEABTEETE TR Bt
earnings per share has been presented. WEERTREERF -
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. HEME
HK$'000
BT T
FAIR VALUE ~NYE
At 1 April 2010 R-_ZE—ZFPAH—H 577,080
Additions NE 276
Transfer to properties under development EREFERPIGENE
for sale, at fair value (Note) BERFE (M) (340,000)
Gain on change in fair value N EEE) 7 WS 120,954
At 31 March 2011 R-_E——F=A=1+—H 358,310
Additions INE 205
Disposals HE (14,800)
Gain on change in fair value N EEE W 72,195
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——F=A=+—H 415910
The carrying value of investment properties comprises KEME RRESFEMNE B ZME -
properties in Hong Kong under medium-term leases of HAHA &5 55 %415,910,000T (=
HK$415,910,000 (2011: HK$358,310,000). =T ——4 : B #358,310,0007T ) °
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BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. &YX (#)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 March 2012 and 2011 has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Jones
Lang LaSalle Limited (“JLL"), an independent property
valuer not connected with the Group. JLL has appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation of properties amounting to HK$98,760,000
(2011: HK$88,590,000) was arrived at by reference
to market evidence of transaction prices of similar
properties. The valuation of other properties amounting to
HK$317,150,000 (2011: HK$269,720,000) was arrived
at by reference to the income capitalisation method
which is based on the capitalisation of the net income
potential by adopting an appropriate capitalisation rate,
which is derived from analysis of sale transactions and
interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or
expectations.

All of the Group's property interests in land held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model and
are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

Note: At 5 November 2010, the Group had vacated all tenants
in an investment property and commenced redevelopment
with a view to sale. That property was transferred from
investment properties to properties under development
for sale at its fair value of HK$340,000,000, which
was determined on the basis of a valuation carried out
by JLL as at the date of transfer. The valuation of the
property amounting to HK$340,000,000 was arrived at
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties in the same location and conditions less
costs and developers’ margin for redevelopment of the
property. JLL were of the view that the market value lies in
its potential for redevelopment as at the date of valuation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B 4 3R K MfaT

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BB R&&

Leasehold Furniture
land and Plant and and Leasehold Motor
buildings equipment fixtures improvements vehicles Total
HELH
kBT BEERRE HAREE %1 AE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT  B%TT  A%Tx BT BRTE  B¥Tn

COST R

At 1 April 2010 R-ZE-ZFMA—H 69,876 70,532 12,832 10,053 12,016 175,309
Exchange adjustments EXHE 1,718 492 83 8 93 2.3%
Additions NE 1,006 1,889 2,557 5,188 1,589 12,229
Disposals/write offs HE/HiH - (25) (144) (770) (1,346) (2,285)
At 31 March 2011 R-F——F=A=+—H 72,600 72,888 15,328 14,479 12,352 187,647
Exchange adjustments EXHE 1,056 451 84 6 62 1,659
Additions NE 22 11 714 930 1,029 2,706
Disposals/write offs HE /i - - (766) (720) (905) (2,391)
At 31 March 2012 R-ZZ——F=A=1+—H 73,678 73,350 15,360 14,695 12,538 189,621
DEPRECIATION e

At 1 April 2010 —Z-TFMA—H 9,349 43,546 9,151 5,590 8,909 77,045
Exchange adjustments B R 246 122 42 - 33 443
Provided for the year FERE 2,437 10,894 1,598 1,316 1,128 17,373
Eliminated on disposalsiwrite offs Hi%& / Hfi 85 5 i s - (4) (122) (770) (1,346) (2,242)
At 31 March 2011 R-ZE——F=B=+—H 12,532 54,558 10,669 6,136 8,724 92,619
Exchange adjustments &% 211 135 55 1 26 428
Provided for the year FERE 2,522 8,632 1,800 2,389 1,259 16,602
Eliminated on disposalsiwrite offs & /4 &5 B &4 - - (766) (393) (905) (2,064)
At 31 March 2012 R-E——F=A=+—H 15,265 63,325 11,758 8,133 9,104 107,585
CARRYING VALUES HREE

At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——#=A=1+—H 58,413 10,025 3,602 6,562 3,434 82,036
At 31 March 2011 R-E——F=A=+—H 60,068 18,330 4,659 8,343 3,628 95,028

FESAIEER AR AR | 2011/20125F% 177



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& 81 % < fii 5

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_Z——F=A=1+—HLLFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17.
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates

per annum:
Leasehold land QOver the unexpired term of
and buildings the relevant lease period
from 30 to 50 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of the term of
improvements the lease period or 5 years
Other assets 5 years

The carrying value of leasehold land and buildings
comprises properties in Hong Kong except for certain
buildings amounting to HK$18,925,000 (2011:
HK$19,414,000) which are located in the PRC. The
carrying value of the properties located in Hong Kong and
the PRC under medium-term leases is HK$58,413,000
(2011: HK$60,068,000).

ME- BB RSE &)

A EME - BERRELREBERER
HEEPGHEE  FHOT:

MELE BRAEORERFH

BF H=TEZR+%F
K BRAMEKREmE D

FRF (AREERE)
HEE H1F

Br Al {8 {E 7% #18,925,0007t (= &
—— 4 : B#19,414,0007T ) i 7 7 Bl HY
BFIN HEIHRIEFHEBNYEA
oM BBERTPRAYE FEHEER
B {E &7 #58,413,0007T (Z B ——4:
60,068,0007T ) °

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. EfTHEFKIE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BRI
The Group’s prepaid lease AEBEZENBEFIEBRE:
payments comprise:
Leasehold land in the PRC RABRZEE i
Medium-term lease FHEIRE 6,955 6,916
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  ARE A B B Z DT
Current asset mENE E 215 205
Non-current asset ERBE E 6,740 6,711
6,955 6,916
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHIFE

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. BFERNAl =
2012 2011
—B-C=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cost of unlisted investment in RIEETEEE R E 2 IRE KA
an associate 16,576 16,576
Share of post-acquisition profit, D% 2 R A
net of dividends received (FBR IR AR E) 3,823 2,356
20,399 18,932
Details of the Group’s associate as at 31 March 2012 and R_EBE——F=A=+—"HE_T——
2011 are as follows: FZA=T—BARKEBERTZFHES
R
Place of
incorporation
and principal Attributable interest and
Form of place of Class of proportion of voting power
Name of associate business structure operation share held held by the Group Principal activity
AfMEZtBER  AERG rEBEGRAES
BERNR 2R EBREBER TEEEME Al RBREREzLG FEER
2012 2011
—F--f% —_F—F
Hoi Bun Godown Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50% Property investment
Company Limited company
BEERAERRA ARAF BB =Rl MERE
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BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 19.

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associate is set out below:

AEBEBERRZHBEHEHINNT

2012 2011
—EB-=F —F— %
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ok i
Total assets BERE 45,407 37,876
Total liabilities BERE (4,608) (13)
Net assets HEE 40,799 37,863
Group’s share of net assets of an AEBEEBERTFEE
associate 20,399 18,932
Revenue & 990 1,138
Profit for the year RNEE 3 A 2,934 5,788
Group’s share of result and other REEFERE B LR E QA
comprehensive income of an ¥EREMZEERA
associate for the year 1,467 2,894

180 HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2011/2012



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B 4 3R K MfaT

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHIFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 20. £ E#E=H E®R z# =
ENTITIES
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Cost of unlisted investments RIELETHRZEFEE 2
in jointly controlled entities RE KA 125,977 10,000
Share of post-acquisition profit and 7314 W& 18 & 7 &2 H 2 E A
other comprehensive income, (BRI E)
net of dividends received 12,703 55,132
138,680 65,132
Details of the Group’s jointly controlled entities as at 31 R-ZE——F=RA=+—HERZ=ZZT——
March 2012 and 2011 are as follows: FZA=T+—HAXEERLREZEFHEEZ
REMT
Attributable
Place of interest and
Form of incorporation proportion of
Name of jointly business and principal Class of voting power
controlled entity structure place of operation share held held by the Group Principal activities
AEEER
a0 B 3L 3t B Jiig=18) BRARE R 2 &
HEZHER2ER EBEEFKS RIEZEEHY 55 REER 2L TEEK
2012 2011
“E--f Z—Z——F
Hip Hing-Hanison Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction for a
Joint Venture I ] o N basement, podium and
hE - E N F transfer plate at Tung Chung
BEMRRBME FER
BHE
Hanison-Hip Hing Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction for
Joint Venture W IEEE B TER townhouse development

EY - HERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_Z——F=A=1+—HLLFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 0. fEEHIERZEZE (&)
ENTITIES (continuead)
Attributable
Place of interest and
Form of incorporation proportion of
Name of jointly business and principal Class of voting power
controlled entity structure place of operation share held held by the Group Principal activities
AEEES
T B 3L i 2 R 5 BRAER 2
HEZHERZER EBEBKS RIZEERY 5 RERERZLHA TEEHR
2012 2011

—B-Zf C"T——F

Hip Hing-Hanison Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction for
Joint Venture WIEE B TER superstructure
hE - e work at Tung Chung

B LERE TR

Hanison-Hip Hing Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction for
Joint Venture W3EEE Bk TEA superstructure work at Hong
B —HEEE AR Kong International Airport
REBERES FEEE
I
Crown Cosmos Limited liability ~ British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary 50% 50% Investment holding in Hong
Investments Limited company Hong Kong £ Kong
BETREFRAT BRRA RERIHE/BA REBETREERER
Poly Rising Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50% Property development in Hong
Development Limited ~ company BB Eiak Kong
MEERERRA BRAA REBETMEERER
Hip Hing-Hanison Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction at Lam
Joint Venture TIEE B NER Tin
T B — B N A IR EmMEETR
Hip Hing-Hansion Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction at Tin
Joint Venture WIEEE 0 NERA Shui Wai
1n L — st i R ) fIRRKEMZETR
Haining Jiafeng Real Limited liability ~ People’s Republic of  Registered 49% - Property development in
Estate Development company China (“the PRC") capital Haining, the PRC
Limited BRAF hE ARAME &R RPEEEERNE
HEZEWEERD (TE])
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B 4 3R K MfaT
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 20. tEEHIERZERE &)

ENTITIES (continuea)
The summarised financial information in respect of the RNEE 5 Be 3| & B 25 ) FE 4 2k R4
Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities attributable BRI ERCUBERBENRNT:

to the Group’s interest therein, is set out below:

2012 2011

—E—-—F —E——4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Current assets MEEE 208,198 151,001

Current liabilities nBaE (69,623) (85,869)
Non-current assets FEmBEE 105 —

Revenue recognised EiEmPEROUBA (FFE)

in profit or loss (note) 245,761 341,783

Expenses recognised in profit or loss 7E 8% P R A 2 (220,631) (256,316)
Note: In 2011, this included the revenue of a jointly controlled iz R=T——F BERERELHER
entity attributable to the Group’s interest therein of BAHNEERMENHERA ZER
HK$245,480,000 (2012: nil) earned from sale of 8178 8245 .480,0007T (Z & — =4
properties which were developed for sale, the remaining BINFRIBRASE IS EERAES
balance of revenue earned were construction income. HEZEHEE R WRhBE AR

EL N
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BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE

At the end of the reporting period, total cumulative
borrowing costs capitalised in the properties under
development for sale were HK$23,301,000 (2011:
HK$28,220,000).

The carrying value of properties under development for
sale comprises properties in Hong Kong under leases as

21. FRPZHEWE

RBEBR BWEAERBERP ZF
EMERNZEBREERABREAS
23,301,000 (T ——F: B
28,220,0007T) °

BRPZHEVEIREEDUNES
UHEERAFENYE-

follows:
2012 2011
—E——fF —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T ST IT
Long lease REHEE 409,203 380,338
Medium-term lease FRHAEE 217,297 395,165
626,500 775,503

The amount is expected to be recovered more than twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.

BRZFAKRNFEER TN+ (@
AAE -

22. INVENTORIES 22 74
2012 2011
= —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T TSI
Building materials BEME 17,882 21,163
Health products — finished goods fERREE n — 2K M 10,403 9,946
Others — finished goods H b — 2K 3,229 2,421
31,514 33,530
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B #3R X BfaE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

23. AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE (PAYABLE) ON  23. fEU (FEfT) 84 T2 I1A

CONTRACT WORK
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Contract costs incurred plus FTEE & 2 & AR 1N
recognised profits less B2 105 AR
recognised losses B R EE 6,307,698 7,186,387
Less: Progress billings R ER K (6,216,182) (7,141,807)
91,516 44 580
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  ¥& B 892 D4
Amounts receivable FEME H TIRRIA
on contract work 169,092 171,631
Amounts payable on contract work ~ FET & 4 T2 318 (77,576) (127,051)
91,516 44 580
Both balances of amounts receivable (payable) on U (FEfT) & 4 TI2 B & 1 45 84 1
contract work are expected to be settled within twelve BN RERAREN T —E L RNEIE -

months after the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& 81 % < fii 5

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHItFE

24. PROGRESS PAYMENTS RECEIVABLE 24, FEWEE A

Progress payments receivable represent the amounts
receivable, after deduction of retention money, for
construction services which usually fall due within 30
days after the work is certified. Retention money is usually
withheld from the amounts receivable for work certified.
50% of the retention money is normally due upon
completion of construction services and the remaining
50% portion is due upon finalisation of construction
accounts. Retention money receivable is expected to
be settled within twelve-months after the finalisation of
construction accounts (note 25).

FEUGE E R IRIEEMRRE SR 2 B
BERBHRIE  —REANTRRESRER
=TEAXM - HEERERETIEZEK
PR RES-REEHNE EPEDZ
E+RFETIRIEY MESKBESZ
ATARZERERNRREREDIH-
UREEHERNKREERE T @
AREE (MFE25) °

2012 2011
—EB-=F —F——%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ok i
Progress payments receivable from: [EUR T %I & T8 2 # [E 308 :
Subsidiaries of HKR International EAEEHEEEFR AR
Limited (“HKRI") (Note) (TEEEER]) 2B AT
(HtaE) 41,342 13,619
Third parties F=4 67,198 4,073
108,540 17,692

Note: HKRI is a substantial shareholder of the Company and has
significant influence over the Company.

Management closely monitors the credit quality of
progress payments receivables. 74% (2011: 100%) of the
progress payments receivable that are neither past due
nor impaired are considered to be of good credit quality
based on historical repayment from the debtors.

186 HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2011/2012

Mis: BEERA/AARZEIERR BY

RRARBERTZES -

EREETIERRUEERRZEEE

= REBEEBAZERESL  KNFET74%
—T——F:100% ) Z FEUCEE FRIBIL

EEMYRE FEEERRM-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B #3R X BfaE

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT-——F=A=+—RHIFE

24. PROGRESS PAYMENTS RECEIVABLE 24, BWEERIE (2)

(Continued)
The aged analysis of progress payments receivable is as FEYCEE RIBZ BREE DT T -
follows:
2012 2011
—E-=F —FE——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 30 days =+HR 80,128 17,692
31 - 60 days —+—=x+A 10,505 -
61 — 90 days ~tTt—=n1+H 14,519 —
Over 90 days TR = 3,388 =
108,540 17,692
The following is an aging analysis of progress payments 28 BB RIERE 2 FBYCE E 508 2 Bk
receivable which are past due but not impaired: oM :
2012 2011
—E--F —F—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
31 - 60 days =t+—Z=x1+H 10,505 -
61 — 90 days ~t—=hn1+H 14,519 =
Over 90 days Bid+ A 3,388 =
28,412 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 Bt 3R R Bf st
For the year ended 31 March 2012

3

E_T—_—_F=A=+—HItFE

25. RETENTION MONEY RECEIVABLE 25. IR E &

2012 2011
—EB--F —F——%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Retention money receivable from: ERTIEIEZRES
Subsidiaries of HKRI B 2 B PR 2 BT B A A 34,109 34,712
Third parties F=%& 85,397 70,462
119,506 105,174
Amount receivable within one year ~ —F R FEU FUIE 76,316 71,056
Amount receivable after one year —F 15 Y IE 43,190 34,118
119,506 105,174

26.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

26. BIUHRIE -ZE& REMKIE

PREPAYMENTS
2012 2011
—EB-—F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade debtors e R IE 159,844 38,253
Other receivables H b fE U 5RI8 16,055 129
Deposits biraca 22,236 11,909
Prepayments TEfT IR 8,192 6,957
206,327 57,248

188 HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2011/2012



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T

26. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Proceeds from property sales are receivable pursuant to
the terms of the sale and purchase agreements. Retention
money receivables in respect of construction services
are settled in accordance with the terms of respective
contracts. In addition to the payment of rental deposits,
tenants are required to pay monthly rents in respect of
leased properties in advance. For other businesses, the
Group generally allows a credit period of not more than
90 days (2011: not more than 90 days) to its customers.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group will
internally assess the credit quality of the potential
customers and define appropriate credit limit. Other
receivables are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable
on demand.

Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade
debtors. 90% (2011: 70%) of the trade debtors that
are neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit
quality based on their historical repayments. Included in
the Group's trade debtors balance are trade debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$16,476,000 (2011:
HK$11,487,000) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances. There are no balances included in
other receivables which are past due.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RIFE

26. BIUHRIE - ZE& RBAMKIE

(%)

KEMEHEMFTRADREE HZEN
{RAREER]T - BERBHBRRE G
BRMGREE - ERNEMER A5H
—RETEEPTZRATA (ZF——
FAZRATR)ZBRES -AEEE
B EP ZAIKBERP ZEEEXR
TER ARG - MR A EEEREE - Hitb
FEURIA T EE I 2 8 MR EREE
= o

EEESRYERRENRKEZEFEEER
£ WRAENO% (ZTE——F:70% )&
Wk IR RT M d B - IR (B - T AR IR AR
REBEms EEEEZRT -AEEZ
EWRIEEHBIERREERLN BB
16,476,000 2 FEY /B (Z T —— 5 :

FE#£11,487,0007T) - RBEEARAE®
HR i 7N 6% (B 30 4 it EOR BB I8 R B o
AEBEMERZEEHRIFETMRAR -
HiEWRBETEBIEC BB Atke
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHItFE

26. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 26.
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The aged analysis of trade debtors presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 B 3R R Bf it

B IR - 2 E RIETRIE

(%)

PN TR IR 2 B 0 AT TO AR BB AR sl & AR
ERZBEFZAHMBEZINMT

follows:

2012 2011

—E—_F —E——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Within 30 days =+HR 131,632 15,222
31 - 60 days =+—=x1+H 8,703 13,249
61 — 90 days AT—ZNTH 5,327 1,858
Over 90 days Bidh+ A 14,182 7,924
159,844 38,253

The following is an ageing analysis of trade debtors which

B8 BB RIERE Z BRI Z BR ik 7

are past due but not impaired: R AENE
2012 2011
S —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Within 30 days =+HA 622 469
31 - 60 days =+t—&=,x1+H 707 2,422
61 — 90 days ~NTt—=hn1+H 965 868
Over 90 days Ryl =! 14,182 7,728
16,476 11,487
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B #3R X BfaE

26. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Included in the above trade debtors are amounts due
from related parties of trading nature as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT-——F=A=+—RHIFE

26. BIHRIA & REAMKIE

(%)

EAERKFEABEREREBEEALA
BHMEZHKBAWT

2012 2011

—E-=F —T——%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

A jointly controlled entity HEEH T 367 -

Indirect subsidiaries of CCM Trust CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited 2

(Cayman) Limited (“CCM Trust”) [E 52 Ff &8 2 7] ([CCM Trust])

(Note) (F3E) 1,102 3,120

1,469 3,120

Note: CCM Trust is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and has significant influence over the Company. In
addition, CCM Trust is holding the shares of the Company
as the trustee of certain but not identical discretionary
trusts of which three directors, who are also substantial
shareholders, of the Company are among the discretionary
objects.

Movement in the impairment losses recognised on trade
debtors:

BfzE: CCM TrustBA ARz EZ/E- A
HARRIBERTE N HIN CCM
TrustbA s T ARRBMBEFENETEAZ
FOBBLERS ZEET2HB
RHAERE=RARRES-

FEMRIER R ERBIRZE

2012 2011

—E——F —T——fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Balance at the beginning of the year & 45 &4 2,649 2,000
Impairment losses recognised 2R e KSR IEE 1R

on trade debtors - 649

Balance at the end of the year FRER 2,649 2,649
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 Bt 3R R Bf st
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

26.

27.

28.

29.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 26. EWIRIE e RFENKIE
PREPAYMENTS (Continued) (%)
Included in the impairment loss recognised on trade EUWRENREBEREBEERAR
debtors are individually impaired trade debtors with B 2,649,000 (2 — —F B
an aggregated balance of HK$2,649,000 (2011: 2,649,000t ) A 16 Bl B B T <2 FE W
HK$2,649,000) which have either been placed under T8 ZORME T M R YRR IE /B AR Sk B 75
liquidation or in financial difficulties. The Group does not HIRR 2 o AR BRRFA 5 LA SR (1A
hold any collateral over these balances. B e
Out of the Group’s trade debtors a balance amounting to REBEZEWFIER LEBRSEER 2
HK$1,956,000 (2011: HK$3,120,000) is denominated in M BB AINZ B¥EFIE 2 BEERBIAA
RMB, a currency other than the functional currency of the R ¥ 5|8 2 ##1,956,0000T (ZF——
relevant group entity. £ :3,120,0007T ) °
AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINTLY 27. BRI ER HE QT
CONTROLLED ENTITY/AN ASSOCIATE IE
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ZF AN SR - B B %A ESRENRE
demand. iR e
INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 28. HIEEEZHE
Investments held for trading comprise investments in BEEBEZRE BERBRFETZ
equity securities listed on the Stock Exchange whose fair RAFHFILE 2 A FE A B 283,0007T
value amounted to HK$283,000 (2011: HK$334,000). —F——F : %¥334,0007T) °
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29. T4 M I A
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BETRT BT T
Assets Liabilities
gE =L
The Group's derivative financial AEBZITEMH
instruments comprises: TABE:
Commodity forward contracts EmBAEEH - (2,619) -
Foreign exchange forward contracts SMNEHIE AL 213 - -
213 (2,619) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

29. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29. iT4£ 8B IR (@)

(Continueq)

During the years ended 31 March 2012, the Group used HE-_T——F=A=1+—HIFEAN"
commodity forward contracts to minimise its exposure to AEEMNAERBAEESHNBERMEHE
price fluctuations of its raw materials. The Group does &R E R 2 &K o IRFF RS E I A&
not currently designate any hedging relationship on the REPETMEEmBAE S NEEEM
commodity forward contracts for the purpose of hedge HAPBER - BmEN 2 A TFERFER
accounting. The fair values of commodity contracts were BEBRIMBERASBHAEERR
determined by reference to the forward price of related JE o ENEIERIEIE - & FRIRIR S HEITH
metals quoted from London Metal Exchange as at the end EITFRAE AmHBaNERRRH
of the reporting period. At the respective maturity dates, FT

the contracts are settled net in cash with the issuer. Major
terms of the commodity forward contracts are set out

below:
2012 —E—_"fF

Quantity Commodity
Currency Commodity (in tonnes) Maturity forward price
8% M HE(AM) 2 A AmHEER
usSD Aluminium 300 2 May 2012 USD2,830/metric tonne
E7T iz —E——#HHA-H FAME2 830 7T
usSD Aluminium 200 5 September 2012 USD2,336/metric tonne
ETT i —T——FhAARA B /AWE2,336F 70
usD Aluminium 80 5 October 2012 USD2,385/metric tonne
E7T iz —E——F+HEH FAME2 3852 7T
usSD Aluminium 220 1 January 2013 USD2,420/metric tonne
ETT i —T—=%—A—8 B AWE2,420F 70
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2012

=

E_T—_—_F=A=+—HItFE

29. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

30.

(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following foreign exchange forward contracts in order to
manage the Group's foreign currency exposure in relation
to foreign currency forecast sales and foreign currency
denominated monetary items. The Group does not
currently designate hedging relationship on the foreign
exchange forward contracts for the purpose of hedge
accounting. Major terms of the foreign exchange forward
contracts are set out below:

2012
Notional amount Maturity
EREH EH B

N e Ead

29. ITEMBIAR (&)

RBRERR AEEEUATIHINEREEH
B S EATRMING I E RINEFHE
SHIEE - M RINE RS - REFAKE
YELSHPEFMEINEREEOETE
EIEH AR - INERIE & 4 E 2 IGHEH
S0

—E—-—f&

Exchange rate

Hax

Sell USD500,000 29 October 2013

& 1 % 7t500,000 —ET—=F+H=+ANAB

The Group’s derivative financial instruments which
amounted to HK$2,406,000 (2011: nil) are denominated
in USD, the currency other than the functional currencies
of the relevant group entities.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less at an average interest rate
of 0.01% (2011: 0.01%) per annum.

30.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B #3R X BfaE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

30. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued) 30. SRITERREE (&)

The Group’s bank balances that are denominated in AEENEBAEEER 2IEE BN
currencies other than the functional currencies of the ZEBINEZRITEBRETIAT :

relevant group entities are set out in below.

2012 2011

= —F——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

MOP BT 1,354 2,636
AUD BT 2,041 28
usD ETT 1,334 672
RMB AR 7,886 2,609
At 31 March 2012, bank balances and cash of R-_E——F=HA=+—HB Bk
HK$11,719,000 (2011: HK$2,897,000) were denominated 11,719,000t (=ZE——F : B K
in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in 2,897,00070) ZSRITEB AR £ AR
the international market. The exchange rate of RMB is WESL(E Sy S S A R AR IS R
regulated by the government and the remittance of these o N\ RIETERZ R BIEATARE R
funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions EH A & & 78S BT E i A IMNE

imposed by the PRC government. B 51 FR PR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 Bt 3R R Bf st
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_ZT——#=A=1+—HI&EE

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 1. ERFRERECESFIE

2012 2011

—E--F —F——%

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T ok e

Trade payables FET5RIR 130,164 46,356
Retention payable ERES

— amount payable within one year ——FRERFRIE 48,027 64,458
Retention payable ERRES

— amount payable after one year ——F IR RIB 35,566 14,296

Accrued operating costs and charges Z&t& @K AN E 71,683 63,191

Accrued costs for construction work R &t T2 A 91,622 36,819

Temporary receipts B2 B UL EY 2 3R IR 4,894 4,527

Deposits received B W EZ & 6,182 6,081

388,138 235,728

e SR fRie DT a0 T

The aged analysis of trade payables based on the invoice
date is as follows:

2012 2011

—E--F —T——%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T ST T

Within 30 days =+tHR 115,769 38,681
31 - 60 days =+—Z,~1+H 7,535 2,334
61 — 90 days Nt—Z=A+A 2,250 432
Over 90 days AR =! 4,610 5,009
130,164 46,356
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RIFE

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continvea) 31. IEH B RETCENSIE (&)

Included in the above trade payables are amounts due to FLAENRIBEARERNBEEALTR
related parties of trading nature as follows: BHMHEZRENT :

2012 2011

—E-=F —F——%

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

A subsidiary of Mingly Corporation & H 5B Z /& A &

(Note) (F3E) 4,467
Subsidiaries of HKRI FZE R 2 B AT 21

4,488 9

Note: Mingly Corporation is ultimately controlled by a substantial fieF: BHNEEBRARRAEERRRKIE

shareholder of the Company. i o
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

=

E_T—_—_F=A=+—HItFE

32. BANK LOANS

32.

The bank loans are repayable as follows:

N e Ead

RITE
FEEIE 2 RITEFWT :

2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T P IT
Carrying amount repayable (Note):  FE(EZEBRmEE (MisE) :
Within one year —F R 496,500 364,789
In the second year REZFA 1,000 42,000
In the third to fifth years inclusive REZZFERAFR
(BREEEMS) 211,800 177,800
After the fifth years HBiRAF 25,000 26,000
734,300 610,589
Analysis of carrying amounts: BREE DT
Amounts due within one year —FNE|HH S
shown under current liabilities BREBABEZER 496,500 364,789
Carrying amount of bank loans BARREHRET —FR
that are not repayable within one EEEMHEEK
year from the end of the reporting ~ BIREKEE
period but contain a repayment RITEEREAE
on demand clause (shown under (RmBBEETZEY)
current liabilities) 237,800 204,800
Amounts shown under DERTEBEBEZERE
current liabilities 734,300 569,589
Amounts shown under NERIERBEBELERE
non-current liabilities - 41,000
734,300 610,589
Bank overdrafts RITBEX - 5,289
Bank loans RITER 734,300 605,300
734,300 610,589
Secured A A 464,300 365,300
Unsecured 474 1 270,000 245,289
734,300 610,589
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32.

33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B #3R X BfaE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

BANK LOANS (continuead)

The bank loans are secured by charges over certain
properties of the Group, which are disclosed in note 38.

Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment
dates set out in the respective loan agreements.

The Group’s bank loans are floating-rate borrowings
which are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
interest is charged at a range from HIBOR + 0.65% to
HIBOR + 2.95% per annum (2011: from HIBOR + 0.60%
to HIBOR + 2.00% per annum).

The weighted average effective interest rates on the
Group's loans is 2.11% (2011: 1.49%) per annum.

DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

32.

33.

RITEM (2)

ZFRITEFURNEEE TOREER
FHIB OB FE38H 5 o

Bt

IEw:

" RERRBERSERBHEIAE
REAHEE-

REFBZETERTERBEINEZF
BFEER - FHEAFBRITAER
B 10.65% 2= BB RITRIZES B M02.95%
FE - (ZE——F - FMNEHEBRT
B EHFEI0.6%EHBRITREZEF 20
2.00% ) °

AEEERZNMEFHERFENER

211% (ZZE——4F:1.49%) °
IEERIE

IR B MBIV RS - & TIEEHRIAE
ENBBEEEREE AT SRV R
SRREF IR R Z DT

2012 2011 2010

—E-Z—Zf —E2——% Z—Z—FTF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T BT T

(Restated) (Restated)

(&&E5) (=&E7)

Deferred tax assets IEIEFIEE 784 = =
Deferred tax liabilities R IEEE (6,286) (6,615) (7,162)
(5,502) (6,615) (7,162)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 Bt 3R R Bf st
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

33. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 33. IRIERHIE (&)
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities AEBTEEEHBEE (BE) KRS
(assets) of the Group and movements thereon during the BARZAIFEREmMEEZEENT

current and prior years:

Accelerated

tax Tax
depreciation losses Total
i1 53
BRIGITE BRBER wmE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETIT  ARTT AT

(Restated)
(ge&E7)
At 1 April 2010 R-ZE—ZFFMA—H 13,117 (5,955) 7,162
Charge (credit) to consolidated RZFERiRE RmE PR
income statement for the year S (FFA) (2,848) 2,301 (547)
At 31 March 2011 R-_T——%F
=A=+—8H 10,269 (3,654) 6,615
Credit to consolidated income RAFELHZERERF
statement for the year STA (634) (479) (1,113)
At 31 March 2012 RZE—=F
=—A=+—8H 9,635 (4,133) 5,502
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused RBEHRR NEBRBAZHBEERA
tax losses of HK$101,501,000 (2011: HK$97,983,000) 7B #101,501,000c (ZZE——F B
available for offset against future profit. A deferred tax 97,983,0007T) ' Al B {EE $H R K 2 &
asset has been recognised in respect of HK$25,046,000 F o B 5 I8 & 1878 #25,046,0007T (=
(2011: HK$22,143,000) of such losses. No deferred T — — £ 5102 143 0007 ) HER AR
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the FEFRIEE E - BT BEMET R R 2 ) -
remaining HK$76,455,000 (2011: HK$75,840,000) 18F 4 Tk L 4 75 1H /B9 18 8 #676,455,0007T
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All — T ——4F : F 75 840,0007T ) FER
the unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward RIBELERIBEE - AR ERZHIBEE
indefinitely. Al B fRPR HRAS 6 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RIFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. IE&
No. of shares HK$'000
g 4= BT T
Authorised: JATE ¢
Shares of HK$0.10 each H{E 7B #0.107T 2 &R
Balance as at 1 April 2010, R-ZZE-—ZFFWHA—H"
31 March 2011 and —E——®%=A=+—H8BK
31 March 2012 —E——_HF=HA=+—H2
#E 5 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRER:
Shares of HK$0.10 each H{E 7B %0.107T 2 &R
Balance as at 1 April 2010 RZZTE—TFMNA—H & 443,236,068 44,324
Bonus shares issued FREBITALK
during the year 44 323,606 4,432
Balance as at 31 March 2011 —E——HF=A=+—H8BRK
and 31 March 2012 —E——_H#=A=+—82
Fegs 487,559,674 48,756

By an ordinary resolution passed on 10 August 2010,

= 2=,

the issued share capital was increased by way of a RER

bonus issue by applying HK$4,432,000 charging to the
contributed surplus account in payment in full at par of
44 323,606 shares of HK$0.10 each on the basis of one
bonus share for every ten shares.

All bonus shares rank pari passu with the then existing

shares.

RE-_Z-—ZF/\ATHBEZER

BRARRBARKREDEE

4,432,0007¢T I A TR () AT 2 %
17— BRAL R 2 B4 - 8£1744,323,606 &
PREMEE #0.107T 2 ST B 2 AL - 48

B BT -

TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2012

3

E_T—_—_F=A=+—HItFE

35. RESERVES

36.

Contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate share capital of the
subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired by
the Company and the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued at the time of the group corporate
reorganisation, less the par value of the bonus shares
issued by the Company.

Special reserve of the Group represents the aggregate
of contributions from the then shareholders of the
companies comprising the Group and other subsidiaries
of HKRI before the group corporate reorganisation.

ACQUISITION OF A JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITY

On 15 April 2011, the Group entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement to acquire 100% of the
issued share capital of Wisdom Mount Investment Limited
(“Wisdom Mount”) and assignment of a shareholder’s
loan of RMB51,264,000 (approximately HK$61,081,000).

35.

36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T

36. ACQUISITION OF A JOINTLY

CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)

Wisdom Mount, which was incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, is an investment holding company which
owns 49% equity interest in BERZLEMEGR A
7] Haining Jiafeng Real Estate Development Limited
(“Haining Jiafeng”). The Group and the other joint
venturer have the right to appoint the same number
of directors of Haining Jiafeng and all of the strategic
financial and operating decisions require unanimous
consent of the Group and the other joint venturer.
Accordingly, the Group exercises joint control over
Haining Jiafeng with the other joint venturer. Haining
Jiafeng is engaged in property development, which
owns the land use right and has the right to develop
and construct office premises on the land located in
Haining, the PRC (“the Haining Project”). The vendor,
Clear Shine is an indirect 65% owned subsidiary of
Mingly Corporation, an indirect subsidiary of a substantial
shareholder of, and has significant influence over, the
Company. The acquisition has been completed on 30
June 2011. Details of the consideration and the assets
and liabilities acquired are set out below:

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RIFE

36. WEEHEEHEE 2

BEAABREBEXHEER LZKER
BRG] HESEZLYRMERRAA
([(BERZY|)249% X - AEBLE
EHAEENSEREZAHARAKENE
ERERBIEMEREERTEHES
NAREEEEET —BRAE Bt &%
EEMEASE A HER BITFEARE
i - BEREREYERRE HE LT
REERZRUAFBREGE i EF
BREZHAME(BEEEB]) -BEF
JEABIER A IR A & AMingly Corporation
(BHE&EE) REEES% B RF -
ENEBAEEARBEERR (HEAAA
BEAFEN) 2HEERBAR - LIEK
BER=_Z—FA=THZ=MK - W&
ZREBEERBEBEZFBEHIGET

Consideration transferred REEHS=

HK$'000
ST T
Cash e 95,976
Contingent consideration HARE 14,253

Professional fees capitalised in interest BRCRERZEFERE 2 Em
in a jointly controlled entity BEEEH 1,221
Total BET 111,450
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 Bt 3R R Bf st
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

36. ACQUISITION OF A JOINTLY 36. WEHLREEFIER 2

CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)

The contingent consideration of HK$14,253,000 is
payable by the Group on completion of the construction
project; or 5 years after the completion date of the
acquisition; or a date to be mutually agreed by the
vendor and the acquirer, whichever is the earliest, when
the accumulated net profit after tax generated from
the Haining Project exceeds RMB46,500,000. The fair
value of the contingent consideration is estimated to be
HK$14,253,000 because the management considers that
it is highly likely that the specified level of accumulated
net profit after tax of Haining Jiafeng can be achieved
within the time specified. The contingent consideration is
included as other long-term payable in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at
the date of acquisition

BEEEAZZNFaM (BHR)BE
AR #46,500,0007T AR EBERESE
HBA TR KRB EKARAF HBE
FEEZHABBEZ BN (AKF
BEERE) - HAREHNRFEMB S
78¥14,253,0007C ' BREEREZ BEE
BEREMARFad (BRKR) AR
EIEERBRZEIEEKRT - HARRER
AR B FIEIROR R 6 E b R EAFE A

T ©

REBHEWBEERCHEIAR

HK$'000
BT T
Interest in a jointly controlled entity HEEHIE S 2w 115,977
Bank balances and cash IRTTHEB KRS 9
Other payables and accrued operating cost £ th & <t FRIE & 2518 &k R (4,536)
Amount due to a shareholder JE A5 AR 3R 3R 1B (61,081)
Net assets acquired WhE & E SR 50,369
Shareholder’s loan assigned to the Group ERTAEB ZBRRERK 61,081
Total consideration RIBARRE 111,450
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEE 2 FRES RN
Cash consideration paid BEfNRERE 97,197
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances B BWERE EREEE
acquired 9
97,188
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s former share option scheme was adopted
on 3 January 2002 and was terminated on 21 September
2011. Pursuant to the Company’'s new share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) which was adopted and became
effective on 21 September 2011, all directors (including
independent non-executive directors), full-time employees
and consultants of the Company, its subsidiaries and/or its
associates are eligible to participate in the Scheme.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the participants
who have been granted options under the Scheme to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interest in the Company
and to encourage them to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

(@) Maximum number of shares available
for issuance

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of approval of
the Scheme. A total of 48,755,967 shares of the
Company is available for issue under the Scheme
which represents 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of approval of the
Scheme and the date of this report.

The overall limit on the number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.

37.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItEFE

BRERE

AAEENBEREAIINR _FTT_F
—AZHRERBER-_FT——FNA
Z T — BRI RBA R R AR AR
AE(TZFE]) (R=ZF——FNA
Tt BERARER) ARF - HNEB
NEAR/SMENTREES (BREE
VIFMITESR) 2REBRERNTE2
BT EI 2B

it 8l B R BRRIEZT SIERE
BREANBBARAAR TR 22EE 1R
HEARRRRARE ZHE - W B
DEEQ/RRBRERR BB

)

(a)

ARE] R ERBAD 2 BEMB A -

AT IR EE LR

AR AT A IR IR AT 8 R AN A BMESA
H A 51 84X o0 BB A4 T DATT (&
RETHRMDEE TNEEBNZ
AHEIHL/E R B HITAR ARG K
10% ° Z&T 8l AT & 1T 2 AR B
17 48 21 /348,755,9678% » 15 7% &1 &
#EB RAREBMARF 2B 3
TTIRZREN10% °

RIFZET 8 AR BEM E T Sl
P8 452t 0 1l AR 7 168 P P e JEE 1T
1M A T 2 ANA BID BB 1R
BN AR B HITZARFR
1730% 2 BIRMR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 Bt 3R R Bf st
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b) Maximum entitlement of each
participant

(1)

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each participant (including both exercised
and unexercised options) under the Scheme
or any other share option schemes adopted
by the Company in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue unless
otherwise approved by shareholders of the
Company.

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in rule 1.01
of the Listing Rules), would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted to
such person in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of the grant:

(i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the shares in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares on date of
grant in excess of HK$5.0 million,

such grant of option shall be subject to prior
approval of the shareholders of the Company
who are not connected persons of the
Company as defined in the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange.

37. BRHESTE (#)

(b) E2REZERERELR

1

(2)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

Within ten years from the date on which an option
is granted or such shorter period as the Board of
Directors or the relevant committee thereof may
specify.

Minimum period, if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be
exercised

At the time of granting an option, the Board of
Directors or the relevant committee thereof must
specify the minimum period(s) and/or achievement
of performance targets, if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

Options may be exercised at any time after the
minimum periods of time held and/or achievement
of performance targets, if any, specified in the terms
of grant at the time of grant.

Remaining life of the Scheme
The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on

20 September 2021 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

37. BRHESTE (#)

(c)

(d)

(e)

HRIR BB R e b AR R 10 < A
PR

MR LBRE 2 AE+FHHE
EFENEHESEZ R e ECERRE
HAR -

BIRER A FITER 2 RAEF
BHE (mH)

RELBREZR ESE2XEH
EXZ BV ARTERERERA T
TEAZRERHA R REBKRR
BIEHE (WH) -

FE R P R B R SK P RT B 2 &R
AR/ XEBXRRBEHH
(InF ) BERAEMEFEITRE

et B Z BT E IR
BIERIBATEIER TIAK L &

BIZet 8l B ER B TF T
RZE-_—FNLA-_+BEmM-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 Bt 3R R Bf st

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHItFE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 37.

The exercise price of the option shall be no less than the
higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a business day;

(i) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five Stock
Exchange business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and

(iii)  the nominal value of the shares of the Company on
the date of grant.

A consideration of HK$1 shall be paid upon the
acceptance of the option.

No option has been granted under the former share
option scheme and the Scheme since its adoption.

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 38.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s bank loans
were secured by the Group's assets as follows:

BRERE ()

BREZTEELANMRTI=ZE2Z

REE
(i) BERATRIRE BB 2 HBRKRAA

2 A RE R HE (A KA
REER)

(i) BERATR R B HIAT I (R A2
FrEXBBER 2 ARRMAZ AR
AR FHRHE: &

(i) AABBRODNEHAHzEE
RENBRERBNBELITERRE-
ARBNEBNBRE S KA EE
BRA R X SR 1 {00 S ASCHE ©

& AR

REZR  UAKBEZ EEFRITERZ
iy

2012 2011

—B-C=fF —E——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Investment properties wEYE 297,780 254,090

Leasehold land and buildings HELHRIETF 19,026 19,948
Properties under development BRPZFEDHE

for sale 414,426 542,467

Properties held for sale HIEFEME 167,306 -

898,538 816,505
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2004, legal actions
in respect of allegations of copyright infringement and
defamation have been taken against certain subsidiaries
of the Company carrying on its health products business.
No further steps have been taken against the Group
in respect of such actions after the court hearing for
directions to appoint experts and exchange witness
statements since 2004. At 31 March 2012, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that in view of the
uncertainty, it is not practicable to assess the financial
effect.

40. COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following commitments:

40.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RIFE

9. IR EE

(E_ETNE=A=+—HIFER"
ARRETRERFEREK ZMBA
BIBLRIEARHE B FF 8 2 R IR R A2

T8 - B _EZENFREZAERRIBE
AR ERFZ I/ REANE  E5HAE

HUAEBEZE—FTH - R_T—_F
:H:+ E' $ j%%wu% f%‘ﬁ/\/\
PHEE M MY BT (EEM KR
@0

B ARRE

RARERR  NEEA LT EANRE:

2012 2011
—E—CfF —T——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Contracted for but not provided ﬁ?‘g EEESEE R
in consolidated financial RERE W BWMENA
statements in relation to:
Acquisition of leasehold land for BARZERAZNEE L
development purpose 58,650 -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had also
committed with an independent third party to contribute
HK$231,500,000 (2011: HK$231,500,000), representing
23.63% (2011: 23.63%) of the anticipated project costs,
for the joint development of a site in So Kwun Wat, Hong
Kong.

RAREHER AEBEEEIREB L
E-HZHARABER—RURESRES
2 3 3% 5 231,500,000 (= &
——%£:231,500,0007T) 2 &4 - 1518
SFEBKA223.63% (T ——4%F:
23.63%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B 7 3 &R B %
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_Z——F=A=1+—HLLFE

41. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
in respect of rented premises under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

REHERE
AEA
AR EBR - RS ERE A BEHE S

HEFRERYE 2 ARKEESAE
LN

2012 2011

—E——fF —F——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT IT

Within one year —F RN 5,834 5,585
In the second to fifth year inclusive SE_-_Z2FRF (BHEEEMSE) 3,383 13,466
After five years hF& 7,520 =
16,737 19,051

Included in the operating lease commitments are future
minimum lease payments of HK$661,000 (2011:
HK$887,000) in respect of rented premises under non-
cancellable operating lease with an associate of the Group
which fall due within one year (2011: one year).

Minimum lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for its office properties, warehouses and shops
which amounting to HK$822,000, HK$2,345,000 and
HK$4,601,000 (2011: HK$810,000, HK$2,653,000
and HK$3,795,000) respectively. Average leases are
negotiable and rentals are fixed for lease term of three
years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T

41. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

There are certain lease agreements, according to which
the Group is committed to pay the higher of a minimum
guaranteed amount or a monthly payment equivalent
to a prescribed percentage of a monthly sales as rental.
The minimum guaranteed rental payments are included
above. The respective contingent rental payment for the
year ended 31 March 2012 amounted to HK$430,000
(2011: HK$229,000).

As lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease payments in respect of the investment properties:

41.

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RIFE

RETHERIE (2)

AN (#)

B—EHAEEY REASBZAEIM
RERESEXAMNTE (ZRANEAE
B EOIEAAS) MEFREMR
HeHERERSHBBEENRLERA -F
2T _—F=A=1+—HILFE 1BH#
A & FIBA RBEE 430,000t (=
——4F : #0229 0007T) °

HEA

RARSEHR  AEECSEAFFIXNF
AREMEZBRKEHESNO T :

2012 2011

—E-—F —T——%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT IT

Within one year —F RN 16,975 17,633
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_Z2FERF (BEEEMSE) 10,852 18,383
27,827 36,016

Leases are negotiable for lease term of three years.

B mmER FOFHR=F-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 43 & B 7 3 &R B %
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_Z——F=A=1+—HLLFE

42. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 42, B IK 18 % 5t &

With the implementation of Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme in Hong Kong on 1 December 2000, the
Group has maintained the defined contribution scheme
registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance and has obtained an exemption satisfying the
requirements of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (“MPFQ”").

To comply with the MPFO, a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) with voluntary contributions
has been established. New employees must join the MPF
Scheme since its commencement on 1 December 2000.
The Group contributes 5% to 10% of the relevant payroll
costs for each employee to the MPF Scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees.

The amounts charged to the consolidated income
statement represent contributions paid and payable to
the schemes by the Group at rates specified in the rules
of the schemes less forfeitures arising from employees
leaving the Group prior to completion of qualifying service
period. The amount for the year is as follows:

EER_EETF+_A—HAFBET
@ MEATEEE B ARBERIIRER
FRRET B IRPIFE M 2 B KT S
I 2 B S 58 5T 58 Bl 1 A FE 2 5 BRI
(@B G&H]) ZHRE -

REBRBESGY AREELRIAR
FRUuHRzRESHE -ER_FZTE
FT-_A—BRBKETRESFEIEL.
MEESVLAMABRIED S - AEEKS
BUEEBRHEATEEFTEEREMH
IHKRANBAZAZERSZ+ HER
HEREBENE -

EHFRAaNaERRANG 2z SBEASE
ma LRt I MAEE 2 e R AET &I
REMZHR BEREDCHIREFE
BEREETHEFAMAANRE 2 EEATZ
WK o AR JE 2 FRIRAA T

2012 2011

—E——fF —FT——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T ok e

Contributions paid and payable A RBEARAHK 8,336 8,290

Forfeiture 02 W 5R (118) (704)

8,218 7,586

At 31 March 2012 and 2011, there is no forfeited N-ZEBE——F=A=F+—HE=ZE——

contribution arose upon employees leaving the retirement F=A=+—8 Z£RFEERHEKREH

benefit schemes and which were available to reduce T2 & A& N Al B A A R 3R F 2 e
contributions payable. AR 2 R MR TR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the balances with related parties as
disclosed in the statement of financial position and the
acquisition transaction as described in note 36, the Group

also entered into transactions with the following related

parties during the year:

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RIFE

43. HEALXR 5

BRI SRR R IR 2 BB A T RE R
MiFE36rTl c MR ZIN AEBFAR
ETNFIBEALTENRS

2012 2011
—E--F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ok
Construction income from REEEBRHBARZ
subsidiaries of HKRI BEWA 241,968 192,312
Construction income e —HEEEHEE
from a jointly controlled entity BEWA 13,427 11,139
Project management income R B CCM TrustfEl B A A2
from indirect subsidiaries of HEERKA
CCM Trust 3,359 3,368
Project management income REAEEAREHER 2
from a jointly controlled entity of HEEBEEBA
the Group 766 -
Rental expenses to an associate mEE AR AES (881) (1,138)
Interior and renovation income DQEREEE == NS DS
from subsidiaries of HKRI and HEE A+ 2 26 RgERA
its associates 3 59
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 Bt 3R R Bf st

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHItFE

43.

44.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Compensation of key management
personnel

Details of the remuneration of key management
personnel, which are the directors and employees, during
the year were set out in note 12.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 6 February 2012, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to acquire from an independent
third party a piece of land at Tong Yan San Tsuen, Yuen
Long for a cash consideration of HK$69,000,000. The
land was acquired for development purpose. A deposit
of HK$10,350,000 was paid during the reporting period.
The remaining purchase price balance of HK$58,650,000
was paid and the acquisition has been completed on 7
May 2012.

43.

44.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

45. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 45. XN R 2B FE R
COMPANY
Financial information of the Company at the end of the RI|EBR AR ZHBERBLE:

reporting period includes:

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary "E—FEHEBERA 326,740 326,740
Current assets MEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A N EENETE ] 52,946 53,068
Bank balances and cash RITERR IR 564 479
53,510 53,547
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables and accrued HMEMNRIBREFER
charges 277 39
Amounts due to subsidiaries T B A Rl Fk I8 862 572
1,139 611
Net current assets mEEEFE 52,371 52,936
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREAR 379,111 379,676
Capital and reserves R& A X A
Share capital fi& 7% 48,756 48,756
Reserves (F] 330,355 330,920
379,111 379,676
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 Bt 3R R Bf st

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHItFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of n=
which are wholly owned, at 31 March 2012 and 2011 are F=
as follows:

Issued and fully

46. T EWMB LA RFHIE

E—_—_F=A=t+-—"HRER-_ZT——
A=+—H ' AAGEZEMEARH
ABEEWBAR  FBWT:

Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/
registration/ registered capital/
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital Principal activities
ERITRAE
R/ w BERAK
i) NCIE=E —E 3.1 IMER RERE TEEH
(note 1)
(FE1)
Amwell Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 Investment holding
Hong Kong IE BREER
KBRS /BB
Brilliant Advance Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$2 Investment holding
Hong Kong 2ETT BREER
RBRZES/BA
Camson Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Property investment
BEEARAR BB BT MERE
Care & Health Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of health products
RmEAaRA R BB 2T REERES
Emwell Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Property investment
HERR LA BB 2T MERE
Forever Gainer Development Hong Kong HK$2 Property development
Limited BB BT MEER
KEZERAERA A
General Target Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Property investment
FEMARAT e 75110,0007T MERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. T EWB A B FEE (2)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/
registration/ registered capital/
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital Principal activities
ERTRAR
R,/ &, BERE
i) NG —E 31 IMELR RERE TEEH
(note 1)
(FfE1)
Hamfield Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Property holding
HEEFARLDA B 2T MERE
Hanison Construction Company Hong Kong Ordinary shares Property construction
Limited B HK$1,000 3L
FBREAR AR Deferred shares
HK$60,000,000
(note 2)
TR 1,0007T
BB
60,000,000
(HiEE2)
Hanison Construction British Virgin Islands/ US$2 Investment holding
Holdings (BVI) Limited Hong Kong 2FETT HEER
(Note 3) (Pf#7E3) EBRAHS /BB
Hanison Contractors Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Property construction
B EBR AR e B2 3=
Hanison Estate Services Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Provision of property
TSR B R QA 5% 2T management services
W% E 2 RS
Hanison Foundation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Property construction
FRsMETRAR AR B LT e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 Bt 3R R Bf st
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. T EWB A RFEE (&)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/
registration/ registered capital/
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital Principal activities
ERTRER
R,/ &, BBERE
i) NCIE=E —E 3.1 IMELR RERE TEEH
(note 1)
(FfE1)
Hanison Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
SR B R A A e BT REZRK
Hanison Interior & Renovation Hong Kong HK$4,200,000 Provision of interior and
Limited BB 784 200,0007T renovation services
HEEARBEERAR o R EE R
Hanison (Macau) Limited Macau MOP25,000 Property construction
Hfs ORP) AR AR BRI 25,0002 7T e
Hanison Project Management Hong Kong HK$2 Provision of property leasing
Limited BB 2T and marketing services and
FEEEEERRAR project management
MEMRE KRR R
HEEE
Hantex Engineering Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Plant maintenance and
FETRARDA B BELT servicing
TR s 4 1 M A& 32
Healthcorp Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of health products and
RECEERAA B 2T investment holding
REERE S RREER
Heatex Ceramic Limited Hong Kong HK$400,000 Property development
meARAT e 75 #400,0007T MEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

46. T EWMB A AIFE (&)

Issued and fully

Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/
registration/ registered capital/
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital Principal activities
ERTRAR
R,/ &, BERE
i) NG —E 31 IMELR RERE TEEH
(note 1)
(FfE1)
Million Hope Industries Limited Hong Kong HK$11,000,000 Supply and installation of
XFEEXARAA 55 7 #11,000,0007C building materials
e I & S S KL
Protic Limited* Hong Kong HK$1 Property development
BEEARAA N BT MEER
Retailcorp Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Sales of health products
ZEREERAR B 27T EEEmMEE
Rich Color Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 Investment holding
FEEBRAR Hong Kong e REER
EBRAMS /BB
Sanney Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Property development
BAERRRATA] e LT MEER
Senior Rich Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,380 Property investment
TmERAERAR BB ##10,3807T MERE
Sunny Oriental Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
MEBERRAA BB LT REZR
Tai Kee Pipes Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 Trading of building materials
R AR AT BB 7 12,000,0007T BEMHES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4324 Bt 3R R Bf st

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHItFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. T EWB A RFEE (&)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/
registration/ registered capital/
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital Principal activities
ERTRER
R,/ &, BBERE
i) NCIE=E —E 3.1 IMELR RERE TEEH
(note 1)
(FfE1)
Team Forward Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$2 Investment holding
Hong Kong 2T BEER
RBRELEE/BA
Top Rising Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
REZERERDA] 5% BT REER
Trigon Building Materials Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 Supply and installation of
EQERMERAR B 2T building materials
I I & SR S KL
Trigon Interior Fitting-Out Works Macau MOP25,000 Building materials, renovation
(Macau) Limited i SR P9#25,00070 and trading
EREZENEE ORM)ARAT BEMK - B#ERES
Triple Sky Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Property development
e BT MEER
Vast Media International Limited*  Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
EEBRERDA e BT REZER
Wisdom Concept Development Hong Kong HK$2 Property development
Limited N0 2T MEER
B ERERAA
Wisdom Mount Investment British Virgin Islands US$1 Investment holding
Limited* REEUES 1E7T REER

BERAEBROE]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %43 & B 4 3R R Mf 3T
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—HItFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

46. T EWB A EFE (#)

Issued and fully

Subsidiary which was newly incorporated during the year

ended 31 March 2012.

Subsidiary which was newly acquired during the year

ended 31 March 2012.

REARKME

Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/
registration/ registered capital/
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital Principal activities
ERTRAR
R,/ &, BERE
i) NG —E 31 IMELR RERE TEEH
(note 1)
(FfE1)
iath (LB)BSERAA People’s Republic of US$600,000 Trading of health products
(Note 4) (Ht3E4) China 600,000 7T BREERES
FREAREN
R ZEME (BM) People’s Republic of HK$39,990,771 Manufacture and supply of
BR A B (Note 4) (Fi5E4) China 75 #39,990,7717¢ building materials

BUE Rt EMR

* RBE-T-—F=A=t—ALEE
Hirk 2 HB AR -

¥ ORBET-—FoHA=t—HLFE
B Z B AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& 81 % 7= fii 5

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_ZT——F=A=+—RHItFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46.
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(1) Al being ordinary share capital except the registered
capital for the subsidiaries registered in the PRC and
quota capital for subsidiaries incorporated in Macau.

(2) The deferred shares are shares whose shareholders
are neither entitled to receive notices, attend, vote at
any general meetings nor to receive any dividend out of
operating profit and have very limited rights on return of
capital of the subsidiary.

(3)  Other than Hanison Construction Holdings (BVI) Limited,
which is directly held by the Company, all other companies
are indirectly held by the Company.

(4) A wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
during the year.

The Company have 100% ownership interest and voting
power except otherwise stated.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets and liabilities of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
IEH R

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=t+-BL

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—B--f C"T——% C"T-TF C"TTNF _TTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BT BT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(&=E5) (ZE5) (L=E5) (&=5)

RESULTS E3
Turnover EEE 1,234,656 723,242 884,370 1,828,475 1,445,869
Profit (loss) before taxation BREi AR (BE) 136,077 180,158 123,414 (66,326) 118,640
Taxation charge HIEZ (7,910) (4,159) (2,350) (5,279) (5,661)
Profit (loss) for the year EEHER (B8B) 128,167 175,999 121,064 (71,605) 112,979
As at 31 March
R=B=t+-HL

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—g-=f —T——% C-T-THF CITNF —TI)\f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT T BETT BT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (&) (EE5) (=5)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total Assets EELE 2,281,897 1,922,489 1,807,327 1,736,305 1,848 949
Total Liabilities afeE (1,230,567) (982,309)  (1,026,619)  (1,065,659)  (1,093,856)
Shareholders’ Funds REEE 1,051,330 940,180 780,708 670,646 755,093
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
e SIE IS

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR
RENTAL PURPOSES

Total

saleable/gross

floor/site

area (sq.ft.)

BE #gd/

Descriptions HERERAH
BR (FHR)

A BEREVEELSHEBANRERE

Attributable
interest of
the Group

rEME
EihERE

Nature of
property
YEME

Category
of lease

SR Pl

1. Workshop 5, G/F, Block A,
Workshop 7, 1/F, Block A,
Workshop 8, 1/F, Block B,
Workshops 9-10, portion of
Workshop 12 and Workshop 13,
2/F, Block A,

Workshop 8, 2/F, Block B,
Workshops 1-3, 6 & portion

of Workshops 4-5 & 24 (including
flat roofs of 4, 5 & 6), 3/F, Block B,
Workshops 1-5, 4/F, Block B,
Workshops 1-18

& maijority portion of

Workshop 23 (including

flat roofs of Workshops 5 & 6),

4/F, Block A,

Whole Floor, 5/F, Blocks A & B,
Whole Floor, 6/F, Block A,

Car Parking Spaces

V26, V31, V36, V49, V50,

V55, C2, L42, 145 & L53

Shatin Industrial Centre

5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit

Shatin, New Territories

HR 125,940
W H (TBEETE
IRIBESZE 75 ZHR)
WHIEFD

ABEHE T TERS -

ARE—IE T{ER7 -

BR:—12 T {EMES

AR~ TEfE9E10 -
TEM122 & R TIEFE1L3 -

BR: — 1 T {EMES -

BE=EIT{EM1E3%6

M T4k 24( B 1R

T{Ef4 -5R62ETE) 2 &b15 -

BEEUZ T{EM1E5 -

AR TEMLIZ18 K

TEMI23 2 EE 5B -

(BEIEESKR6ZETR)

ANMBERIERE

ABEIERE

K B\ #7557 V26 ~ V31 V36

V49 ~ V50 ~ V55 ~C2 ~ L42 ~

L4581 53

125,940
(excluding area
of flat roofs)

Industrial 100% Medium term

lease

I% 100% F HR
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A.

SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES FZ¥ ¥ £

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

A HEREVEESBAESBANA

RENTAL PURPOSES (continued) B #)
Total
saleable/gross
floor/site Attributable
area (sq.ft.) interest of
gmE gg|m/ Nature of the Group Category

Descriptions HEEBENH property rE of lease
BR (FER) VRME bR HA R
2. Ground Floor and 1st Floor 5,041 Industrial 100% Medium term

of Block B, Nos. 23-25 lease

Mei Wan Street

Tsuen Wan

New Territories

HREE 5,041 T3 100% Hh H

FIRE23E 255

BEEM T ] —18
3. Various lots 142,066 Agricultural 100% Medium term

in Demarcation District lease

No. 76

Ping Che

Fanling

New Territories

MAnETE 142,066 B¥ 100% 8

L EHT765

AT e
4.  Leasehold interest in the 2,731 Commercial/ 100% Medium term

Head-Lease for the residual Residential lease

term of 30 years commencing

from 1 December 1989 with

an option to renew for a further

term of 30 years of whole of

No. 31 Wing Wo Street, Sheung Wan

Hong Kong

n—hEBERA 2,731 BE/EE 100% m i

BB LRAMA3REE
ZBHERN 2 HE S
HEFHA- NN \NET A
— Bt AY=1TF (L
BRER RN =TFRBZEN)
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES FZ¥ ¥ £

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

A HEREVEEASBEAESBANR

RENTAL PURPOSES (continued) B #)
Total
saleable/gross
floor/site Attributable
area (sq.ft.) interest of
BEBrmE/ Nature of the Group Category

Descriptions HEEBNH property rE of lease
BER (FER) VRME bR HAER
5. Various Lots 214,106 Agricultural 100% Medium term

in Demarcation District No. 128 lease

Deep Bay Road, Yuen Long

New Territories

R TTBAR B 214,106 === 100% i H

L 241285

HTHER
6.  Workshop Unit Nos. 4 to 6 (inclusive) on 4,192 Industrial 100% Medium term

2nd Floor and Lorry Carpark lease

Nos. L7 & L8

on Ground Floor,

Kin Wing Industrial Building,

No. 33 Kin Wing Street,

Tuen Mun, New Territories

R P 4,192 T 100% i H

B335

B TERE 124265 T1EM

(MEBEEN)

Rt TERRIREL7 L8
7. Various lots 60,277 Agricultural 50% Medium term

in Demarcation District lease

No. 132, Tuen Mun, New

Territories

AP L E £13257 R 60,277 -3 3 50% 8

TR
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES FZ¥ ¥ £

B. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

B. #RPZHEM=

FOR SALE
Site Gross floor Expected Attributable
area area completion interest of
(sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Stage of date Nature of the Group
Descriptions WEEE AEEEE completion BRI property r5E
R (FAR) (FAR) 52 B P R =h- MERE FEihE R
1. 121 Lots in Demarcation 815,886 Not yet Planning No Residential 100%
District No. 129 determined in progress definite
Lau Fau Shan plan
Yuen Long
New Territories
R 815,886 RIEE gIRER EREHE = 100%
TCRAE L
L 21295
12113 B
2. Various lots 44 583 Not yet Planning in  No definite plan Residential 100%
in Demarcation determined progress
District No. 374
So Kwun Wat
Tuen Mun
New Territories
HREFFES 44,583 RIEE ZEER EREE FE 100%
L E 437458
aTHER
3. Nos. 91-97 Bedford Road 4,820 57,772 Work in 2013 Industrial 100%
progress
VB ZIT5E 4,820 57,772 TR#EATH 2013 I% 100%
4, No. 38 Kwun Chung Street 5,790 52,077 Work in 2014 Residential 100%
Jordan, Kowloon progress
NEEHERE3RH 5,790 52077  Ti2#EAT 2014 E=E 100%
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES FZ¥ ¥ E

C. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE C. HIFHEW=x
Site Gross floor Attributable
area area interest of
(sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions WEEE BEEEE property r5E of lease
R (FAR) (FAR) MEME EiEER AR
Eight College 6,125 18,372 Residential 100% Medium term
8 College Road lease
Kowloon Tong
Kowloon
€ 6,125 18,372 FE 100% mh
N E &8
Eight College
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HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED

Bl AT B PE B AR 2 ]

Unit 1, 4/F., Block B, Shatin Industrial Centre,
5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin, Hong Kong
EEVHRIEEREZE L5
WHIZFEFROBENE—=

www.hanison.com
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